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International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

I 'am pleased to take this opportunity to present the annual report of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The principal activities of the Group are hotel operations, leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment and live poker events
operations.

The Group's revenue with continuing operations for the year ended 30
June 2020 was approximately HK$227.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 39.6%, as compared with approximately HK$376.0 million in
the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Both the revenue from the leasing
of properties and the hotel operations for the year decreased as compared
with the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$305.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 as
compared with a loss of approximately HK$93.3 million for the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019 for continuing and discontinued operations,
which represented an increase of approximately 227.2%. The increase in
loss was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of the investment
properties and the decrease in the leasing income during the year, which
were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown policy in
Manila.

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group for the year
under review was approximately HK$10.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 70.6%, as compared with approximately HK$37.1 million
for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company as at 30 June 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,788.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.6%, as
compared with approximately HK$2,023.3 million as at 30 June 2019.

As always, the Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and will continue to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems to comply with the statutory
and regulatory requirements to maximise the values of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group will continue to focus on its existing business operations and

investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to strive for
exploring potential business opportunities.
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The tourism industry in the Philippines is expected to grow after COVID-19
pandemic, with higher disposable incomes, increasingly discerning market
demographic and other positive factors have driven the booming
development of the Philippines. Marina Square Properties, Inc. ("MSPI"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the Philippines, had
submitted an application to Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation (“PAGCOR") for a provisional license in order to expand and
upgrade the current hotel premises, facilities and services by the
establishment and operation of a casino and the development of an
integrated resort in the Philippines. MSPI had received a conditionally
approved letter issued by PAGCOR, and MSPI will further negotiate for the
terms of the provisional license agreement to be entered into between
PAGCOR and MSPIin relation to the grant of the provisional license.

Looking forward, we strive to explore more opportunities of high potential
to create synergies among businesses and support the long-term growth
of the Group.

In conclusion, I would like to express my sincerest gratitude to my fellow
directors of the Company, the management team and the employees of
the Group for their relentless commitment, efforts and creative ideas
during the year. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank our
Shareholders, customers and business partners for their continued support.

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEwmEDN

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REGARDING
THE QUALIFIED OPINION

The auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) has expressed a qualified
opinion (the “Qualified Opinion”) on the discontinued operation. Set out
below are the supplementary information regarding the aforesaid qualified
opinion:

1. Background for the discontinued operation

Detailed information is set out in note 13 and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2. Management’s view on the audit qualification

The management of the Company has given careful consideration
to the Qualified Opinion and the basis therefor and has had ongoing
discussions with Auditor when preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The management understands that the issue of the Qualified
Opinion was caused by the delay in the audit work of the Disposal
Group as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic in UK and also the
subsidiaries of the Disposal Group went into administration and
administrators (the "Administrators”) were appointed. The Company
and the Auditor have urged the Administrators to provide the
financial information for the audit. However, the Administrators are
in the process of selling the business and assets of the Disposal
Group, and they are unable to assist the Auditor to perform the
audit. As a result, the Auditor could not perform its audit work on the
Disposal Group and this is beyond our management control. As the
Auditor could not obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
and materials to audit the line items relevant to the Disposal Group
on the Group's 2020 consolidated financial statements, the Auditor
issued the Qualified Opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

With respect to the type of audit opinion issued by the Auditor,
based on the foregoing, the management acknowledged and
agreed with the audit opinion issued based on their professional and
independent assessment.
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International Entertainment Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

View of the Audit Committee and management’s
position

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
confirmed that it had independently reviewed and agreed with the
management’s position concerning the Qualified Opinion for
reasons stated in paragraph headed “Management’s view on the
audit qualification” above.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 11 September 2020,
in which it has considered the explanation made by the Auditor and
the management with respect to the audit work for the Disposal
Group. It was acknowledged by the Audit Committee that there
were practical difficulties to the audit work for reasons stated above,
and that the relevant audit procedures required to be performed by
the Auditor were in fact affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the
subsequent administration for the subsidiaries of the Disposal Group.

On the basis of the above, the Audit Committee does not dispute
the Qualified Opinion issued on the discontinued operation for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

Action plan to address the audit qualification

The Company had various discussions with the Auditor on the
reasons for issuing the Qualified Opinion, and on the sufficiency of
audit evidence and the audit procedures required to be performed
in order to remove the Qualified Opinion.

The Company will use its best endeavours to negotiate with the
Administrators in order to complete the Disposal Group audit work.
The Company is also liaising with the Auditor with respect to the
audit issue. The Company will comply with all relevant requirements,
and where necessary, make further announcement(s) in accordance
with the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

Impact and removal of the audit qualification

As disclosed in Independent Auditor’s Report, the audit qualification
only related to the discontinued operation for the current year 2020.
As the Disposal Group would no longer be consolidated in the
financial statements of the Group, the issues which gave rise to the
Qualified Opinion would likely, at the maximum, only continue to
impact the Group's financial statements for the year ending 30 June
2021 for the qualification on the comparative figures.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEwmEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Continuing operations

As the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 March to 30
June in 2019, the financial information of the Company herein presented is
for the year ended 30 June 2020, with comparatives based on those for the
fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The Group's revenue for the year
ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$227.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 39.6%, as compared with approximately
HK$376.0 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Both the
revenue from the leasing of properties and the hotel operations for the
year decreased as compared with the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
The Group reported a gross profit of approximately HK$148.5 million for
the year under review, representing a decrease of approximately 45.0%, as
compared with approximately HK$270.0 million in the fifteen months
ended 30 June 2019. Gross profit margin for the year ended 30 June 2020
was approximately 65.4%, representing a decrease of approximately 6.4%,
as compared to gross profit margin of approximately 71.8% for the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019. The decrease in gross profit margin for the
year was mainly due to drop of room rate of hotel operations and the
decrease of leasing income for the year.

Other income of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 was
approximately HK$16.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
38.9%, as compared with approximately HK$26.5 million in the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019.

The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$29.1 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2020, while a loss on change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$51.8 million was
recognised for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The Group also
recorded a gain of approximately HK$13.2 million on change in fair value of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2020.

Other losses of the Group mainly represented the net foreign exchange
gain or loss. The Group recorded a net foreign exchange loss of
approximately HKS$13.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2020, while a net
foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$8.8 million was recorded in the
fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. For the year ended 30 June 2020, the
other losses also included the written-off of property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$0.4 million and written-off of other receivables of
approximately HK$2.7 million.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses
of the Group decreased by approximately 35.4% to approximately
HK$126.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 from approximately
HK$196.5 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Included in
these expenses for the year ended 30 June 2020, approximately 40.4% and
11.0% were the staff costs and the utilities expenses respectively. The staff
costs for the year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$51.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 22.4%, as compared with
approximately HK$66.1 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
The utilities expenses for the year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately
HKS$13.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 43.5%, as
compared with approximately HK$24.6 million in the fifteen months ended
30 June 2019.

Finance costs of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 was
approximately HK$32.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
48.5% as compared with approximately HK$21.9 million in the fifteen
months ended 30 June 2019. The finance costs included the interest on
promissory note, the bank loan interest, interest on other borrowings, lease
liabilities and convertible bond.

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately HKS$6.5 million for
the year ended 30 June 2020, while income tax expenses of approximately
HKS$14.2 million was recognised in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
Such turnaround from income tax expenses to income tax credit was
mainly due to release of deferred tax liabilities during the year ended 30
June 2020.

The loss for the period from discontinued operation was approximately
HK$70.9 million, which included the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$128.0 million.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$305.3 million for the year
ended 30 June 2020 as compared with a loss of approximately HK$93.3
million for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019 for continuing and
discontinued operations, which represented an increase of approximately
227.2%. The increase in loss was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of
the investment properties and the decrease in the leasing income during
the year, which were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the
lockdown policy in Manila.

Loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2020 amounted to
approximately 20.42 HK cents, as compared with loss per share of
approximately 5.66 HK cents for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are hotel operations, leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment and live poker events
operations.

Continuing operations

1.

10

Leasing of properties

The revenue derived from the leasing of properties represents the
rental income from the premises of the Group leased to PAGCOR.
The monthly rental income is based on an agreed percentage of net
gaming revenue generated from the local gaming area operated by
PAGCOR as lessee of the Group's premises or a fixed rental amount,
whichever is higher.

The revenue derived from the leasing of properties for the year
ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$140.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 38.7%, as compared with
approximately HK$229.5 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June
2019. The decrease was mainly due to the closure of Group's
property since mid-March 2020. It contributed approximately 62.0%
of the Group's revenue from continuing operations during the year
under review while it contributed approximately 61.0% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations in the fifteen months
ended 30 June 2019.

Hotel operations

The revenue derived from the hotel operations mainly includes
room revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel
service income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City
which is a tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as
various night spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist
destinations in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operations for the year ended 30
June 2020 was approximately HK$82.0 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 42.0%, as compared with approximately
HK$141.3 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019.

During the year under review, included in the revenue derived from
the hotel operations, approximately 69.1% of the revenue was
contributed by room revenue while it was approximately 63.8% in
the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. The room revenue for the
year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$56.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 37.1%, as compared with
approximately HK$90.1 million in the fifteen months ended 30 June
2019. The decrease was mainly due to drop of room rate of hotel
operation.
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Impairment loss of non-current assets

During the year, we concluded that the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$8,709,000 and
right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$666,000 are
required to be impaired respectively. The impairment was
recognised as the COVID-19 pandemic’s effects became widespread
and tourist activities was restricted in the Philippines until the date of
this report. The independent valuation expert had included the
possible effect of COVID-19 in the calculation of recoverable amount
of the Hotel's non-current assets and therefore arrived at a lower
recoverable amount.

3.  Live poker events operations

The revenue derived from the live poker events operations
represents the live event income from the sponsorship and the
entrance fee.

The revenue derived from the live poker events operations for the
year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately HK$4.2 million. It
contributed approximately 1.9% of the Group’s total revenue during
the year under review.

Discontinued operation

The Group had ceased its football club operations since 29 May 2020 due
to the disposal of subsidiaries.

The revenue derived from the football club operations represents
broadcasting income, commercial income and matchday income. The
broadcasting income represents central distributions of broadcasting
revenue from the English Football League (“EFL") and solidarity payment
from the Premier League. The commercial income represents the
sponsorship, and other commercial income such as sales of food and
beverages, stadium hiring income and hospitality sales. The matchday
income represents the ticket income from EFL Championship competitions
and other cups competitions.

The revenue derived from the football club operations for the year ended
30 June 2020 was approximately HK$125.1 million. The loss for the period
from discontinued operation was approximately HK$70.9 million, which
included the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$128.0
million.

EEENWmR DN

FEREEE R EETE

FR - AEBZERBYVE  BERRER
TEI{B 49 8,709,000 78 7T, M {5 F # & 72 49 666,000
BILTHREREBE - EE2A%E A
COVID- 19 IB A IFARE IR S B E X R
Hl - AfmAERRE - B GEERAEEE
IEmEE E AT E BB FT A COVID-19.2
AR S SR A Y el &5 o

% 7 B 48
B

3. REDRSHEREE
KARLRGERED WAREND AL
EMBRGEPHRA -

HE-_Z-_ZTFA=1THILFE FELK
BIRGE R ES) 2 WA 454,200,000 7T °
REBFER - EllRAGREBRLKAL
1.9% ©

ERIEEERK
AEEE-T_TFRA-_TAARKIERIKA
LEEETS  WTIRPN L EN B AT -

KERLLERHERBZBARBREEA - BEK
AR BB WA - EREWA SR B A8 5 2 BRE
BE(RABBERBE]) 2ERBRAZEFT DIk &
KERBHEBREHRBEZBENRK - BERA
REPREMBHERA(PIINEREE - BEHH
BEWRARBEEHE) - LBEARARREZEHE
FRHBMBERSREMRERETZMIZRA -

HE-_Z-_TFXAZTHILFE KRAKER
DRIEZEEL 2 U A # 4125,100,000/8 70 » BARR B
BRI TS 2 B84 /5 70,900,0008 7T © B2 1
S BB 2 B U2 4 128,000,000 7 7T ©

Annual Report & #§ 2019/20 11



BIFRIREEF R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEwmEDN

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has impacted all company over
the world. The COVID-19 pandemic has caused the decrease in both the
hotel revenue and leasing income in the Philippines. The gradual easing of
the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Manila has led to the recovery of the
hotel rooms booking and the casino located in the Hotel would be
expected to reopen. The Group will continue to focus on its existing
business operations and investments in the Philippines riding on business
environment to strive for exploring potential business opportunities.

The tourism industry in the Philippines is expected to grow after COVID-19
pandemic, with higher disposable incomes, increasingly discerning market
demographic and other positive factors have driven the booming
development of the Philippines. MSPI had submitted an application to
PAGCOR for a provisional license in order to expand and upgrade the
current hotel premises, facilities and services by the establishment and
operation of a casino and the development of an integrated resort in the
Philippines. MSPI had received a conditionally approved letter issued by
PAGCOR, and MSPI will further negotiate for the terms of the provisional
license agreement to be entered into between PAGCOR and MSPI in
relation to the grant of the provisional license.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$682.3 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$388.4 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$771.0 million (as at 30 June
2019: HK$546.6 million), of which approximately HK$623.2 million (as at 30
June 2019: HK$242.3 million) was bank balances and cash, approximately
HKS7.1 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$26.5 million) was trade receivables,
approximately HK$38.2 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$82.7 million) was
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, approximately HK$1.8 million
(as at 30 June 2019: HK$2.9 million) was inventories, approximately HK$93.4
million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$191.4 million) was financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, approximately HK$4.1 million (as at 30 June
2019: HK$0.9 million) was contract assets, and approximately HK$3.2 million
(as at 30 June 2019: nil) was amounts due from associates.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$88.7 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$158.2 million), of
which approximately HK$3.5 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$20.5 million)
was trade payables, approximately HK$62.0 million (as at 30 June 2019:
HKS$121.6 million) was other payables and accrued charges, approximately
HKS$1.0 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$11.3 million) was contract liabilities,
approximately HK$19.5 million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$4.8 million) was
bank borrowings, and approximately HK$2.8 million (as at 30 June 2019: nil)
was lease liabilities.

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2020 was mainly
denominated in Philippine Peso (“Peso”), Hong Kong Dollars ("HKS") and
United States Dollars (“USD").

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Fortune Growth Overseas Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of
the remaining 49% equity interest in Maxprofit International Limited at a
consideration of HK$1,138.0 million, of which HK$788.0 million was settled
by cash and HK$350.0 million was settled by way of the issuance of a
promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) in the principal amount of
HK$350.0 million by Fortune Growth Overseas Limited to Cross-Growth Co,,
Ltd. (the “Holder"). Details of the acquisition are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 July 2016 and the circular of the
Company dated 25 August 2016. The Promissory Note, which was issued
on 3 October 2016, carries interest at the fixed rate of 4% per annum and
shall become due and payable in full on the business day immediately
preceding the fifth anniversary of its issue date and is unsecured and
guaranteed by the Company. On 5 July 2019, the Holder transferred the
Promissory Note to another independent third party of the Company,
Oxford East Limited, through a deed of transfer. The transfer has no impact
to the Company as term of note remains unchanged. As at 30 June 2020,
the carrying value of the Promissory Note was approximately HK$345.9
million (as at 30 June 2019: HK$342.8 million).

Net cash generated from operating activities of the Group for the year
under review was approximately HK$10.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 70.6%, as compared with approximately HK$37.1 million
for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019. Net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company as at 30 June 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,788.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.6%, as
compared with approximately HK$2,023.3 million as at 30 June 2019.
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On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.50 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (i) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group. Set forth
below is a summary of the utilization of the net proceeds:

RZZE—+tFtA=-+tH ARAEHEERIE
U ERE(RERE] BERZZE—+F
NA+BTK o BRIFEE Bk 2GR R - B
EREDIREESE SR ERM1.90B TR
& & ££190,000,000 f% A8 A 7] B A% E{E 1.0078 7T 2
TERIEALERD - E—FTHBHANARQRH
AT —+tHF+LtATtRARZZ—+tFNA
+HZAE - EBREMSFIBFE(NRESHE X
EMAREEIEBR%) 43585000008 7T °
IR #5148 Be 5 P 1S 3R I8 5 88 H AR (1) £9150,000,000 78
TAREEAERESENmRZ —BEE (B
J& 1) (i) #7100,000,000 7% 7T A AR RTBEE 2
R ([FE/EHER ) (BIRETR R EEEL N
BI5 RAEFERHE) LA K AU 30 5 Ho SR R 8 S 58
ZAIRMERE ¢ (ii) #9 70,000,000 78 7T B A AT pE U R
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Amount of Balance of
the netproceeds  the net proceeds
Intended use of utilised as at unutilised as at
the net proceeds 30 June 2020 30 June 2020
R-B-2E R-B-%F
AHA=1H A~HA=+H
28R REA
P8R P8R JREE S
FERERR FeH R
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
(AEAET) (RB#ET) (RBET)
Renovation of the Hotel (Note 1) BIERE (M) 1500 1182 318
Development of the New Hotel Land, including B3 Z#T B & H 52 (B IEE R 7
but not limited to the construction of EERENEES REFRG)
a carpark and amenities of the Hotel, R ABWEBE R B L
and the provision of a facility to B=HRERE (Hi2)
an independent third party for
the acquisition of the New Hotel Land (Note 2) 100.0 526 474
Potential acquisition (the "Potential Acquisition”) F] BEULEE (BIEB TR FFEE
of, including but not limited to, lands in M BREE KSR eLis
the Philippines for the construction of ([Argelie =18 ) (HraE3)
hotel(s) and/or casino(s) (Note 3) 70.0 - 70.0
General working capital of the Group rEEN—REEES 385 385 -
Total st 3585 2093 1492

14 Annual Report 4% 2019/20



B IREEAR A E

International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:

1. The renovation of the Hotel is almost completed during the year ended 30 June
2020.

2. The HKS$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HKS$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Potential Acquisition
is expected to be completed in the financial year ending 30 June 2022. It is
expected that in addition to the balance of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$47.4 million allocated, further financial resources are required for the
development of the New Hotel Land. The time for commencement of the
development of the New Hotel Land and use of the remaining net proceeds
allocated for the development of the New Hotel Land will depend on the internal
and external financial resources available to the Group and commencement of the
development of the new lands to be acquired.

3. It is expected that the HK$70 million allocated for the Potential Acquisition will be
utilised in the financial year ending 30 June 2022.

The gearing ratio, measured in terms of the carrying values of total
borrowings divided by total assets, was approximately 18.3% (as at 30 June
2019: 15.0%).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and the issuance of the Promissory Note.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD
Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and has impacted the
Group's operations and financial position. As far as the Group's businesses
are concerned, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused the decrease in both
the hotel revenue and leasing income in the Philippines. The gradual
easing of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Manila has led to the
recovery of the hotel rooms booking and the casino located in the Hotel
would be expected to reopen.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact from the COVID-19
pandemic on the Group’s businesses and has put in place various
contingency measures. These contingency measures included but not
limited to reassessing the demand and room rate of the Hotel, reassessing
the leasing income to be received by PAGCOR and improving the Group’s
cash management by expediting debtor settlements. The Group will keep
the contingency measures under review as the COVID-19 pandemic
situation evolves.
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Application of Provisional License

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2020, MSPI
intends to apply for a provisional license (the “Provisional License”) from
PAGCOR in order to expand and upgrade the current hotel premises,
facilities and services by the establishment and operation of a casino and
the development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, Philippines
(the “Integrated Resort”). On 22 June 2020, MSPI has submitted an
application to PAGCOR for the Provisional License. On 18 September 2020,
MSPI received a letter from PAGCOR informing that PAGCOR has
conditionally approved the issuance of the Provisional License to MSPI.
MSPI'and PAGCOR will further negotiate for the terms of the provisional
license agreement to be entered into between PAGCOR and MSPI in
relation to the grant of the Provisional License.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
economic growth and the competition in the market that the Group
operates, and changes in economic, political and social conditions and
changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places that the Group
operates.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk as the Group's assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso and EURO and the
Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS$, USD and Peso while
the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in HKS and Peso.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue in the Philippines.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this report, during the year ended 30 June
2020, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the bank loans are secured by the
Group's investment properties amounted to approximately HK$1,308
million and HK$1,510 million respectively.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 30 April 2019, Baltic Success Limited (“BSL"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and two vendors, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which BSL agreed to acquire, and each
vendor agreed to sell 50% of equity interests at a consideration of
HK$26,500,000 and HK$26,500,000 respectively of Oriental-Invest Properties
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which was settled by way of issue of the convertible bond (the
“Convertible Bond") by the Company to each vendor respectively. On 2 July
2019, BSL entered into a supplemental agreement with the vendors,
pursuant to which BSL and the vendors agreed to make certain
amendments to the sale and purchase agreement in respect of certain
administrative arrangement of completion. The completion took place on
5 July 2019. Upon completion, Oriental-Invest Properties Limited has
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 30 April
2019, 2 July 2019 and 5 July 2019.

On 25 October 2019, IEC Investment Limited (“IEC Investment”) (formerly
known as “VMS Private Investment Partners VIII Limited”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a transfer agreement with
a purchaser, pursuant to which IEC Investment agreed to transfer and
assign, and the purchaser agreed to purchase the interest, being 49.9962%
of total capital commitment in the fund and represents half of IEC
Investment's interest in the fund, at the consideration of US$16.30 million.
All conditions precedent under the transfer agreement had been fulfilled
and the completion took place on 30 December 2019. Upon completion,
the Group holds 49.9962% of the total capital commitment of the fund.
Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 25
October 2019 and 30 December 2019.

On 14 February 2020, the Company and Next Leader Fund, L.P. (as the
purchaser) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Newworth
Ventures Limited (“Newworth"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Newworth is principally engaged in the operation of Wigan
Athletic Football Club which is a professional association football club
based in Wigan, Greater Manchester, England and a sports stadium, namely
the DW Stadium, with conference and other facilities. The total
consideration for the sale shares was GBP17,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$177,235,000).

All conditions precedent under the sale and purchase agreement had been
fulfilled and subsequently the completion took place on 29 May 2020.
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In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, upon completion,
the Company (as the lender) and Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited (as the
borrower) entered into a loan agreement in an aggregate principal amount
of GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$243,737,000), and the
deed of guarantee was also entered into by the purchaser in favour of the
Company along with the loan agreement.

Immediately subsequent to the entering into of the loan agreement, the
pre-existing loan in the amount GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$243,737,000) has been repaid to the Company, and as a
result, Wigan Athletic AF.C. Limited is no longer indebted to the Company.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18
November 2019, 13 December 2019, 14 February 2020, 2 March 2020, 20
March 2020, 17 April 2020, 5 May 2020 and 29 May 2020; and the circular of
the Company dated 8 May 2020.

MSPI intended to apply for the Provisional License from PAGCOR, the
regulatory and licensing authority for gaming and gambling in the
Philippines, in order to expand and upgrade the current hotel premises,
facilities and services by the establishment and operation of a casino and
the development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, the
Philippines.

On 18 September 2020, MSPI received a letter from PAGCOR informing that
PAGCOR has conditionally approved the issuance of the Provisional License
to MSPI. MSPI and PAGCOR will further negotiate for the terms of the
provisional license agreement to be entered into between PAGCOR and
MSPI'in relation to the grant of the Provisional License.

The board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
believes that the development of the Integrated Resort will generate a
multitude of benefits, such as, payment of additional revenues to the
national government of the Philippines in the form of taxes, higher tourism
revenues upon substantial increase in tourist arrivals, and employment of
thousands of direct and indirect Filipino employees.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 10
June 2020, 18 June 2020, 22 June 2020 and 18 September 2020.

Save as disclosed, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary and
associated company or significant investments of the Group, which would
have been required to be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities which may provide its growth and development potential,
enhance the profitability, and strive for better return to the Shareholders.
The Group will also continue to consider a renovation plan to improve the
properties of the Group as well as the facilities therein so as to attract more
guests and enhance their experience during their stays.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area, and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 285 as at 30 June 2020
(as at 30 June 2019: 338). The staff costs for the year ended 30 June 2020
was approximately HK$51.3 million (for the fifteen months ended 30 June
2019: HK$66.1 million). The remuneration policy of the Company is
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company. The
remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the Group is based on
the performance and experience of the individuals and is determined with
reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions. In addition to the salaries,
the employees of the Group are entitled to benefits including medical,
insurance and retirement benefits. Besides, the Group regularly provides
internal and external training courses for the employees of the Group to
meet their needs.
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Biographical information of the Directors the senior management of the
Group as at the date of this annual report is set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, aged 51, joined the Company as an executive
Director in May 2017 and was appointed as the chairman of the board of
Directors in June 2017. He is also the chairman of the executive committee
of the Company, the authorised representative of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Choi possesses more
than 20 years of experience in financial service and merger and acquisition
projects. He is the chairman of Head & Shoulders Financial Group Limited.
Apart from working at senior positions for different financial groups in
Hong Kong, Dr. Choi has also served as a member of the senior
management of various listed companies in Hong Kong. He was an
executive director of Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6161) from
September 2014 to January 2019, and was an executive director and the
chairman of Daging Dairy Holdings Limited (now known as “Longhui
International Holdings Limited”) (a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1007) from January 2016 to July 2018 and
from February 2016 to July 2018 respectively. Dr. Choi was also an
independent director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication Co.,
Ltd, Shanxi (LUl 8B ILIZK AL BRI 9 PR A R)) (stock code: 600234)
from July 2016 to September 2016, the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. Choi obtained a bachelor’s degree of
business administration (Magna Cum Laude) from Wichita State University
in 1995 and a master's degree of science from the University of lllinois at
Urbana Champaign in 1996, both of which are in the United States of
America. He has also obtained a doctoral degree of business administration
from the City University of Hong Kong in 2013.

Dr. Choi is the sole shareholder and the sole director of Head and Shoulders
Direct Investment Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn is the sole shareholder of
Brighten Path Limited, the controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules). Dr. Choi is deemed, by virtue of his interest in Brighten Path Limited,
to be interested in 764,223,268 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), representing approximately 55.82% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Ho Wong Meng, aged 48, joined the Company in September 2020,
and is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. He is also a member of the executive committee and the
nomination committee of the Company, and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ho possesses more than 20 years of
extensive experience and exceptional expertise in the gaming and
hospitality industry, mainly with the Genting Group. He also has a vast
knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of casinos
and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. Ho specialises in and
has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality industries. He
is a Certified Public Accountant who previously received intensive training
at KPMG Peat Marwick Malaysia. Mr. Ho is the executive chairman and
director of Frontier Capital Group Limited, which was previously listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX code: FCG).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, aged 50, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2017. She is also the chairman of the nomination
committee, and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. Lu has over 20 years of experience in
investment banking, capital market and risk management. She was the
head of equities of China Renaissance Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
("China Renaissance”) between 2014 and 2016 and was responsible for
equity research, sales and trading, distribution and operation of both Hong
Kong and the United States of America equity markets. Prior to joining
China Renaissance, she was a deputy chief executive officer of China Life
Franklin Asset Management Co., Limited and was responsible for its
investment, research, product development, marketing and distribution as
well as administrative duties. She also worked for Blackrock Asset
Management North Asia Limited and Deutsche Securities Asia Limited in
her professional career. She was an executive director of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8271) from September 2007 to
September 2009. She obtained her bachelor’s degree in commerce from
the University of Toronto in 1994. She is a charterholder of Chartered
Financial Analyst and currently a responsible officer of Parantoux Capital
Limited for type 9 regulated activity (asset management) registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene, aged 63, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a Master's Degree
in Business Administration and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in the
finance and banking industry and acts or/and acted as director of a number
of private and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Ha is the director of a
certified public accountants corporate practice in Hong Kong. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of China Touyun Tech
Group Limited (stock code: 1332) and Planetree International Development
Limited (stock code: 613). He also served as an independent non-executive
director of Longhui International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1007) from
January 2016 to August 2020. The shares of these companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lau Ka Ho, aged 42, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director in June 2020. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Master’s degree in business administration from
The University of lowa and a Master's degree in corporate governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators). He is also a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and holds a Diploma in Company Direction. He has
more than 15 years of experience in corporate management, corporate
finance and corporate secretarial areas. Mr. Lau is an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited
(“Prosperous Future”) (Stock Code: 1259). He was previously the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Prosperous Future from May
2019 to December 2019, the deputy chief financial officer and the
company secretary of Peace Map Holding Limited (Stock Code: 402) from
April 2013 to November 2018 and the company secretary of AVIC
International Holding (HK) Limited (Stock Code: 232) from May 2018 to
December 2018. The shares of these companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Chi Wai, aged 42, joined the Group in January 2019 and is the
chief financial officer of the Company. He is responsible for the accounting
and financial management of the Group. Mr. Lee holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. He has over 18 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance management in an international accounting firm.

24 Annual Report 4% 2019/20

SREEABR

BREE 25 R-ZE-NAF-AMALRE
C RARRIFBRE -  RERAKE 285 R
MHER FREREEAEIABHXEXR
T - RARBEKALARGTMASEREE
FR—HERESHMEBAER 8FZEN &
RS E TR -



The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 78 of this
annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2020 (for the fifteen months ended 30 June 2019: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
6 to 19 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 40% and 42%
respectively of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 235 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15
and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of the principal properties of the Group are set out on page 236
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2020, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company'’s articles
of association (the “Articles”), amounted to approximately HK$375,271,000.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 83 of this annual report and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year, donations were made by the Group amounted to Peso
188,146.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned with effect from 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (appointed with effect from 1 June 2020)
Mr. Sun Jiong (resigned with effect from 1 June 2020)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles and the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene,
being an independent non-executive Director, shall retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
"AGM") to be held on Thursday, 3 December 2020. The retiring Director,
being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, each of Mr. Lau Ka Ho and
Mr. Ho Wong Meng who was appointed as a new Director with effect from
1 June 2020 and 1 September 2020 respectively, shall hold office until the
forthcoming AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
"Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 24 of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, Mr. Ha Kee Choy
Eugene and Mr. Lau Ka Ho. a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO"),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

EERFETHRAENALE R EHABR
§7§Zﬂ%}\ BRI REFZERR
pind

BRTXHEEN RZZ_TFRA=1tH %
EEFRARAERTBRAEBBERANRARNEL
MEEEE (ERXREBAENE(ESF LY
B0 (TBH RG] ExvER) 2 ki - 1
R REST - BAERBES MG HIE XV
HBE7 MFE 8D RMENAME NN E MR P2
MDA R (BRESRIEZE S M RIIER
BRRIEREF A 2B IOXR) + FREE
75 M EEARDIZE 352 (BB A X IR is B it 2 £
MEEIORE  WRBARARAN 2 EFETE
R HHIRESTRIZA G AN R A S8 32 P 2 (1]

AR -

Long positions in the Shares KRB 2HFE
Number of Shares
R B
Approximate
percentage
of the
Personal Corporate number of
Name of Director interest interest Total issued Shares
BT
ROEE
EEnA EAfERE ARER w5 WPYESH
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley SEREE T ([21E L)) - 764,223,268 764,223,268 55.82%
(“"Dr. Choi") (Note)
(Ktat)
Note:  These Shares were held by Brighten Path Limited (‘Brighten Path"), a company  ff#3t : £ % % 5 £ Brighten Path Limited ([ Brighten Path |) 4%

wholly-owned by Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited ("Head and
Shoulders”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Choi, an executive Director.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2020, so far as is known to the
Directors or chief executives of the Company, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder

RRER

Brighten Path
Brighten Path

Head and Shoulders
Head and Shoulders

Mediastar International Limited
("Mediastar”)

Mediastar International Limited
([ Mediastar|)

Sky Warrior Investments Limited
("Sky Warrior”)

Sky Warrior Investments Limited
([ 'sky Warrior |)

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
("CTFHL")

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
(TCTFHLD)

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
("CTFC")

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
(fcrred)

Capacity/Nature of
Interest

54 ERtE

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Interest of a controlled
corporation
e i NCI o £

Beneficial owner

Emfa A

Interest of a controlled
corporation
SAEHIA R 2

Interest of a controlled
corporation
SAEHIA R 2

Interest of a controlled
corporation
SAEHA R 2
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BRTIXHEEN R_ZE-TFA=1+8 %
EEHARAEBTHRABHNA BEZERARQ
RIEBITHABI  RARWEETMALTNE -
RABERIRGOSIABERMD S - EERIEES K
ERBIEXVEE 2 M3 DEIESBERMAR AR RTE L
ERBAR  KERARAIRIEES KB EEG
FBEREFE 2 B MH e -

v
Approximate
percentage of
the number of
Number of Shares issued Shares Note
HEBITRA
RoEE FEMHEIL Wi
764,223,268 55.82%
764,223,268 55.82% Note 1
Hiat
69,800,000 5.10%
69,800,000 5.10% Note 2
KtaE2
69,800,000 5.10% Note 3
Ktat 3
69,800,000 5.10% Note 4
Ktat 4
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Long positions in the Shares (Continued)

Capacity/Nature of
Name of Shareholder Interest
BREER B RERME

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited ("CYTFH-II")

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited ([ CYTFH-II])

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited ("CYTFH")

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited ([ CYTFHI)

Notes:

Interest of a controlled

corporation
ES VNG o E

Interest of a controlled

corporation
S VNG o E

m

30

Brighten Path was wholly-owned by Head and Shoulders which in turn was
wholly-owned by Dr. Choi. Accordingly, each of Head and Shoulders and Dr. Choi
was deemed to be interested in 764,223,268 Shares held by Brighten Path under
the SFO.

Mediastar was wholly-owned by Sky Warrior. Accordingly, under the SFO, Sky
Warrior was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

Sky Warrior was wholly-owned by CTFHL. Accordingly, under the SFO, CTFHL was
deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

CTFC held approximately 81.03% direct interest in CTFHL. Accordingly, under the
SFO, CTFC was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

CYTFH-II held approximately 46.65% direct interest in CTFC. Accordingly, under the
SFO, CYTFH-Il was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

CYTFH held approximately 48.98% direct interest in CTFC. Accordingly, under the
SFO, CYTFH was deemed to be interested in 69,800,000 Shares held by Mediastar.

Annual Report £#% 2019/20

RN ART IR RABRER G 2 R R

RB ()

RBRB2HRE (&)
Approximate
percentage of
the number of
Number of Shares issued Shares Note
e RTREG
igvig 4= HEMHEIE Wi
69,800,000 5.10% Note 5
KtaEs
69,800,000 5.10% Note 6
Ktite
Bitat -

(1) Brighten Path F3 Head and Shoulders & # 74 * ifi Head
and Shoulders Bl E 2B A - At - RIEZSH
R HRE 1645) + Head and Shoulders & 218 + 5 A8 e
Brighten Path FT# 764,223,268 B% A% 15 B 2% o

(2)  Mediastar F Sky Warrior 2 & A  FEItt » IRIEFH K
B A& - Sky Warrior 4 48 £ 7 Mediastar Ffr 69,800,000
MR DR A i o

()  SkyWarrior BCTFHLZ2 B A - Bt © IRIEFEH K
B+ CTFHL% 48 1B 7 Mediastar FT 3% 69,800,000 %
DA RER -

(@) CIFCRACTFHLIF B 4981.03% E M » AL @ IRIEFE
F REAEEDI - CTFCHAR YER Mediastar BT 69,800,000
R& P& R A RS o

(5)  CYTFH-IRA CTFCHE B 4946.65% B o B It - BIE
5 T BB & CYTFH-I 48 VE 7 Mediastar BT #5
69,800,000 A& A% 153 7 5 #E ok ©

6)  CYTFHRACTFCHEH 494898% EH i » At @ RIKES
K BRG] - CYTFH A 43 VB 7 Mediastar T 33§ 69,800,000
PRI R R o



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended
30 June 2020 were as follows:
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Number of share options
BREZE
At At
1July 30 June Exercise
Date of grant Capacity 2019 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2020 Validity period price
S R®
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4 December 2017 Business partners 13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
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13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
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13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
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“E—tF+ZANAZE
“T-HF+ZA=R
13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 4 December 2017 to 194
3 December 2027
“E—tF+ZANAZE
“THF+ZA=R
9July 2018 Advisor 13,691,572 - - - - 13691572 9July 2018 0 8 July 2028 157
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of the duty of his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Convertible Bond as disclosed,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The following Director is considered to have interests in the business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules, particulars of which are
set out below:

FEAFTRIRIRS

RIEMA - SEEFRESARBRITRERE
e - AESUBREMTAM S RISH R
ELASRMAND BA KR BX A
ERAX - BABRAT 2 BERBFESHNE
RATERR ML R ZAETIRE -

ARRENFARBEEREERRE  REERA
RAMBARERRMEENRE -

R EE RS
MR AT 2 PR AR B R TR AR S -
7S (8130 45 BT 7 S A 2 AR o o

FA-

EENEHE. RHFNGER

BRI ERSN  RFEEEE IR FREMRRE
ARBHEEMMERTRET LEMNESHE
ECHAEERERYAMENETRAAERNER
EXEE THHALD -

BB RET I Z EREHY

BRREEE SN - AR RS E AT AT B B 8 A B 22 AR A
SRl H A a] B ) 2 8 3 A L 0 6 A B s
FRERNRRENERGL

EENHBRBDAELS

R ETTARA - TR EE AR B B o R
REEEBBRRTEERHT 2 LB T RAR
- SERIIMT -

Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business

Name of Director of the Group
HEBRERELAEBMEBER
EEgE HARERRFE2ERER

Mr. Ho Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and
its subsidiary
Frontier Capital Group Limited

KNEWB AR

Ho Wong Meng %t 4

Note:

Group Limited.
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Mr. Ho Wong Meng is interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group
Limited, representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital

Description of business of
the entity which is
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the
business of the Group
BIRREAEBELER
FARERRF2ERZ
E3 3

Gaming

B¥

Hrat -

Nature of interestin
the entity

REZERzERME

Executive chairman and
director

HITESRRES

Ho Wong Meng 5& 4 74 Frontier Capital Group Limited
241,443,500 5 [i% 10 F ¥ B R a5 0 AR E R Frontier

Capital Group Limited B E#7TA% 15 15% ©



DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
(Continued)

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the business of these entities.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following connected transactions during the year
ended 30 June 2020:

Sale and Purchase Agreement and Loan Agreement

On 14 February 2020, the Company and Next Leader Fund, L.P. (as the
purchaser) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Newworth. Newworth is principally engaged in the operation of Wigan
Athletic Football Club which is a professional association football club
based in Wigan, Greater Manchester, England and a sports stadium, namely
the DW Stadium, with conference and other facilities. The total
consideration for the sale shares was GBP17,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$177,235,000).

All conditions precedent under the sale and purchase agreement had been
fulfilled and subsequently the completion took place on 29 May 2020.

In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, upon completion,
the Company (as the lender) and Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited (as the
borrower) entered into a loan agreement in an aggregate principal amount
of GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$243,737,000), and the
deed of guarantee was also entered into by the purchaser in favour of the
Company along with the loan agreement.

Immediately subsequent to the entering into of the loan agreement, the
pre-existing loan in the amount GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$243,737,000) has been repaid to the Company, and as a
result, Wigan Athletic AF.C. Limited is no longer indebted to the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Sale and Purchase Agreement and Loan Agreement
(Continued)

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, being the chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company, through a
company, subscribed 51% of the limited partnership interests in the
purchaser and acted as one of the limited partners of the purchaser.
Accordingly, the purchaser was an associate of a connected person of the
Company, and thus a connected person of the Company, therefore the
sale and purchase agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Upon completion, the purchaser indirectly
held approximately 86.24% of the entire issued ordinary shares of Wigan
Athletic AF.C. Limited, whereas Newworth became a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
entering into of the loan agreement (including the deed of guarantee)
constituted connected transactions for the Company.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18
November 2019, 13 December 2019, 14 February 2020, 2 March 2020, 20
March 2020, 17 April 2020, 5 May 2020 and 29 May 2020; and the circular of
the Company dated 8 May 2020.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
30 June 2020.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company did not have any
other connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 30
June 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of
the Shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25.0% of the
Company's total number of issued Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles, or under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, retired and did
not seek for re-appointment as the auditor of the Company with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM held on 27 September 2017. Ernst &
Young ("EY
auditor of the Company following the retirement of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants. EY has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 12 April 2018 as the Company and EY could
not reach a consensus on the overseas audit arrangements in respect of

"), Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the new

the Group following the proposed acquisition in the United Kingdom. With
the recommendation of the audit committee of the Company, BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the new auditor of
the Company with effect from 12 April 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of EY and was subsequently re-appointed as
auditor of the Company at the AGM held on 5 September 2018. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures and to complying with the statutory
and regulatory requirements with an aim to maximising the Shareholders’
values and interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency
and accountability. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the following
deviation:

Code Provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors, as
equal board members, should give the board and any committees on
which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. Generally they should also attend general meetings to gain
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, an independent non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4 December
2019 as she had another business engagement at the time of such
meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code on Securities Transactions”), the standard of which is
no less than the required standard provided in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code").

The Company, having made specific enquiries of all Directors, was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard provided in the
Model Code and the Code on Securities Transactions throughout the year
ended 30 June 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) takes primary responsibility for
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established, and is responsible for the management of the Board and
ensures that all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising
at Board meetings. The chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) is primarily responsible for the overall management of
the Group and oversight of the management. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are clearly established. In addition, the Company has established
the executive committee, the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the remuneration committee with respective terms of reference to
assist the Board in focusing on specific matters, fulfill their roles and
functions delegated by the Board, and make any necessary
recommendations of the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five Directors, of
whom two are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The names of the Directors during the year and up to
the date of this annual report are set out below:

Executive Directors
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Wong Meng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas (resigned with effect from 1 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Lu Gloria Vi

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (appointed with effect from 1 June 2020)
Mr. Sun Jiong (resigned with effect from 1 June 2020)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship among the
members of the Board are set out in the section headed “Board of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 24 of this annual report.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter should
be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules), have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at that Board meeting.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 30 June 2020. Notice
of not less than 14 days was given to all the Directors for the regular Board
meetings and the Directors were given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for the regular Board meetings.

The attendance of each Director at the said five Board meetings, the AGM
held on 4 December 2019 and the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (the "EGM") held on 29 May 2020 are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman) EHEAEE L+ (E/FE)

Mr. Ho Wong Meng (ete? Ho Wong Meng %t 4 #1)
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTBAEE)

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas o2 BRI o A (i)

Independent non-executive Directors Bk HITEE

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi PEZEz+

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene BEHA%AE

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (e BIR 5 de A i)

Mr. Sun Jiong Mee TRMA e A )
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Notes:

Q) Mr. Ho Wong Meng was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 September 2020.

(2) Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 September 2020.

(3) Mr. Lau Ka Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 1 June 2020.

(4) Mr. Sun Jiong resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
1 June 2020.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 4 December 2019 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the year.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors are subject to the aforesaid retirement requirements
and are appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Each of Ms. Lu Gloria Yi, Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene and Mr. Lau Ka Ho, who
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his/her appointment and is subject to the
Articles.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board’'s committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
year ended 30 June 2020 and all of them had participated in continuing
professional development activities by attending the training courses,
seminars, workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the year ended 30 June 2020.
A summary of the training received by each of the Directors during the
year ended 30 June 2020 is as follows:

BITES
A
Ho Wong Meng 5t 4

Executive Directors
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley
Mr. Ho Wong Meng

Independent non-executive Directors BAKHITES
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi Fezrz+

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene BHET R4

Mr. Lau Ka Ho BRzEAE
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley (Chairman of the Executive Committee)
and Mr. Ho Wong Meng. The primary duties of the Executive Committee
are, inter alia, to advise the Board in formulating policies in relation to the
business operations of the Group, supervise the management to
implement the policies laid down by the Board, make recommendations to
the Board as to the Group's business plans, and oversee the management
and the daily operations of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive Directors as at
the date of this annual report, namely Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lu Gloria Yi and Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene,
with written terms of reference which are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing the
remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group, and the remuneration of the non-executive
Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group’s performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. During
the year ended 30 June 2020, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review the remuneration policy of the Company and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

Committee members
ZEERE

Mr. Lau Ka Ho (Chairman) Mt

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi FEZE iz 4

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene EEA R4

Mr. Sun Jiong o2 TN 4 A (er2)

Notes:

m Mr. Lau Ka Ho was appointed as the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 June 2020.

(2) Mr. Sun Jiong resigned as the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 June 2020.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprises two independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director as at the date of this annual report, namely Ms. Lu Gloria
Yi (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene and
Mr. Ho Wong Meng, with written terms of reference which are available on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to review the
structure, size and the composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations to
the Board on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.

In regard to the criteria for evaluating and selecting candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall consider two types of qualifications, as
follows:

l. Characteristics of individual director

Integrity and accountability

Informed judgment

Prudence and maturity

Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee deems
appropriate

Il. Competenciesin the following areas to ensure the
Board’s overall suitability

Accounting and finance

Law

Industry knowledge

Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee deems
appropriate

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board;

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to enable
the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time and
commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination Committee,
the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria and recommend the
most competent candidate to the Board. The Nomination Committee shall
also consider the number of board positions they hold in other firms. After
the Nomination Committee reviewed and considered the candidates, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any
proposed changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Detailed background information in relation to potential candidate should
be provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board’s approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter to act
as a Director.

In accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules, (i) every Director
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
all retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii)
any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
general meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election at the general meeting of the Company. For those who offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM or the other general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall take into account the
fulfillment of duties, contribution, and attendance of Board meetings and
general meetings. The Nomination Committee shall also access whether
the retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board. Based on the recommendations made by
the Nomination Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the AGM
or other general meeting of the Company, and provide available
biographical information of the retiring Directors in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders to make
informed decision on the re-election of such retiring Directors at the AGM
or other general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members possess the
relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business operations of the
Group with several of them also possess professional qualifications. The
Nomination Committee considers that an appropriate mix of skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the Board is maintained
and therefore no measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to
assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor its
implementation; to review the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; to recommend the appointment of new Directors; and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are
set out below:

TREGHRE

RBEEE(H)
BE_Z-_ZFAA=+HILEE RELEEQ
W Ed URIEEEMEE  ARK
@&-%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&i&%»ﬁm I
EZRIA: b  RNEEELTIEBER
EERH 1T Mﬂa FHTEEZBIHND
ERZAHES UREBEEARABRTBEA
SRR RIEEYER -

REZBERBZHFEREHIINT

Committee members Attendance

ZEENE HEIRE

Ms. Lu Gloria Yi (Chairman) BEZeir 4 (/%) 1

Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene EHAEAE Al

Mr. Ho Wong Meng ®e ) Ho Wong Meng 4t 4 (4 7) 0/0

Mr. Chan Chun Yiu Thomas %2 Fe SE MR 4 AE (iit2) 11

Notes: Hiat -

1) Mr. Ho Wong Meng was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee (1) Ho Wong Meng e £ ELZ T AIREEZEEKE B
with effect from 1 September 2020. TEFNA—BBEK -

(2)  Mr.Chan Chun Yiu Thomas resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee  (2)  FRABGLLERHTIRZZEEKE AT _TF N A
with effect from 1 September 2020. —HBEY -

AUDIT COMMITTEE BZEEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors, as at the date of this annual report namely Mr. Ha Kee Choy
Eugene (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lu Gloria Yi and Mr. Lau Ka
Ho, with written terms of reference which are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company. One of the members
of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualification as defined under the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the relationship with the
external auditor, to review the financial information of the Group, and to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal controls and
risk management functions of the Group.

RAFHAY  EREZESHEB=RBILIFH
TEFMEK NEEALSLE(BRZEEXR)
F;‘Ejﬁﬁi&% St HEmMBESE N

IBERARAREE - BEREZEGET —HK

,\,\ﬁtmiﬁﬁ'JPﬁﬁ;ﬁZmz%% AR - &
REEEZIZRAR/(HTERE) EEAAR R

SNERZEEN 2 BR - BRARBZMBER - A
Kigst REBAREZ MBERERF - WEREE
KEBRERINEE °
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the year and had reviewed the interim report and the annual report
of the Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

BREST (#)

FR BRZEGERITZRNGRE  UWRHAE
BMBERET  NFEEREAREERS W
SRR AN FRARRREERE (2
EARKE PR 2FEE) - B SNEZHREN 2
FHRERGR YMEFSRHERLNES -
FR - BERZBENGEINERBEETTIOR
MR &% - AR A 8 2 BE 75 B A2 Fr 82 R P
B YERMARRZFHIRENRFR -

Committee members Attendance
EZEEHE R
Mr. Ha Kee Choy Eugene (Chairman) BEHETRAE(FE) 3/3
Ms. Lu Gloria Yi Fezoz+ 3/3
Mr. Lau Ka Ho (ere? B3R = 4 A (1) 0/0
Mr. Sun Jiong "e? TN 4 A (Wix2) 33

Notes:

(1) Mr. Lau Ka Ho was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 1 June 2020.

) Mr. Sun Jiong resigned as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
1 June 2020.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the remuneration in relation to audit
services paid or payable to the auditor of the Company was approximately
HK$2,150,000 and the remuneration in relation to non-audit services
(including review of interim results, tax consultancy and other non-audit
services) paid or payable to the auditor of the Company and its affiliated
firm was approximately HK$950,000.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to
time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the
Group; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. In addition, the Group has adopted a
policy to handle and disseminate the inside information of the Group,
which was designed based on “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

During the year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm to perform the internal audit function to carry out the review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered the controls over the financial, operational and compliance of the
Group. The internal audit function of the Group considered the scale of
operations of the Group and resources available and its review was based
on tests of controls, inspection of the related documents and discussion
with the relevant personnel of the Group.

After the internal audit function conducted the review, the internal audit
function submitted its review report to the Audit Committee with the key
audit findings and recommendations to improve the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group which were also presented at the
Board meeting. The internal audit function concluded that no significant
deficiency in the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group was found during the review.

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group'’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and include the
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor of the Company on the
Independent Auditor's Report are set out on pages 70 to 77 of this annual
report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Chun Kit ("Mr. Wong"), is engaged and appointed by the
Company from an external secretarial services provider as its Company
Secretary. The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Dr.
Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, an executive Director. Mr. Wong confirmed that he
has received 15 hours professional trainings under the requirement of Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Articles and applicable
legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and an EGM shall be held within two (2)
months after the date of the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of the date of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene an EGM, the Shareholder(s) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by such
Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to convene an
EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company to such Shareholder(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (Continued)

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

AMENDMENT OF THE COMPANY’S
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There have been no changes in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year ended 30 June 2020. The consolidated version of the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles is available
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company's
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.
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REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARD

Pursuant to Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of the Listing Rules, International Entertainment
Corporation and its subsidiaries reviewed, identified and disclosed herein
the material environmental and social issues and aspects, which are
considered to have significant impacts and are relevant to the Group's
business and stakeholders for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of the hotel operations,
leasing of properties equipped with entertainment equipment, football
club operations and live poker events operations. The Group has a
responsibility to maximise shareholder returns and this is one of the key
elements to reinforce the foundation of the Group for long-term
development and success. This is achieved not only through the Group
having financial strength but also through investing in employees and
wider social practices.

This ESG Report aims to share our key sustainability performances. Our
reporting boundary is limited to Hong Kong and Philippines unless
otherwise specified. The Group provides an overview of the environment,
community, employment and labour practices and operation convention
for the year ended 30 June 2020, with coverage of the Company’s lease
operations and its hotel hospitality business in Manila, Philippines (the
“Selected Business Segments”).

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To better understand stakeholders’ concerns and expectations, the Group
has adopted a multi-pronged approach to engage its key stakeholders on
a regular basis through various channels. We have striven to ensure the
information disclosed herein is in compliance with the four reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency under the
ESG Reporting Guide required by the Stock Exchange. We will continue to
strengthen its collection of reporting information, so as to enhance its
performance of social responsibilities and relevant disclosures. The
following table summarises stakeholders’ participation channels and their
expectations and demands. While we pay attention to all ESG issues which
affect our businesses and stakeholders, we have identified the material
issues in each sector of our business which we have paid additional focus
on. Materiality of these issues is identified through stakeholder
engagement exercises, management reviews and industry analysis.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

R ESRREEMNFE @)

Stakeholders Participation Channels Topics concerned

& SRRE BEERE
Shareholders/Inventors General meetings Financial results
B REE Annual reports Sustainability business development
Direct communication Environmental responsibility
Group website Company transparency
&N IR E S
FHR AREEBER
HEER RERME
AN E APk NEERE
Clients Customer service Customer satisfaction survey and feedback
=P Daily communication Protection and management on customer information
Environmental responsibility
Customer service hotline and email enquiry
PR BERmMEERE MR E
HEER® EPERRIERER
RIREME
BPRERGEREHEH
Employees Regular performance appraisals Career development
EE8 Frequent meetings Health and safety
Training programs Remuneration and benefits
Sustainability development
E R EXER
BEEE BENZR
H )l R 12 Hr i e k@ A
AREER
Suppliers Close communication Corporate contribution
e Order/contract execution Product quality

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

i, FEBUR AR 8

Donation and support to the
community

A4t 8 1 Bk R BRI SR
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group dedicates its effort in minimising the impact of the Group's
business operations on the environment and believes that it is responsible
to protect the environment. It emphasises the need of conserving natural
resources and energy as well as minimising waste production and
greenhouse gas emissions. The Group embraces a responsible approach in
environment protection and implements environmental protection
policies to meet the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations.
The environmental protection policies focus on three areas. They are
emissions, use of resources, and the environment and natural resources.

The adopted environmental policies with a focus to ensure full compliance
with applicable legislation and requirements, promote environmental
awareness among staff, adopt eco-friendly practices in daily operation,
dispose in an environmental responsible way and reduce waste where
practicable, reusing and recycling materials.

The Group identified the following material issues of environmental
protection, which are discussed the actions the Group has been taken for

as below.

Environmental protection

Energy consumption and emission

(i) UseLED lightin the hotel areas and guestrooms
(i) Install variable-frequency drive to regulate motors
(i) Reduce numbers of light tubes

(iv)  Drive less and carpool

Waste consumption and wastewater management

(i) Dispose the waste by Wet/Organic and Dry/Non Organic
categories

(i) Recycle the waste by type, with separate containers for metal,
paper and plastic

(i) Clean and sanitise the plastic bins for the waste after time of
usage before putting it back to its area of origin

(iv)  Install sewage treatment plant and equipment to recycle the
plant effluent

(v)  Recorded disposal of used oil and took pictures prior disposal
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Rk dSREGRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued) RIBRE &)
Energy consumption and emission BEREFE R BER

In any case, reducing in energy consumption is the important steps to save
the environment as well as the operating costs of the Group's business
operations. The following table shows the electricity, diesel, liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG") and refrigerant consumption of the Group's business
operations in the Philippines during the year under review.

In addition to the reduction of waste production and the conservative use
of energy or natural resources, the Group promotes the minimisation of
greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group. To this end, the Group
encourages the environmental care in its working environment. Unit of fuel
consumed — 1 Kilogram (“Kg") of gas consumed is equal to 48 mega joules
("MJ") for Towngas or 46MJ for LPG.

PMERIE T » B B IR H FE R R & IR IE SR A
AEEREEBRREENAZEEZ—F - TRE
TREBFEARKERIFREREXBE
o - Re AR (BRI AmR]) REL B ZH
e -

RO BEYESL R EREERS B RERIN
AEBETHESREASEEE 2 REREBHEN -
Rt - AEBRERE TERRN ERFIRE o
MEDEFEEN 1 TR TR REEREERN
48IKFEE (KER DERS46KEFT RICAHR -

Tonnes
Mg
2020 2019
Emission BER —E-EF —E-NEF
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) RE2H (NOX) 29,637 48,776
Sulphur oxides (SOx) BRE b (SOx) 251 297
(restated)
(fE%))
Particulate Matter (PM) BIZRLT (PM) - 1
1July2019to 1 April 20180
30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—ZE-hEF —E2-N\F
tA—RAZ mMA—HZ
—B-EF —E-NF
Energy Consumption BER N E A~NA=1H NA=+TH Bl
Electricity BN 9,765,452 14,480,259  Kilowatt hours
TR
LPG BALAER 160,249 263,739 Kilograms
Fr
Diesel fuel B 6,841 25426  Kilograms
(restated) T2
(s &%)
Refrigerant U278 232 841  Kilograms
Fr
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Waste management

Apart from the smart use energy as mentioned above, the Group
encourages its employees to reduce water and paper consumption,
promote the use of electronic copies for filing and reading purpose, and
collect waste materials which can be recycled for use. The waste water
treatment system were functional and none of any major interruptions due
to such as equipment breakdown or maintenance in the operation
throughout the year. We applied and submitted Quarterly Self-Monitoring
Report ("QSM Report”) to The Philippines’ Laguna Lake Development
Authority (LLDA) in quarterly by complies with the Republic Act 4850, the
renewed LLDA Discharged Permit was obtained on 23 June 2020. The
Group is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous waste, and
there was no incidence of non-compliance of the relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations in the Philippines.

The following tables shows the data of greenhouse gas emissions covered
the business operations of the Group in the Philippines during the year
under review.

Resources usage and emission ERAERFEN
Water 7K

Paper R

Resources recycled 2 EKREIR
Paper AR

Plastic B

Glass bottles BIEMm

Can 4

Qil H

RiE d2RERHRS

RIE(RE (®)
BEYEE
B b RS BA 5 B AR SN - AN EEENE B R A A

B BN LMEEIEEAETER UK
WEREIRARAZER - 5 KBEERFERARS
A AREERFETERRGEREIETREMA
FRERF IEEEBR - RM2EFHMBE
(Republic Act) 2 4850 fék + & Z= [Z [A] The Philippines’
Laguna Lake Development Authority (LLDA) B3 55 & 12
REFEREERS(FTEERESERE]) - I
R-T-TFE XA -+ = BEEZLDABINRET
& (LLDA Discharged Permit) o Zx 5 B R 2138 LA &=
REEEMES  TEBUSEEERGRELRE

NOEMRZ NEREN -
TREATROBEFEARNEERIFEBELEER
FrEE 2 R EREEEIE -
1 July 2019 to 1 April 2018 to
30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
tA—HZ mMA—H=Z
—EC-BE —E-NF
A~NA=1+H NA=TH B
203,857 272,315  Cubic metres
AV
20,560 24615  Kilograms
T
1July 2019 to 1 April 2018 to
30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
tA—RA=Z MA—HZ
—B-EF —E-NF
AA=1+H NA=+H Bl
20,560 24,615  Kilograms
T
5,321 7,163  Kilograms
Fr
110 600  Kilograms
T
2,759 3310  Kilograms
T
5,450 13,955  Litres
AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

Waste management (Continued)

Resources non recycled FEWEIR
Wet =t
Dry g7 1%

Greenhouse gas emission

Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emission includes carbon dioxide ("CO2"), and
nitrous oxide ("NO2"). The major sources of air and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions are energy consumptions, including the fuel consumed by the
corporate vehicles in respect of tour buses of the hotel and private cars and
purchased electricity used in offices and the hotel daily operations. Types
of relevant emission data are set out as follows.

RIE(RE (®)
BYER (&)

1July 2019 to 1 April 2018 to

30 June 2020 30June 2019  Units
—E-NF —FN\F
tA—H=ZE MA—B=Z=
—ECRF —E-NF
AA=t+H NA=+tH B

347,713 256,052 Kilograms
TR
14,258 25,590  Kilograms
TR
BEREHER
BEERB(CEEREDINERE_SLHRT R

D E—ft—A(—8Et=-8) - =R
EREHERZ EE2RRBERERE - BIEBEER
BEE AT%%&M%iﬁﬁﬁﬁWﬂM&%f Lo
RERHEARELERAMBEZES - HEH
RERESINT -

CO2 equivalent emission (kg)

—GtREREE (TR)
2020 2019
GHG Emission EEREHERK —E_EE —E—NE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) ®) BEEHER (SE — ) e 501,522 853,559
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) ot BEIRE EE BER (S8 E — ) e 5,838,764 8,657,747
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) et Hoqth B HE Ak (S =) e 152,083 205,088
Notes: (i) Direct emissions (Scope 1) arose mainly from the fuel consumption. Ktz - G) BEEN(EE—) 2 EZHRRBMEERE -

(i) Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) arose mainly from the electricity
consumption.

(ifi) Other indirect emissions arose mainly from paper usage.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group committed to provide an inclusive and harmonious workplace
which provides equal opportunity to all employees regardless of gender,
age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation, disability, or other aspects of
diversity. The Group identified the following material issues of employment
and labour practices, which are discussed as below.

Employment and labours practices

Employment

Obtain the certificate of compliance on general labour standards
issued by Department of labour and employment in National Capital
Region

Human resource profile

Analysis the structure and turnover of employees

Health, safety and security

Monitor to the injury and incidents

Development and training

Provide training to all level staffs

Anti-child and forced labour

Ensure all employees are fulfilling the job requirements underlying
their respective positions

RiE d2RERHRS

BlE&5% TER
AEBBNRE—BRARMEZTESH - 5
SRERRHUTSHE  MTWAER - Fit-
B R R RRREMB TS E
AEEBREUTEMESTHRIEARR -
T IR -

ERERRZEIER
&=
/5 B K B B[R 45 T N {2 17 2B (Department
of labour and employment in National Capital

Region) & Hi 2 —RE THERIGRES

ANEREER

fef - Z2RIRE
ERXBREHER
TR Mg
AERE TRHEEI
RETR&HIST

BRERERNARSSABUZABIE

Fk
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1= 45

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment

We have programmes in place, such as our expanded honing skills in
hospitality programme in 2020 that specifically trains ethnic minority
youth. Our policy and processes are in place to ensure that reported
incidents of discrimination are heard and handled in a fair and appropriate
manner. We deal with these reports very seriously and encourage
reporting. In 2020 there were no reports of discrimination. In the spirit of
continuous improvement, we will roll out several initiatives in 2020 with
the aim of increasing awareness in this area.

We strictly follow the compliance with labour standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labour Code of the Philippines and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations and have a zero tolerance policy to unethical
employment terms involving child or forced labour. We have obtained the
certificate of compliance on general labour standards issued by
Department of labour and employment in National Capital Region since
2017. During the year, the Group do not aware of any business branch that
hire child or forced labour.

60 Annual Report 4% 2019/20

(RIER S TER @)

=R
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BEE WEHEIELER RS _TFUE
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RIE HERERKRE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) (BIERS T &8 #)

Our workforce BN ES

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had a total of 285 (2019: 338) employeesin  R-ZZE-_ZTEXA=1+H  ANEERLETER
the Selected Business Segments. The workforce categorised by gender,age D 2B 285 % (ZZE— N4 : 338K ) BB - 21t
groups, geographical region and employment type are depicted as below: Bl ~ FEE4E 5] - & REFEERNZE D Z2EE LY

m
No. of employees in
Selected Business Segments
RETXBIHEEAH
As at As at
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
R=BoBE R -_T-NF
ANA=1+H ~NA=1H
Total #Et 283 338
By gender IR
Male 5 176 209
Female 8 107 129
By age RER
18-30 years old 18 = 3075% 107 128
31-49 years old 3124958 144 180
50 or Over 50 years old 50 55481 50 B%, 32 30
By location b @
Hong Kong &5 13 12
Philippines JEEE 270 326
By employment category ZIERER
Executive/Senior level TBRAE / BHREEE 46 32
Middle level FRAREIRE 237 306
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Rk d2RERES

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Retaining talents

Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. To retain and
motivate employees, the Group offers competitive remuneration package.
Remuneration package is reviewed annually to reflect employees’
performance, experiences and market standards. Apart from salary
payments, other staff benefits included provident fund contributions,
medical insurance coverage and performance related discretionary
bonuses. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group recorded a
decrease in number of resigned staffs of approximately 119 employees
(2019: 97 employees).

(RIER S TER @)

BEREAL

BEDNAKEREEEE - H /%&EJME
AEBREAEBFNZH M\HL kST t¢
EH URREEXRSE %&%ﬁ&m%@ o R ¥
I R B THRNBEIBEHK - BERR

RERKRBEBBRBEL - BE_T _TFRA
=+HHLEFE  AEBEBERE TAZURADH 1195
BE(ZT—hF: 7%ER) -

No. of employees in
Selected Business Segments

RETEBRI>BEEAK
As at As at
30 June 2020 30June 2019
R-E—EfF —E-NF
ANA=1+H NAZ=ZTH
Total et 119 97
By gender 145
Male = 61 51
Female 8 58 46
By age R
18-30 years old 182 305% 38 49
31-49 years old 31 E495% 65 41
50 or Over 50 years old 50 2k 483 50 5%, 16 7
By location i &
Hong Kong &5 1 3
Philippines JFEE 118 94
By employment category ZIERER
Executive/Senior level TBRAER &R ERE 40 32
Middle level FRERERE 79 65
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Health, safety and security

The health, safety and security of guests and employees at our hotels, clubs
and properties remain a priority through effective systems and policies. In
Philippine we continue to deal with issues such as terrorism and/or social
unrest. Each operation has their own health and safety committee meeting
regularly to review performance and implement improvements. Our
operations have systems or management procedures in place that comply
with local regulations as a minimum and where possible to supplement
with alignment or compliance to the internationally recognised
occupational health and safety management standard.

In 2020, we continued our efforts to enhance our security and safety
management and systems. Specifically, we conducted a gap analysis to
identify improvements in our operations towards meeting the international
benchmark on security management. We will be implementing the
findings of our analysis in 2020 and onwards.

We continued to build a safety-first culture and engage employees to keep
incidents as low as possible. During the year under review, we do not
aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had
a significant impact on it relating to employment, health and safety, and
labour standards as mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide. We
successfully achieved our goal of zero fatalities.

RiE d2RERHRS

(RIEXRS TER &)

e R2RRE
HPVEBE R HIE REE - 5 - B R
MENEEREENRE  ZE2RREREE -
RIERE  RMEBRERHEIER SHLED
BEME SXGUEHRTAMERERELER
Begd  NWei RALETHREEE - LAN
EBHREEITAEHERNGIRREREFF
YHATERA T ERETER AR BEER
RE2EBIZTE -

RIE-ZF BFPEBERNRARTEERR
g o BRI - BIPPETEED T IABBIRFINE
BHERZEET AR A BRERIF L SOER
i BN T _FFRZREMOITER -

BMEEEYLE2F X TRAEKREES
EHRRERD c REEFE BT TMNEBEET
AN EF A KA DI IE R B R EES B -
B2 M B4EMEFTILENE - R REZE NS T .|
BREATE - BMEKNENTHTHEZ -

Annual Report & #§ 2019/20 63



BIFRIREEF R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rk d2RERES

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Development and training

Investing in our people is the most important investment we can make for
the sustainability of our business. The opportunity to learn and grow is also
a key motivating factor for employees, especially among younger staff. We
offer various management development and acceleration programmes to
enhance the skills and knowledge catering to the different job levels of our
employees. We will continue to seek out new ways to increase
effectiveness of our programmes.

The Group values the mutual growth and development with employees.
Therefore, the Group pushes forward career and staff development. All staff
is being encouraged to take advantage of the staff development programs,
which included provision of in-house and external training on
management/supervisory skills, technical skills, customer services skills etc.,
to consolidate and enhance employees’ knowledge and competitiveness.
During the year under review, 100% of employees were trained including
whom taking part as senior to general.

Employment Categories EEER
Senior =R
Middle-level PR
General —M%

Anti-child and forced labour

We are well aware that child labour and forced labour violate fundamental
human rights. The Group engage in nor tolerate any use of child or forced
labour and specifically restrict employ children below 18 years old. The
Human Resources Department ensure all employees are fulfilling the job
requirements underlying their respective positions. Apart from it, the
Group regularly review the employment practice and guidelines on staff
recruitment to ensure that it is in full compliance with the Employment
Ordinance and Republic Act No. 9231 and other regulations related to,
among other things, prevention of child labour and forced labour.
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2020 Average
training hours
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—E-%%F
25K FH
IR

789.3
1,797.7
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group devotes its best effort to provide a privilege experience for its
customers. To this end, it commits to offering quality services to its
customers and meets their needs in order to retain its customers. The
Group takes a responsibility approach in its operation practices and takes
every opportunity to improve its services to strive for the best value for its
customers. This section would focus on supply chain management, anti-
corruption and product responsibility. The Group identified the following
material issues of operating practices, which are discussed as below.

Operating practices

Supply chain management

(M) Ensure the stability of out supply chain

Customer privacy and data

(i) Follow the compliance requirements of regulating body
Managing anti-corruption risk

() Observe the highest standards of ethical, personal and
professional conduct

Products and services quality
(M Take care of all complaints from our stakeholders
(i) Ensure all linen and amenities in a good condition

Supply chain management

Supplier relationships are an important part of our reputation and brand.
We seek to buy at competitive rates, but not at the expense of labour
standards, human rights, health impacts or the environment. We work
closely with our suppliers to ensure we meet our high quality and
comprehensive standards. We know our decisions can impact on our wider
communities, so we have included these supply chain initiatives under this
section.

We strive not to over-rely on a specific supplier so as to ensure the stability
of out supply chain. Choosing business partners, our procurement and
operations teams work with reputable suppliers who help us provide the
best quality products, with a consideration of our sustainability
specifications and aligning with our Supply Chain Code of Conduct. The
following table is an overview of data in relation to supply chain
management.

RiE d2RERHRS

R A

AEEBEMEEATPIEHEZER - JtmE -
AEBARSEPRHEEERS  WinERES
KABRBERE - AREREEEMNTHRRAR
Ehé EESERSRAERBUBERE, R
HREBE FHHINHEEERE  REB
NREMBE AEERRATKEEINERE
B YR N e

KB
HEEEE

() HEREEENREME
BEP LR NEIE

() BREEWEBNERER

() BIRSEENEE  BAREXRE
:T,

EmMRGEER
() HERERFDENABRSF
(i)  FERFTAKE RREHEN R I IREE

iy A
HEBRERERFINEERMENREZRD -
B UEABFHOERERE - ETEUET
S AE - REFELARBFE/RE - RMAH
HEAEZSFE  BRAMANTAEEZEMNTE -
BFRAELORAREREALRERTEE - it
BRI A % F S AH B AR -

BPFETSBNERBE EHER - BRI ERE
MIREM - @EBEXBBHETTE  RAINERERE
LEGREERFNEEEGE  ABRMAREH
BEER IEBIRMOAFERRREBLN
BRMNEEET AT TRABARAHEET
BEBEER
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

REEG (2)

Supply chain management (Continued) HEHEEE ()

Number of suppliers in terms of 2020 2019
geographical location BihEE oM HERER —E-EHF —E—NE
The Philippines JEEE 401 534
Europe BOM 4 10
Hong Kong B8 5 10
USA e 5 4
China s 1 4
Other regions H b [@ 6 7
Total Suppliers with Purchase/Payments iRt EE AR 422 569

The supply chains mainly cover two general categories: (i) office supply
chains; and (i) hotel supply chains. At the office level, supply chains cover
procurement for headquarter office and are mainly focused on routine
office items such as stationery, toner and paper. At the hotel segment,
most items are procured for running a hotel and that cover a wide variety
items including beverage, food, linens and cleaning supplies etc. The
Group is committed to operating in an ethical and safe environment and
employ sound supply chain practices to ensure that the performance
remains sustainable. Its procurement process encourages a high level of
objectivity and impartiality in supplier selection. Its suppliers are required
to provide quality goods and services that meet our expectations. The
Group also ensures that suppliers will provide efficient after-sales services
prior to purchasing any products from them.

Additionally, all suppliers are required to comply with relevant legislation
when supplying goods and services to the Group. The Group conducts
annual evaluations of its suppliers to ensure that quality is maintained,
goods and services have actually been provided and that prices paid for
such goods and services remain competitive. The Group also strongly
encourages the purchase unit to take note of the local Government's
policy on recommended green product specifications in their product
offerings and design.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and data

The Group protects customer data privacy and complies with all relevant
laws and regulations to safeguard the data security of our customers, such
as storing the commercial documents by following government law in
Philippine. We pay extra attention to customer data management and no
substantiated complaint regarding leakage of customer privacy or loss of
customer data were reported during the year. A clear customer data
privacy policy has been formulated to instruct our employees on managing
the data which they have access to. Data privacy training is available for
employees in the orientation and refresher programme.

The Group has appointed its new data protection officer, Ms. Twinkle
Lacsamana who will act as the company's point person with regards to
data privacy compliance. In relation to the Data Privacy Act (‘DPA") of 2012,
she also acts as the liaison officer between the company and the National
Privacy Commission (“NPC"), the regulating body of the DPA. Currently, the
Group is in the process of completing the compliance requirements of the
NPC and have already executed security measures required by the law
including the issuance of privacy policies and conducting awareness
campaigns and training sessions.

Managing anti-corruption risk

The Group maintains the highest standards of openness, uprightness and
accountability and all our employees are expected to observe the highest
standards of ethical, personal and professional conduct. We do not tolerate
corruption, bribery, extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of our business operations. We adopted
on corruption prevention or anti-corruption enable employees to exercise
judgment on corruption prevention and apply practice on anti-corruption
in their daily work by aiming to encourage whistle-blowing. This whistle-
blowing policy presents examples of misconduct to which the whistle-
blowing policy applies, sets out required proof on reported misconduct,
sets out confidential procedures to protect the identity of and the
correspondence with the whistle-blower, presents outcomes of making
false or undue allegations, sets out reporting channels and investigation
procedures.

The Group's policies stated that employees are prohibited, with only
limited exceptions, from receiving tips and gifts from hotel customers,
colleagues or suppliers. All gifts and favours, regardless of value, must be
reported to the individual supervisor. Any matters of genuine concern are
to be thoroughly investigated and actions will be taken accordingly.
Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Group has not
received any non-compliance matters in this aspect.

RiE d2RERHRS
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
Products and services quality

We are committed to delivering superior customer services and to handle
queries from customers in a timely and efficient manner. In order to
enhance the hotel’s products and services on a continuous basis,
customers are encouraged to provide feedback on their experience, and
the Group has established procedures for handling customers’ queries and
complaints. Well trained representatives are always ready to promptly
respond to enquiries, requests and complaints. All cases will be examined
thoroughly and passed to the relevant department for developing
resolutions and enhancement.

The hotel takes care of all complaints from our stakeholders as we believe
our quality of service is first priority. Obtaining the guest preferences at
each contact with the guests, updating guest profile in the hotel’s Opera
Property Management System for requests and comments that have been
received either directly from the guests or staffs of the other departments
in order to mark sure all guest preference are met, monitoring the follow-
up progress in a timely manner to ensure all requests are properly handled,
and handing all complaints in a courteous, professional, efficient way with
a positive attitude are the actions that the hotel agreed to commit for the
service quality.

Major issues for the year are air-conditioners problem, limited TB channels,
water interruption, and implementation of additional security measures,
and defective tools such as telephone, safety deposit box and airport pick-
up arrangements.

Service Quality review during
the year FARBEE =S

BERER (AMEZE)
R B 2 P ]

Complaints received (in cases)
Average number of minutes to solve
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International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognises the importance of local communities to the
continued success and growth of our business. Apart from the donation to
charity organisation by the Group from time to time, employees are all
delighted to devote their time and efforts to give a helping hand to the
community. They participate and contribute to the community in any form
voluntarily including donation, volunteer work in charity organisations.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Group supported and
participated in different community activities covering poverty alleviation
and community caring to provide support to the underprivileged.

Poverty alleviation

The Group has been devoting much effort to poverty alleviation. We
sponsored in different charity, such as the Room to Read Programme,
aiming to raise charity funding for those children who are lack of assistance
on studies and family care. We have donated a total of Peso 188,146 raising
through various donation drive activities such as Bingo event and
Calamodine “Drink of the Month”, which was a global organization
transforming the lines of millions of children in low-income countries
through educating literacy and gender equality.
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

70 Annual Report 4% 2019/20

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

3
FaEEP 11158
Tk ZF2558

HERREBRARFIMRR

(RESHEITMA L ERAA])

REER

BB EZE 78 E 234 AFE A RABIFR AR 8%
BRAR(TERAR]) REMBAR (S E5E])
MEEMBEHE WU BHRREER -2 _FF
NAZTEZGEAMBRAREBEZZALFE
M emiiak FERaZ2PRLEA RS
MER  ERSEMBRERNE  BEREXES
R -

BARS  BRARE T REBER2ER] —6
RBEEECEETEIN RAMBRRERBE
BRBIMAE ([FAETMAE ) BMEN(ER
MBREEADEEMPBRRT ERER-
Z_TFENAZTHEZEEUBRR - RBEZ
HEFREZEAMBRARGERERE X
REEE(ATMEIDBREERZERE



B IREEAR A E

International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries constituting the
discontinued operation

As disclosed in Note 13 and Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed the disposal of entire equity interest in
Newworth Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries (together as the “Disposal
Group”) on 29 May 2020, the date on which the Disposal Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group. The principal activities of the Disposal Group
were operation of a football club with related and ancillary activities in the
United Kingdom, which represented a major line of business of the Group
and was therefore presented as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The loss from
discontinued operation for the period of approximately HK$198,824,000
and the gain arising from the disposal of the Disposal Group of
approximately HK$127,962,000 was presented under the caption
"Discontinued Operation” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Subsequent to the disposal, five subsidiaries of the Disposal Group (the
“Five Disposed Subsidiaries”) in the United Kingdom were put into
administration under the law of the United Kingdom. Administrators (the
"Administrators”) were appointed on the same date and have taken control
of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries since then. The directors of the Company
were denied by the Administrators from accessing the relevant financial
and other information of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries and therefore were
unable to provide us with sufficient information and documentary
evidence for our audit. As a result, we were unable to perform audit
procedures that we considered necessary and determine whether any
adjustments might be necessary in respect of (i) the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as at date of disposal as set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements; and (i) the income and
expenses of the discontinued operation for the period from 1 July 2019 to
the date of disposal as set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. Any adjustments in respect of the above amounts found
necessary would have a consequential effect on (i) the loss from the
discontinued operation for the period; (ii) the gain on disposal of the
Disposal Group; and (iii) the related disclosures of (i) and (ii) in these
consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the
Disposal Group. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not
the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of the non-current assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the “Philippines”) that
allocated to the cash generating unit of hotel operations (the “Hotel CGU")
as a key audit matter because the Group’s hotel segment had incurred
losses for the year ended 30 June 2020 and period ended 30 June 2019.
The Group has gross carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of
HK$243,733,000 and right-of-use assets of HK$18,646,000 respectively
relating to the Hotel CGU, which are significant operating assets of the
Group.
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At the end of each reporting period, the management assesses if there are
any indicators of potential impairment of the assets relating to the Hotel
CGU. If any impairment indicator exists, the management assesses the
recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent valuer not connected to the Group (the
“Valuer”) by income capitalisation approach. As disclosed in Note 15 and
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the management has
concluded that the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
amounted to HKS$8,709,000 and right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$666,000 are required to be impaired respectively.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
the Hotel CGU included:

Discussing the impairment indicators of the Hotel CGU with the
management and inspecting the operating results and cash flow
forecast of the Group's hotel segment;

Assessing the valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, such as the discount rate, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate and average daily room rate, by comparing them
with the budget approved by the management, available market
data for comparable properties and the historical operating
performances of the Group’s hotel segment.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

We have identified the fair value measurement of investment properties
located in the Philippines as a key audit matter because the Group's rental
income generated from the investment properties dropped by 39% during
the year. The actual rental income earned for the current year showed a
significant variance from the budgeted rental income estimated by the
management in 2019 for the purpose of deriving the fair value of
investment properties in 2019.
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As disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$1,308 million (2019: HK$1,510 million) as at 30 June
2020, with a fair value loss of approximately HK$262 million recognised in
the profit or loss for the year (2019: fair value loss of HK$89 million).

Independent external valuations were obtained in respect of the
investment properties in order to support the management'’s estimation of
fair value. The valuation is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgements including rental income from
future lease period and capitalisation rate in light of the current market
condition.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value measurement of
investment properties included:

Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow projections used in the income approach calculation and
assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which affect the income approach
calculation;

Assessing the valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, such as
discount rate and capitalisation rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry, in particular those relating to the cash
flow projection within the lease term used by the income approach
for the fair value measurement.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

76

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate number P05309

Hong Kong, 23 September 2020
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SLEEHEWER

For theyear ended 30 June 2020
HE—T —TF NA=1THIFFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH —ET-NF
~NBA=1H NAZ=Z1H
LHEE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF F#ET FATT
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7))
Continuing operations HEREEK
Revenue A 5(b) 226,965 375,982
Cost of sales SHE A (78,431) (105,962)
Gross profit EH 148,534 270,020
Other income H YA 6 16,216 26,507
Other losses, net H i858 7 (16,832) (9,682)
Change in fair value of financial assets ?ﬁ@ﬁ@?ﬂ\%éZ@Eﬂﬁf@
at fair value through profit or loss N EEE) 21 29,066 (51,770)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BAFEFABERECCREBE
at fair value through profit or loss N EEE) 32 13,173 -
Change in fair value of investment properties ¥ & 2N T EEE) 16 (262,125) (89,396)
Impairment loss of property, W - B RS ERERE
plant and equipment 15 (8,709) -
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ERREEERERE 20 (666) -
Share of loss of associates DIGEEE R FIEE 19 (126)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RS ER X (3,043) (7,773)
General and administrative expenses —MRITBAX (123,889) (188,751)
Finance costs pvs-di 8 (32,534) (21,915)
Loss before taxation BT Al Es 18 9 (240,935) (72,760)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfise, () 1 6,465 (14,240)
Loss for the year/period from continuing FR/EHRNRERFECEER
operations 2B (234,470) (87,000)
Discontinued operation [EY - cd-—F 3
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of tax HENB AR - &MBREIE 33 127,962
Gain on bargain purchase EAEL GG - 116,790
Loss for the period HnEE 13 (198,824) (123,083)
Loss for the period from discontinued HINIR B B AR LA & T
operation 2 518 (70,862) (6,293)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHRER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH —E-NF
NA=1+H ~NA=1+H
LEFE 1-EAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
(Re-presented)
(K&&E7))
Loss for the year/period F /HREIE (305,332) (93,293)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that BreEHMoEEER L
will not be reclassified to profit or loss: Hiemss (&) -
— Remeasurement of defined benefit — B ERATEMNEME
obligations 442 (1,344)
— Exchange differences arising on —HBE A2 EBESES Y
translation of presentation currency PE X =% 36,457 27,621
Other comprehensive loss that may be ERgvgEEFTOERERZ
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: H iR A EE
— Exchange differences arising on translation — #E /N EEB SRR ELE
of financial statements of ZEH E5E
foreign operations (11,613) (8,458)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HENBRRERENELFH
of subsidiaries 19,875 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period £ /HAN & [ 518 4 58 (260,171) (75474)
(Loss)/profit for the year/period attributable to: 51|53 I8 fE {5 F A, i R
(E518), /&7 :
Owners of the Company RABHEEA
— from continuing operations — REC R (234,470) (87,000)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER (45,094) 9,473
(279,564) (77,527)
Non-controlling interests FEfE R T
— from continuing operations — B - -
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER (25,768) (15,766)
(25,768) (15,766)
(305,332) (93,293)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SLEEHEWER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH —E-NF
ANA=t+H ~NAZ=Z+H
LHEE 1EHARE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtaF FExT FATT
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7))
Total comprehensive loss for the year/period ~ FE(R4E /BRI EESEL258
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — ARREBA (234,787) (59,128)
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (25,384) (16,346)
(260,171) (75,474)
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
(Re-presented)
(KeE5)
(Loss)/profit per share attributable to RNRIER AEE TR
owners of the Company (E518), /&7 14
Basic BN
— from continuing operations — RBEEEER (17.13) (6.35)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EET (3.29) 0.69
(20.42) (5.66)
Diluted #e
— from continuing operations — BB E (17.13) (6.35)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER (3.29) 0.69
(20.42) (5.66)
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e MR R

At 30 June 2020

R-FE=FFNA=+H

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
ANB=+H ~NA=+A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HfaF T FHIT
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets EMBNEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 15 280,786 619,956
Investment properties EYE 16 1,308,000 1,510,000
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - 49,556
Loan receivable EWE R 18 75,503 51,575
Interest in associates /N o 19 55,228 -
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 20 33,787 -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HaEUEIE « He &
TERTRIE 23 14,329 19,644
1,767,633 2,250,731
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 1,840 2,852
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss SREE 21 93,441 191,360
Trade receivables JE U BR T8 22 7,053 26,450
Contract assets BHEE 24 4,128 934
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HiEWRIE  EE Kk
FafTRIE 23 38,231 82,728
Amounts due from associates FEWLSE & R A IR 3,173 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFERRS 36 623,170 242317
771,036 546,641
Total assets BEME 2,538,669 2,797,372
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade payables FETBEIR 25 3,544 20,532
Other payables and accrued charges EMEN I N ETE R 25 61,999 121,572
Contract liabilities AREE 24 972 11,343
Bank borrowings |ITEE 31 19,450 4,765
Lease liabilities HEAaR 20 2,774 -
88,739 158,212
Net current assets mENEEFAE 682,297 388,429
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B BERR R

At 30 June 2020
RE-EFE-FFNA=+H

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF
~NA=1H NA=TH
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
et FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 26 179,889 184,786
Other liabilities Hiafk 4,661 6,386
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 32,807 -
Promissory note A EIE 30 345,915 342,829
Bank borrowings HITEE 31 53,486 71,473
Convertible bond Al ES 32 44,692 -
661,450 605,474
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,788,480 2,033,686
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA R A A IR
Share capital & A 28 1,369,157 1,369,157
Share premium and reserves R 2 (B Ko i 1 419,323 654,110
1,788,480 2,023,267
Non-controlling interests JEIRRRERS 38 - 10,419
TOTAL EQUITY S 1,788,480 2,033,686

The financial statements on pages 78 to 234 were approved by the Board N FE78E M B2 BREXCNR _E-_FF N

of Directors on 23 September 2020 and were signed on its behalf by: AZ+=-—HEESeE YATINESRESE
E
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Mr. Ho Wong Meng
HeEE L Ho Wong Meng 5t 4%
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 2
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International Entertainment Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

%é#&m%iﬁ%

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RORREARL
Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger Other Exchange  compensation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
WRfAER
e B %E CLit1 ] Efbfite EifiE ZBERE RERA 48 FERER EnEg
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
Tén TR T i Th Thi Thn TEn T Thr
(notea) (noteb) (notec)
(hita) (o) (itc)

31 March 2018 R-E-N\E=ZA=+-H 1369157 170,289 5302 (112683) (301,801) 5433 898,978 208239 = 2,082,395
Loss for the period BrER - - - - - - (77520) (17520 (15,766) (93293)
Remeasurement of defined benefit ENMtERT

obligations BHER - - - - - - (1344) (1344) - (1344)
Eichange differences arising on translation B AZ I EREEL 2

of presentation currency BHEE - - - - 76 - - 760 - 27601
Bichange differences arising on translation 8 AGSN ERETRERE

offinancial statements of foreign EEVERER

operations - - - - (7878) - - (7878) (580) (8458)
Total comprehensive loss for the period B2 EE RS - - - - 19743 - (78871) (59,128) (16,346) (75474)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBLR - - - - - - - - 26765 26,765
At30June 2019 RZF-NERA=TA 1369157 170,289 53022 (112683) (282,058) 5433 820,107 2023267 10419 2033686
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (279,564) (279,564) (25,768) (305,332)
Remeasurement of defined benef EMEATRENER

obligations - - - - - - 442 442 - 442
Bichange diferences arsing on translation 28 AZFIEBBEL 2

of presentation currency EXEH - - - - 36,457 - - 36,457 - 36,457
Eichange diferences arsing on translation  #8 BESNE BB BHRE

of financial statements of foreign EEERER

operations - - - - (11,997) - - (11,997) 384 (11,613)
Release of exchange reserve upon REEMBAREER

disposalof subsidiaries (note 33 B LR (HE3) - - - - 19875 - - 19,875 - 19875
Total comprehensive loss for theyear AL ABIEAE - - - - 44335 - (279122)  (234,787) (25384)  (260,171)
Disposal of subsiclaries (note 33) HENBAR(MH33) = = = = = = = = 14,965 14,965
430 June 200 RZF-ZERA=TH 1,369,157 170,289 53022 (112683)  (237723) 5433 540,985 1,788,480 - 1788480

AEEAHHEBRABHRBREARAR (ERMHE
ARRBAD ) Z AR AR B EARERESE
B EAMMBITRA 2 EEMERZZMH o AIIEZITR
BERARERBE_ZTZNF-_A=1T—BILFE
HE o

(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital (a)
and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of share capital
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008.

HEHERNRE_TTN\F=A=+—BK_%
—tEE=A=t-HLFESRRERHFNEREZ

(b) The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries (b)
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary

of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2017 respectively.

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised share
option granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note 3.19.

— KR A AU P R B A 2 M R R I E
AESMEREL REFTE -

VAR AR R 208 2 1 (B R 8 B 1R AR IR M S 3.1 9 L AR D
RERNFIRNEHBRBRZARBTREZHEAR
TR EE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
—EC-BE —T-hNF
AA=1+H SNA=1H
LFE 1EHARE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(L =E5))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETER
Loss before taxation B 7% Al &5 18
From continuing operations B ET (240,935) (72,760)
From discontinued operation BRI EER (71,180) (11,899
Adjustments for: BTHIEE EHFEE -
Interest income LB A (6,593) (7,631)
Interest expenses FMBEFHX 34,729 21915
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts for JEW AR TE I B At E M SR IE 2
trade and other receivables, net RERBE TR 1,187 879
Written-off of other receivables il 85 L At JE L R IE 2,670 -
Change in fair value of financial assets BAFEFAEBRZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss NEEZY (29,066) 51,770
Change in fair value of financial liabilities RAFESFABRZZEHAR
at fair value through profit or loss NEEZY (13,173) -
Change in fair value of investment properties KEYMENTEEE) 262,125 89,396
Impairment loss of property, plant and M - WERFEREREE
equipment 8,709 -
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FRAREEERERBE 666 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB R REITE 52,638 54,371
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRBEEENE 5,445 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWME - BB REE 2 WS
equipment (45) -
Loss on written-off of property, plant and MIEME - BERREHBE
equipment 430 2,179
Amortisation of intangible assets A EHH 52,589 28,583
Impairment of intangible assets B EAERE - 3,954
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HERTEE 2K (891) (8,828)
Waive of other payable e H MR FUR - (1,256)
Release of provision for additional transfer fee fERRFEINE B B (1,767) (3,207)
Share of loss of associates SGEEE A RBE 126 -
Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries B A Rl BRE R - (116,790)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB ARz (127,962) -
Net foreign exchange loss PE H S8 55 13,759 9,515
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B IREEAR A E

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020

#z-F-F

—_= =

FENA=THIEFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Bz H=E
—EC-BF —T-hNF
AA=1+H NA=1+H
IEFE 1-EAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(&E5)
Operating cash flows before movements in Rt EBEE G EF 2L
working capital RenE (56,539) 40,191
Increase in inventories FEE (296) (536)
Decrease in trade receivables FEU R TE R 14,217 6,206
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HA IR ~ e RIEFTFRIE
deposits and prepayments L, (3G n) 5,599 (29,605)
Decrease in trade payables FERTERIE R (4,105) (1,253)
Increase in other payables and accrued charges Hfth FEAS FIE N FE R E R G N 52,009 22,048
Cash generated from operations RELEESH 2 RS 10,885 37,051
Income taxes paid EARIZIECE = -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REKE TS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 10,885 37,051
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received BUF B 4,076 5411
Additions to property, plant and equipment NEVE - BENRE (12,276) (60,047)
Proceeds received on disposal of property, HEDME  BMEMBREZ
plant and equipment BT RIE 209 295
Increase in deposits for property, M - BEMEEESEMN
plant and equipment (21,621) (19,644)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (22,229) (53,464)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERT B A A - (183,114
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT 172,208 -
Proceeds from sale of players’ registration HEIR B M ATE5IE 36,853 18416
Payment for purchase of players’ registration BAE Mz (101,691) (23,729)
Purchase of unlisted fund BAFLTES - (242,350)
Proceeds received on disposal of unlisted fund REFLEMES 2B WMEHRIE 126,979 -
Increase in loan receivable PR E FE N (22,551) -
Amounts advance to associates SEENL A=WNSIE Q] (3,173) -
Repayment of capital loan from subsidiaries BREOHEZWEATZ
disposed of BEARER 243,737 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING  SREB (AR REFBSH 2R & FHE
ACTIVITIES 400,521 (558,226)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE H=
—ECEH —E-hEF
ANA=1H ~NA=1H
LFE 1-EAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(KeE5)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l 5E B
Interest paid [=ANELES (13,068) (15671)
Increase in bank borrowings RITEEL N - 76,238
Increase in other borrowings Hitnfg &350 95,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings RITIEEZEX (4,862) -
Repayment of other borrowings Hifg B2 B (95,000) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities ~ THE & EAS 7B (9,326) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM FINANCING (FAR),TREREE8 =

ACTIVITIES HEEE (27,256) 60,567
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH BERBESZEWEM  (RD)

EQUIVALENTS FE 384,150 (460,608)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ERESEsHE (3,297) 6,357
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING RE/HBAzRERBSESEY

OF YEAR/PERIOD 242,317 696,568
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RE/HERCEESRRLEEN

OF YEAR/PERIOD

represented by bank balances and cash MAIRTIT8E1FE B3R © 57~ 623,170 242317
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION
General

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). As of the date of this report, Brighten Path Limited
(“Brighten Path”) and Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited
("Head and Shoulders”) are the Company's immediate and ultimate
parent respectively. Head and Shoulders is wholly and beneficially
owned by Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, executive Director. The
registered office of the Company is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is Units 2109-10, 21st Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group were
principally involved in hotel operations, leasing of properties
equipped with entertainment equipment at the hotel complex of
the Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines (the "Hotel Business”
and “Leasing Business”), live poker events (the “ Live Events Business”)
in Macau and operation of a football club with related and ancillary
activities (the “Football Club Business”) in the United Kingdom (the
“UK"). During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Football Club
Business were disposed of and presented as a discontinued
operation (note 13). The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
outin note 37.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

—REIE
BIRREBR AR ([AAF]) ARHAEHS
AR BRAG - ARMDREBBER
SFBRAR ([BRAT]) LW - RAHRER
H - Brighten Path Limited ([ Brighten Path]) &
Head and Shoulders Direct Investment Limited
([Head and Shoulders]) 7 Rl B AR B 2 E#
SR A R &4 52 5] ° Head and Shoulders f
WITESEAETTI2EREEES - A2
7] 5 it i = & 2 Hb 4k A& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° KA R BB X B &
B Ut AR B EEHETR 71 kLR R
RE21#2109-10F °

KRB EREZER ARG - AEBFEEKA
RIEREFENHGR 2 AEBBEELREE
BALEBEXEBAR DR ERESE
mE(DEEES | R HBER] - HEM
EIRIS R R ([IRISEE ) KRR
B ([ ) e B8 — R B IR L 30 S 5H RS
MREER ([RIKELITER]) - BHEZT
ZEFXNAZTHLTFE  BRHRELMBES
KEHET 2 AERIEELEB (KT
13) o BB RAIZ EBEEHHITEI7 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

July 2019
HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIO)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12and ~ 2015-2017 Cycle
HKAS 23

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16, HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 and
Amendments to HKAS 28 have been summarised in below.
The other new or amended HKFRSs that are effective from 1
July 2019 did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)
(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE

WREER) (®)
RNFE]RIETEBMBERESE
Al —B=ZZE-hAFtA—HBEXE
M ()

(a)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREERE165
[HE | z2&
BRMBREENE 16 MK E
AEFENE 7R IEE | &8
B SIAE—RBASHE
BER - WHREARBARAER
HEg @A cHEEREER
BE - RIFEREEREKEERSE
EAERI® - EBME - REF
B EREERE 1657 - AHA
AERERREE (R TEAE
EREEHREEE) RHERE
(RAEBEEEHEENT) -
Eit - AFEARHEREREEE
FEMEEAENS  XHHEE
BEZREEFRDE/ANEID
RNBE D - MRBRERERA
25 piHh - EREEEMEE
BEVTRBELLETE - 5T 8
BRETAABERENK - T8%E
WAFAAB A EITREERE
EERES TR ERZILEE
ZIERT - R E AR AE
HZ 3R - iE R R TR SRR
EEBGFERIZE 175 (LR £
A BEENBAKEHE Z &
MAHESHREEEARER -

RN R EEAE - T80
BRI 6 RATHRES
BHRRE 7R HBAGHE
BT o Flt - AR
BEAFAMEREARAR
£ 3 B HEMAREE T TR
ZEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

2.

20

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1
July 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transitional provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening of consolidated statement of financial position
as of 1 July 2019,

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 July 2019.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

July 2019 (Continued)
(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

The following reconciliation explains how the operating
lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 at the
end of 30 June 2019 could be reconciled to the lease
liabilities at the date of initial application recognised in
the statement of financial position as at 1 July 2019:

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

RMBEEMHREGERN (FEMT
WmEZER) (®)
(a) BRANHE] REFTEBMBREE
Al —B=ZE—-hEtHA—RBEXE
M (E)
(i) HRANEBHBREERE16%
IE:-d04 7 1¢ )
AT S EEMRA — B — NENA
S+ RGREERS S e L
$17 B 2 AT E AL
BR-—E—NE+A—BZHE
R EFTRERR ERERB Y

2.

HEBBEETYHE
HK$'000
FH&T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZE-NFERA=THRRRLS
at 30 June 2019 (note) MREAIE (K1) 146,470
Less: short-term leases for which lease terms B AERN —E-_EFERA=1THRK
ended within 30 June 2020 and recognised ERIWNEHERRAAL 2
on a straight-line basis as expenses FEAE (642)
Add: lease included in extension option which ~ Jll : KEBRAESESERITEZ
the Group considers reasonably certain EREEEMBEEE
to exercise 60,498
Less: future interest expenses W RRF B (140,664)
Total lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019 RZZT—NF+ H—BH¥ER
ZHERBRRE 65,662
Of which are: B A
Current lease liabilities mEHEEE 2,649
Non-current lease liabilities EnBHEAE 63,013
65,662
Weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing 7 & /% & F3 B B 2 iNkE 15
rate at the date of initial application AFE A LG E B ROR=R 7.17%

Note: The operating lease commitments has included the
operating lease commitments for the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong and the Philippines of HK$46,459,000 and the
Group's operation in the UK of HK$100,011,000 based on
the latest rental as at 30 June 2019, which was subject to

review every five years.

Miet - BER=ZT—AFEA=FTHZ
SN E (ASRFRFT—X) -
LEHERERREAEEEAR
FEEEB 2R EHEAE
46,459,000/ 70 * A R AR EE I
Bl X% o &egilagx
100,011,000 7T °

=
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would have
required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

2. BEMEBBEHREED ((HFEMFHE
WEER) (®)
(a) FREMFERETEBMERESE
Al—B=ZZE-hAFtA—HEXE
()

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREER F165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
HREREEEREERESE
THTE  WRER-FT-NF
NAZ=ZTB&EEUBARR KT
REER 2 BN R
ENRERIELHE - RERE
RBEH  SEEMAHEAER
EELARZBEREHEESRL -

HK$'000
FHET
Leasehold land HELH 42,547
Properties L 23,115
Total right-of-use assets EREEERE 65,662

The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the consolidated statement of financial position
as of 1 July 2019:

Right-of-use assets — increase by
Lease liabilities — increase by

EREEE — &M

EHBRESHYEUTR T
—NE+A—B2EABBHRR
£MZIEA :

HK$'000
TAT

65,602
(65,662)
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e MR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

—  the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

— reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous

— the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at
1 July 2019 as short-term leases

—  the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application

—  the use of hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease, and

—  to measure the right-of-use asset at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately
before the date of transition to HKFRSs.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE

WREER) (®)
RNFE]RIETEBMBERESE
Al —B=ZZE-hAFtA—HBEXE
M ()

(a)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREERE165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
EEBZATRE%
RERERE BN ERE LT
16575 - NEBOEM N N EZ
ERIRFFZ AITHEEEIA

— HWABAERMAMEHZE
BERARAE—BRE

— KRAENRHERTEE
BMEDL 2 FHE

— BR-ZT-hF+tA—H
HTHEHMIRI2EA 2K
EHEARIBEHHEE

— REXREABHAEER
B ER MR V) n B R K
Z

— HEHBESERAKILE
EZEER ARFRE
M R

— RZRHERGEFESHIE
EREEE  WiREER
BEERBY B REER
B 53 A B 155K 00 2% B HE R
HERMZ EMFENRE
AHEHENARESRIEHHE -

Annual Report £ #§ 2019/20 93



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRE44H R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

2.

924

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a
contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

The Group leases various land, offices, staff quarters and
football stadium. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 2 to 99 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

From 1 July 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

—  the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

— any initial direct costs, and

—  restoration costs

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line

basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE

WREER) (®)
RNFE]RIETEBMBERESE
Al —B=ZZE-hAFtA—HBEXE
M ()

(a)

(i)

RAEEBUBEHREERE165
[HE | 2Z& (&)
HEEAZEERRABENIER
BEEEGFE - HEREBEAT
MEMFKZFHRE

— BEENR(BREDEEN
) OREMEREEEE

HEMRERBEFRRS ZH=X
BEIR - MEZEEZME - AlfE
RAEAZREERME - A&
HARRBLEEIRE T AL
R RS AR RUEEZ
BERAMBESMB N ZH

EREEEAKNAGE
BATERIE:

i3
+H
@

— HEARBMIAEZEE

— REARBYHZAERZ
EEEEMNK  BREAD
WEHEEE

—  EATREERAA - K
—  ERAAR
FRCHHERKEREENE
ZNFRAB AN Bt R B H

X o FEHIEE A A 2@ A K
UTzHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.

26

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2019 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
(Continued)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to
Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation
("PAGCOR"). As the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a
lessor is substantially unchanged from the requirements
under HKAS 17, the adoption of HKFRS 16 does not
have significant impact on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity
shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, then the entity should measure current
and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in
the determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FEMNEAUBEREEN (TEEMHE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued) ME#ER] ) (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (a) REFEELETEBMBERESE
July 2019 (Continued) Al—BA=T-hEtA—HEE
M(E
(iii) Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in (iii) BBEFFERIFE 285 (155T4K)—
Associates and Joint Ventures REELGREEAAHRE
2%
The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long- ZIERTRE - BBV BRE %R
term interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures FoBANEB LS NRIHAED
which form part of the net investment in the associates ¥MEHES((KREER]D m
or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied ZERTEXRBEARREE D
to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance HEFLEN 0o 0 WEIRANRE
within HKAS 28. HEBGERE 28R RERERE
Bal A BB B EERFE R
BEARZERPER -
(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet (b) EREMZEBUBREERZH
effective ¥

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group's operations, have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions?

AEEY EREFRAATERMER
RERR - AJLEAKELERR 2
HESSCHES R =Rl

BEMBREER FHHOER'
F3IR(ETX)

BAVHREERF® . #

TAEHE

BEGENE %R

B SRS

ENE AR

EERBRESENF 108 REEEEBENT]
REFETENE Y FALCELMZE

(fEFTA) ELE T4’
ERUHREELE 165 COVD19iEERS
CHES) AR
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

2.

928

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

2 The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments continue
to be permitted.

3 Annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
Earlier application is permitted, including in financial
statements not authorised for issue at 4 June 2020.

Those new/revised HKFRSs that might have material impact
on the Group’s financial statements are set out below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is meant
by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and a
“business” to focus on returns from selling goods and services
to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 — Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when
the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows a
lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain
qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-related rent
concessions”) are lease modifications and, instead, account for
those rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

2. BEMEBREHREED (THFEMHE
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HRAFE28 (557F) — REFHA
BELAAREETEZHZEELE
XEF
ZEEBIRNBEREEREBE AR
AEPEHESTTABERE THER
ZWEHBEEREE - ERXRHHEN A
1% AlagERRas g k2
ERGHERIBR—RAEBZEE
AER T EBREEN G E DR U
BREZERTERWANEE -

COVID-19 5B % /i %
ZIEFTARM—EATEESE A
FFAMAEZSIBACVDI9EEZ
BEERRNEE2ETEEEKHSR
®(fcoviD-19iEEH R e ) RSB
HEBE  MBZEESH R EM
HIFHEEBEFT 2 A AN o

Annual Report £ #§ 2019/20 99



International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREEF R A]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso
("Pesa”), the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company’s major subsidiaries operate. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars ("HK$") as the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) consider that it is an appropriate presentation
for a company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXEHBE®)
(Continued)

3.4 Business combination and basis of consolidation

34 EBEHREGEEREEE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case
the costs are deducted from equity.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.4 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as “gain on bargain purchase”.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest's share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFTEEK#E)

(Continued)

3.5 Subsidiaries 3.5 MEBAT

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.6 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’'s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

104 Annual Report &% 2019/20

3.

BEAFHEE#)

3.6

BE QR
BERRS—RASEHERAEX
FENTMYFBHEARHA LR
ZER EAFENRZ2HEREHR
ZHBERBEBRIRTE S - ML
% B R AT Bl S KR IR

BEARDERARREAR Bt
ZERNR S IREAER - JLIEHEER
HEDRAEERONBERRIEE
FEZWEEEE T ARE - ERRIE
FEERMEZEEE  GRBAELRE
EREERRZEm 2 BEIE T
R o

REBEEE N R 2R 5 PE
EZRSENTHBREENBER
Az Em AR TARR - REEEIE
REXDAEL 2B E NREm I HR
BENRZREESHH - MARZIRE
BREAMEREELRRE  N%F
EIESARREE P RER -

B E QRN aRAREEEHR
WEABNEE AERIREEZ
RFEZEAEETABRER - A
FFABERRZREE - HAFEE
BRTRBEARZRELBRRE
A EzREERREANARMIES
REEMRR 27 FETRERR



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRZ4H R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:

Freehold land and 100 years
building

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the remaining
building term of the land leases on which

the buildings are located, or their
estimated useful lives
Leasehold Over the shorter of the remaining

e MR
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improvements term of the lease or land leases on
which the buildings are located, or
their estimated useful lives
Machinery 3-15 years
Furniture, fixtures 3-15 years
and equipment
Entertainment 5-15 years
equipment
Computer hardware 3-5years
Motor vehicles 5 years

MiEF
ME+TMK RIEFIE 2 2T
gF T b FAE F E sk
ETERTA] {55 FR 4F AP
(LABRIZE A%)
MEkE REFH e HE
s HEESRT
FHIRHERT
A5 A 5
(B & AE)
HEs 3E 154
Bt EE 3B 154
G
IREETRAE 5154
ERERE 3ES5F
RE 5

Annual Report %% 2019/20

105



International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREEF R A]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and
up to the date of completion of construction for the
investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at its fair value. The Group's
property interest held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes is classified and accounted
for as investment property and is measured using the fair
value model. Gain or loss arising from change in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.9 (A)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
July 2019)

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether

a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a

contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease

in HKFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts entered
into, on or after 1 July 2019.

(i)

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a
contract that contains a lease component, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of its
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the
leases of property the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for
the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

(Continued)
3.9 (A)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
July 2019) (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the end of the lease
term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the Group by the end of the
lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase
option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset, which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for
leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use under HKAS 16 and are carried at fair
value. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgement and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use. As a
result, the right-of-use asset arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are carried
at depreciated cost.

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.9 (A) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
July 2019) (Continued)
(i)  Asalessee (Continued)

The Group determines its incremental borrowing
rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external financing sources and makes certain
adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and
type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability comprise the following:

—  fixed payments, including in-substance

fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a

residual value guarantee; and

—  the exercise price under a purchase option

that the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and
penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the Group is reasonably certain not
to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if there is a
revised in-substance fixed lease payment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

(Continued)
3.9 (A)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
July 2019) (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property in
“property, plant and equipment” and lease
liabilities in “loans and borrowings” in the
statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases, including IT
equipment. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.9 (A) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
July 2019) (Continued)
(ii) Asalessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then
it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment,
the Group considers certain indicators such as
whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease
classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not
with reference to the underlying asset. If a head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described above, then it
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease
components, then the Group applies HKFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Group applies the derecognition and
impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the net
investment in the lease (see note 3.11). The Group
further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed
residual values used in calculating the gross
investment in the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

(Continued)
3.9 (A)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
July 2019) (Continued)

(ii)

As a lessor (Continued)

The Group recognises lease payments received as
below:

—  Rental income from properties leased to
Philippine Amusement and Gaming
Corporation ("PAGCOR") under the
operating leases is recognised at a certain
percentage of net gaming revenue of the
casino (less franchise tax) or a fixed rental
amount, whichever is higher.

Fixed rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss over the term of the
lease with PAGCOR.

Contingent rental income from operating leases
to PAGCOR is calculated with reference to certain
percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino
when it is higher than the fixed rental amount.
The contingent rental income is recognised in
profit or loss in the period when it is earned.

—  Rental income from properties leased to
Wigan Warriors Rugby League Club (the
“Wigan Warriors”) under the operating
leases is recognised at a certain percentage
of the match ticket sales from Wigan
Warriors. The contingent rental income is
recognised in profit or loss in the period
when it is earned.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Generally, the accounting policies applicable to
the Group as a lessor in the comparative period
were not different from HKFRS 16 except for the
classification of the sub-lease entered into during
current reporting period that resulted in a finance

lease classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.9 (B)

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 30
June 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from properties leased to PAGCOR under
the operating leases is recognised at a certain
percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino (less
franchise tax) or a fixed rental amount, whichever is
higher.

Fixed rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss over the term of the lease with PAGCOR.

Contingent rental income from operating leases to
PAGCOR is calculated with reference to certain
percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino when
it is higher than the fixed rental amount. The contingent
rental income is recognised in profit or loss in the period
when it is earned.

Rental income from properties leased to Wigan Warriors
Rugby League Club (the “Wigan Warriors”) under the
operating leases is recognised at a certain percentage
of the match ticket sales from Wigan Warriors. The
contingent rental income is recognised in profit or loss
in the period when it is earned.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

For the year ended 30 June 2020
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3. EAXEHBE®

3.9 (B)
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.9 (B) Leasing (accounting policies applied until 30

June 2019) (Continued)

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

3.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquisition and registration of football personnel

The cost associated with the acquisition and registration of
football personnel are capitalised initially at the fair value of
the consideration payable. Costs include transfer fees, leagues
levy fees incurred by the Group and other directly attributable
costs. Costs also include the fair value of any contingent
consideration, which is primarily payable to the football
player's former club if the payment are assessed by
management of the Group as probable.

Costs are fully amortised using the straight-line method over
the period covered by the football personnel’s contract, being
between two to four years.

Contingent consideration payable that was not recognised on
initial recognition are also included in the cost of the football
players’ registration once payment becomes probable in
subsequent reassessment performed by management.
Amortisation of contingent consideration commenced once it
has recognised and until the end of contract.

Where a contract is extended, any costs associated with
securing the extension are added to the unamortised balance
(at the date of the amendment) and the revised book value is
amortised over the remaining revised contract life.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

3.11

Acquisition and registration of football personnel (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposal of football personnel registrations
are determined by comparing the fair value of the
consideration receivable, net of any transaction costs, with the
carrying amount and are recognised separately in profit or loss
within “other gain or loss".

Where a part of the consideration receivable is contingent on
specified performance conditions, this amount is recognised
in the profit or loss when receipt is virtually certain.

Remuneration paid to football personnel

Remuneration of football personnel is charged in accordance
with the terms of the applicable contractual arrangements
and any discretionary bonuses is recognised in profit or loss
when there is a legal or constructive obligation.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAEHEE#®)
(Continued)

3.11 &I A (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued) TREE (&)

Debt instruments &R T A

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on BERIAZBREBASEARAEEE
the Group's business model for managing the asset and the BEEZEBEANEBEBEEZE S
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two RERFH - AEBBHEKTAES S
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its AWMEFTEER

debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of BEAA: WEEEEEEREIAEYD
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely RenE MzEFHASREEEAE
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised S RFBMNR  ZEEERBHEKAKR
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently FE o REEKAHECERMEER
BEABEBRRNZETE - FIBWA -
SN 55 N S 1E DA SR E N 1B 2 ERR o
BRI EREE 2 FAINENERER °

measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held BAFEFABZ  BERAFEFAEB
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition BZEMEERER {’EEE’Z%E@E

E - RS HERRIEEZERAFLETA
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for BRZ2emEE  AFERHIZAF
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or EBif2zemMEE - WemEEDA
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated AT T IR E S BBl i Wk - Bl &
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading MEEE > BARBEESE - THETA
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. (B FETE N *a‘”j\)\_m,TEI,E\) D=1
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments BEEE BRIIKSHETAERE D
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL, TEAIERR - Re mu%i#%@#ﬁ}fﬁ

at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be

irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost
or at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFHEBEK#E)

(Continued)

3.11 &I B (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") on trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAXEHBE®
(Continued)

3.11 &I B (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease receivable
or contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and promissory note are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFTEEK#E)

(Continued)

3.11 &I B (&)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both the
debt and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
variable amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an embedded derivative liability.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the debt component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bond is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group'’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bond using the
effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAXEHBE®

(Continued)

3.12 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal 3.2 BEHEZERBEERHEHR
groups
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e. ERIIREXBEASBECLELD
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly BRFHELEZHy (RIAT B K EH
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has been HE AR EBRIRERE
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which WRER BB EEBEEHE
represents a separate major line of business or geographical SENEE BB T EEKHLE
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to e 28 —mHAtTE 2 —3D 0 &
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical AEEmME B AR -

area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon DEAERIERKEEBFNHERIE
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be EBRL O RIEEESMEREERE S5
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if earlier. BEDEAFEHEEZERR (HBE
It also occurs when the component is abandoned. BRER)RE HENEZBOIBEE
FrEs A o
When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single MEBDBREKLIELE  AINER
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which RENNE—SE HPeRi:
comprises:
The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; . ERIEREEB BRNIBIER
and K&
The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the . R EERERIEREEK &
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the ERLERR 2 A FEREERK
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting the A ERHERERZBRTZIK
discontinued operation. = EE -
3.13 Inventories 3.13 &
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable TFE A N B n] B30 R (E 2 S KE S
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted BE c FERANIZ LI EETFE - 7]
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated PRFENFEMHEBRRME
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary HETER 2 BETAA ©

to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods
or service.
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BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFTEEK#E)

(Continued)

3.14 WA RER (&)

3.14 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Room revenue

Room revenues are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer
during the stay in the hotel. The services are charged at a fixed
rate with no significant variable consideration. The Group
recognised revenue in the amount to which the entity has the
right to invoice, which is representative to the value service
being delivered. Invoices are issued upon check out and
payable immediately. No significant financing component
existed.

Food and beverage

The Group provides food and beverages service in the hotel
and football stadium in the UK. The Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the entity has the right to invoice,
which is representative to the service being delivered. Invoices
for food and beverage service are issued on upon customer
check-out and payable immediately. No significant financing
component existed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.14 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Broadcasting income

The Group’s UK Championship League football matches
broadcasting contracts are centrally negotiated by English
Football League (“EFL"), in which the Group receives
broadcasting distribution as consideration. In addition, the
Group receives solidarity payment from Premier League ("PL").
The Group's performance obligation is to participate all the
football matches of Championship League during football
season, which management considers the obligation to play
the matches is a series of distinct services, each of which is
substantially the same and with same pattern of transfer to its
customer. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer during the matches play in the football season.
Broadcasting distribution and solidarity payment are fixed
payment from EFL and PL with no variable element, payable
by EFL on monthly basis and PL on semi-annually basis, and
recognised as revenue evenly as each Championship League
match plays during the football season. No significant
financing component existed.

Matchday income

The Group sells season tickets and matchday tickets to
customer in which the Group collects the receipts as
consideration. The Group's performance obligation is to
arrange the seat and related facilities available to the customer
on all the home matches, including Championship League
and domestic cups, play at DW Stadium and to play the match
on that day. Management considers the obligation to play the
matches at DW Stadium is a series of distinct services, each of
which is substantially the same and with same pattern of
transfer to its customer. The performance obligation is satisfied
over time as the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer during the home matches
play in the football season. Receipt from sales of season tickets
and matchday tickets prior to the Group's satisfaction of
performance obligation are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under contract liabilities (see
3.15 below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFTEEK#E)

(Continued)
3.14 WARR (&)

3.14 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Commercial income

The Group receives sponsorship income from entering into
sponsorship agreements with its customers, hospitality
income from providing conference and event facilities in DW
Stadium during non-match day and retail revenue from
retailing Wigan Athletic Football Club (“Wigan AFC") branded
merchandise in the UK. The Group's performance obligations
under sponsorship agreements are to provide visibility of
sponsors’ name on Wigan AFC team shirt and selected
location, such as advertising board, inside DW Stadium during
the agreed sponsorship period. The Group’s performance
obligation for hospitality income is to provide conference and
event facilities during the service period. The revenue is
recognised over time on a straight-line basis during the
sponsorship and service period as the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer. Invoices are
generally due within 30 days. No significant financing
component existed. The retail revenue is recognised at a point
in time when control of the products has transferred, being at
the point of sale to the customer.

Live event income

The Group generates income from organising live event poker
events. The revenue are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the entity
has the right to invoice, which is representative to the service
being delivered. Invoices for live poker events are issued on
upon the end of event and payable within 90 days. No
significant financing component existed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.14 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Revenues from other hotel services are recognised over time
as the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer. The services are charged at a fixed rate with no
significant variable consideration. The Group recognised
revenue in the amount to which the entity has the right to
invoice, which is representative to the value of services being
delivered. No significant financing component existed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

3.15 Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 3.11 to the financial
statements and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration was become unconditional.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognised
room revenue before begin unconditional entitled to the
consideration under the payment term set out in the contract.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFTEEK#E)

(Continued)

3.15 EHNEEREBE(E)

3.15 Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received a
consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

3.16 Income taxes

Income tax charge represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted in the relevant jurisdictions by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.16 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
in the relevant jurisdictions that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHEER®
(Continued)
3.17 Foreign currencies 3.17 HhiE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (i.e. foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.18 Employee benefits

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Retirement benefit costs in Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. Prior to the MPF Scheme being
effective, the Group did not have any pension arrangements
for its employees.

132 Annual Report £#%2019/20

3.

BEAFHEE#)

3.18 EEER

EHREMRAESREF

75 HIE B 1R M R B IR AR 7% BAfE 1%
BRI A RENRITR S BER -
FMAERRREERMNIERBMAS  H
BEMBREENSZBERERAFE
BHEABERKARIERIN -

aEDRENIARF & ART RS
BMER BN GIREAE N2
k)T -

mEMRAER RN ERNAEIZ
B AREBRBERE BHERM
RHARTSF M AR FER 2R T A
BEFE - RBAAE - FEREHG
EZHBENKREENETAZHNE
miER - HEFBMBERELRZAR
TEHI R ABERRARIERSD

BEZBIEFHKA
RSB BIERD - AEE
RABRSETEHIBRIERES
BAREFEE(REEFTE ] 2FE
BERVIBEDRFE - MRBESAT
B2RA HRZERBEAFH S —F
Bt YR EMHEKE 8RS
ik - eEeHEELEAREEE
DR WHEBUBEREEESRHE A&
B2 B EHFN M RIE S B HNE
BHRBENER - BB EXA] -
AEEYESHEENEEMAERS
2 Hk



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRZ4H R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHEER®
(Continued)
3.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 3.18 BEEERI (&)
Retirement benefit costs in the Philippines FFREEZRIKBAIKE

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contribution. Contributions are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
where applicable.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained profits and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit obligations or assets.
Retirement benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
The Group presents the retirement benefit costs (other than
remeasurement) in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs in the United Kingdom

Subsidiary in the UK is one of a number of participating
employers in The Football League Limited Pension and Life
Assurance Scheme (the “Scheme”), a funded multi-employers
defined benefit scheme which has been closed to new
employees. The Group is unable to identify its share of the
assets and liabilities of the Scheme and consequently accounts
for its contributions into the Scheme as if they were paid to a
defined contribution scheme, which are recognised within the
profit or loss when they fall due.

The subsidiaries in the UK also contributes to various defined
contribution schemes for its employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The subsidiaries’
contributions into these schemes are recognised within the
profit or loss when they fall due.

3.19 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the employee share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each reporting
period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXgFTEEK#E)

(Continued)

3.19 Share-based payments (Continued) 3.19 URGAEBRNNR(E)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees and others providing similar services, the fair value
of goods or services received is recognised in profit or loss
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
When the entity cannot estimate reliably the fair value of
goods or services received, they are indirectly measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For cash-
settled share based payments, a liability is recognised at the
fair value of the goods or services received.

When the option is exercised, the amount recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share
premium account. When the option lapses, the amount
recognised in the share-based compensation reserve is
released directly to retained profits.

3.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

3.20 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

3.21

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXEHBE®)
(Continued)

3.2 BERSAREE

3.22 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of time value of money is
material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortization
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with HKAS 37.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.23 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

0]

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.23 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a party, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates and
assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

BAFHEE#)

3.23 BBEAL (&)

b (&)
(vii) ANFTEAIMALTHE
AEENSBZE

Z B ‘LEI’]l al)E

M AR AR X
Hﬁﬂ*

m};”‘m

\I]I]D

1% B Ak
TR HEMEEKE
ARHEEEE EFWE\

(viii)

P g ol
—‘fld

R

A

]

Xt

B

A

JiE)

=

mE DN

BRI ALEIRERBER A ZEZXE
MATREEREENRBRAENT
ZERNALTHENRE - EF A

() HZBATHTZEEEXEEFE
(=

(i) ZBALHEBXFEEFENHT
iR

(i) FRAALTREERBREEHED
XBAC

ERGFHETRAEEMZEE
KR

FEFRANSEEZ S5BUREK - EFARMWIET
HHMERNRREZER 2 EERABBRE
BEHHIE - At RRR - 2 A R
RE RN BE AR A R BAR (AR < H At
HZE - ERERKGBRINZFMHA -

hEt RAABRR G FEEL R - SFHEE
ZIERTWEREBERTEY - AIAH S AR
BRI E R KRG HEFHERT
FEZHNORKERE - BIEE e hEHERT
HRMERTE IR R R RERR - AEET A
ﬁﬂﬁzifgﬁﬁ&Efizﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂjfﬁﬁmgéﬁ%é
ZERER 2 T hEREAMT

Annual Report #£2019/20 139



International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREEF R A]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected
to be utilised by the Group. The Group reviews their estimated useful
lives based on factors that include technological changes, the
existing circumstances, prospective economic utilisation as well as
physical condition of the assets on a regular basis. The results of the
operations of the Group could be affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by the changes in the factors mentioned.
The management of the Group regularly reviews these factors in
determining the estimated useful lives of the assets.

A significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in these assets would result in a
change to the estimated useful lives to reflect the changed pattern.
A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the assets would
decrease the depreciation period of the assets and increase
depreciation provided to write off the cost of assets, while an
increase in the estimated useful lives of the assets, opposite impact
on depreciation period and depreciation would be resulted.

Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
arising from certain companies within the Group that are suffering
from losses for years amounted to approximately HK$142,996,000
(2019: HK$794,752,000) (details disclosed in note 26). No deferred tax
assets have been recognised and offset against deferred tax liabilities
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams from these
companies within the Group. The unused tax losses not recognised
may be crystallised if the actual future profits generated are more
than expected.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liability on the undistributed profits earned by the
subsidiaries of the Company in the Republic of the Philippines (the
“Philippines”) have been accrued at a tax rate of 15% on the
expected dividend stream of not less than 70 % of the yearly profit in
both years which is determined after taking into consideration of the
current dividend policy of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company.

The dividend policy is subject to the financial and market conditions,
the availability of funding and reserves available for distribution of
relevant subsidiaries of the Company in the Philippines. If the
dividend policy of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company has
changed, the deferred tax in relation to withholding tax of
undistributed earnings would be changed accordingly.

Investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
investment properties. Note 16 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties. The carrying
amount of investment properties as at 30 June 2020 was
HK$1,308,000,000 (30 June 2019: HK$1,510,000,000) as set out in
Note 16.
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—ECTFENA=THIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to disposal
calculations. The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs to disposal and value-in-use calculations; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in assessing the
recoverable amount, including cash flow projections, discount rates
etc.. Changing the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations.

A more detailed information in relation to the impairment
assessment of these assets are disclosed in Note 15.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of measurement

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties are measured at fair value.

The fair value measurements of the Group'’s financial assets and
investment properties utilise market observable inputs and data as
far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how observable the
inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value

hierarchy”):
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1
inputs;
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market

data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the
lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair
value measurement of the item. Transfers of items between levels
are recognised in the period they occur.

A more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of these assets is disclosed in note 16 and note 21.

Valuation of convertible bond

The directors of the Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group's convertible bond
which are not quoted in the active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants are applied. The fair value of
the financial liability and equity component varies from different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in these
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair
value of these component.

A more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of convertible bond is set out in note 32.

4.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus ("“COVID-19") since early 2020
has resulted in significant decrease in commercial activities such as
hotel and casino operation in the Philippines whereas the Group
operates and negatively affected the Group's business from
continuing operations, particular from January to June 2020 for the
year ended 30 June 2020. The Group has implemented certain
mitigating measures to contain costs, including renegotiating
reducing discretionary spending, and to preserve the Group's assets,
including collective of receivables.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Group has
taken into the account the increased risks caused by COVID-19 on
impairment of the Group's financial and non-financial assets when
assessing assets impairment including property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, investment
properties and expected credit losses on trade and other receivables
at the end of the reporting period. Management has been closely
monitoring the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
considered that, save as disclosed above, there is no other matters
that would result in a significant adverse impact on the Group's
results and financial position as at the reporting date as result of the
COVID-19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Decrease in sales and cash flows from hotel segment,
leading to impairment of non-current assets

As disclosed in Note 5, the revenue streams from the hotel
segment was decreased during the year which did not meet
the management budget. It is caused by the disruption of
hotel business in the Philippines since the global pandemic.
The Group considered the segment loss and failure of meeting
budgeted revenue as indicators of impairment, and therefore
determined the recoverable amount for all of its cash
generating units. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use was
higher in all cases due to the nature of the assets included in
the carrying amount of cash generating units. For details,
please refer to Note 15.

Fair value assessment of investment properties

During the year, the casino operated by PAGCOR in the
Group's property leased was closed from mid-March 2020
until 30 June 2020 because of the COVID-19 pandemic
situation in the Philippines. The Group measures fair value
based on a valuation carried out by JLL with income
capitalisation approach. The Group considered their
expectation on when the casino operated by PAGCOR can be
resumed as a significant judgement and the rental income
forecasts used in the income capitalisation approach were
probability weighted by scenarios. For detail assessment
please refer to Note 16.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—E_TFNA=THILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

4.

(c)

Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical
credit loss experience indicated significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the grouping for
trade receivables for the assessment of ECLs is by customer
segments.

During the year, the Group recorded an additional allowance
for expected credit losses of HK$1,640,000, reflecting a
reduction in the credit quality of its theatre related trade
receivables as a results of the COVID-19 global pandemic. The
management has incorporated their judgements on deciding
forward-looking factors in the calculation of expected credit
losses. Management's judgements regarding expected credit
losses are based on the facts available to management
currently. Due to the unprecedented nature of the COVID-19
pandemic, its effect on the Group’s customers and their ability
to meet their financial obligations to the Group is difficult to
predict. As a result, the Group's judgments and associated
estimates of expected credit losses may ultimately prove, with
the benefit of hindsight, to be incorrect.

For detail assessment of loss allowances for trade receivables,
please refer to Note 42(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING
Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to
make strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-maker has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is engaged
in business activities from which the Group may earn revenue and
incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the internal
management reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group's directors in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment.

The Executive Directors have determined that the Group has the
following reportable segments:

Continuing operations:

—  the "Hotel” segment represent the operation of hotel business
in the Philippines;

— the “Leasing” segment represent leasing of investment
properties equipped with entertainment equipment to
PAGCOR;

—  the "Live Events” segment represents the operation of live
poker events business.

Discontinued operation:

—  the "Football Club” segment represents the operation of
Wigan A.F.C, which is a football club in the UK. On 29 May
2020, Football Club segment was disposed of and presented
as discontinued operation for the year ended 30 June 2020
and comparatives for the period ended 30 June 2019 has been
re-presented accordingly (Note 13 and 33).
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T_ZTFENA=1THIFE

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

5.

(a)

Business segment

Segment information about these reportable segments is

presented below:

Year ended 30 June 2020

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
B4
BESEER R
Hotel Leasing  Live Events Subtotal Football Club Consolidated
BIE ik REEE Nt RRELE =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR T#x
Revenue — external DN IS 82,010 140,728 4,227 226,965 125,073 352,038
Segment results DEVELE (24,917) (190,493) (1,711) (217,121) (199,142) (416,263)
Unallocated other income AOREMBEA 1,062
Exchange losses EHER (10,950)
Change in fair value of financial XA FEFF ABZE 2
assets at FVTPL FREENTES 29,066
Change in fair value of financial XA FEFF ABZE 2
liabilities at FVTPL SRHEEATEED 13,173
Share of loss of associates AMEEE DR (126)
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl (2,690)
Legal and professional fees e EEE (7,542)
Salaries and allowances k2Rt (12,014)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & FEIEEEITE (1,364)
Finance costs BI%E R (27,011)
Unallocated expenses ARERAX (5,418)
Loss before taxation for the year ~ FRTHATE B (440,077)
Less: loss before taxation A BRREELLE
for the period from BaEB I RE
discontinued operation AIER 199,142
Loss before taxation for the year  FRBE B ELSEHK
from continuing operations ZBERIER (240,935)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2020

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory note
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities

BE

DEEE

ANEEE
BRTEERRSE
BAFERA

BaceREE

NNl
At

5.

Hotel
BIE
HK$’000
TERT

296,455

67,447

1,686,865 20,826

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

DEBHRE (&)

XKD (&)
R-ZE-ZEFXA=1H

Leasing Live Events Consolidated
ik REED o)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz Tz Tz
2,004,146
380,218
93,441

55,228
5,636

2,538,669

258,023 2,655 328,125
370,310

44,692

7,062

750,189
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e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—T —TF NA=1THIFFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Addition to property, plant and
equipment

Addition to investment properties

Amortisation of intangible assets

Addition to intangible assets

Provision/(reversal) of expected credit
osses

Change in fair value of investment
properties

Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL

Change in fair value of financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss of right-of-use assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Share of loss of associates

Interest income

Income tax credit

n% BERRENE

EREERERE
REME B RRE

RERENE
BARER
FEEVEE
EREERERR/
(%)
RENRZATEE

BRRFEAEEL
TREELTERD
RATERABEZ
EREBATERD
ER P E
BB

feFREAE)
HEMBAR
(FRERT
MEKA
FEHES

=

&8
Yo
B

pesl]

Bk

pa

esll}
IIIZIIJ

=5

5. ERERE @)

(a) EB2EWE)

BE-Z-_ZFXA=+HLEFE

Continuing operations

FREERY

Discontinued
operation
BAL
fEE

Hotel
BE

HK$'000

TiEn

29,040
2,103

7,146

953

8,709
666

(34)
(3,838)

Leasing  LiveEvents Unallocated
BE  REED L)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TAR

14,694 109 557
388 = 1,364
19,811 = 14
33,967 = =
(60) = =
262,125 = =
= = (29,066)

- - (13,173)

- - 126
(6,323) - (236)
(2,627) = =

Subtotal Football Club
Mt RRELE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TRT AR
44,400 8,238
3,855 1,590
26,971 4,720
33,967 -
- 52,589

- 81,491

893 294
262,125 -
(29,066) -
(13,173) -
8,709 -
666 -

- (127,962)

126 =
(6,593) =
(6,465) (318)

Consolidated
G4
HK$'000
TARL

52,638
5,445

31,691
33,967
52,589
81,491

1,187

262,125

(29,066)

(13,173)

8,709
666
(127,962)
126
(6,593)
(6,783)
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—ZE_FTFNA=1THILFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SEREmE#)
(a) Business segment (Continued) (@ EBoIE)
Period ended 30 June 2019 BE-E—-AEANA=1TRHLEH

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

BEIE

FERITEEH mexn
Hotel Leasing Live Events Subtotal  Football Club  Consolidated
BE ik B5EE NEE o RIRBE wa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TET THET TET TET

(Re-presented)

(& E5)
Revenue — external WA — b 141,300 229,521 5161 375,982 80,936 456,918
Segment results DEEE (28693) 60,553 (2,897) 28963 (11899) 17,064
Unallocated other income FOREMEA 4428
Co-branding, sales and marketing ~ fAERH & « $HE K&
services income BEIRBBUA 14,445
Exchange losses EREE (2,299)
Change in fair value of financial ~ RAFEFABZEZ
assets at FVTPL SREEATEED (51,770)
Auditor's remuneration ZEANE (6,648)
Legal and professional fees FENEEE (16,619)
Salaries and allowances ez (12,203)
Rental expenses HeHx (4,218)
Finance costs MEER (21.202)
Unallocated expenses KPR HY (5637)
Loss before taxation for the period 2 &1 Al &5 18 (84,659)
Less: loss before taxation forthe  J& : HIRJRE B4R 1E
period from discontinued BRI
operation EiE 11,899
Loss before taxation for the period  EAPIR B B EE L EHK
from continuing operations BRRTER (72,760)
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. SEBERE ()
(a) Business segment (Continued) (@ EBoIWE)
At 30 June 2019 R=ZB—AFARA=+H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
2L
FELEE REX
Hotel Leasing Live Events  FootballClub  Consolidated
BIE 8% Rgas  RINELE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FHET TAET THET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 310,023 1,821,763 21809 422,362 2,576,157
Unallocated assets ADEEE
Bank balances and cash BOBERRS 21,876
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRL
TREE 191,360
Others Hit 7979
Consolidated total assets ~ ERAEEMAE 2797372
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities ak: =0 56,044 248,903 1643 99074 405,664
Unallocated liabilities AoEEE
Promissory note ERER 353223
Others Hit 4,799
Consolidated total liabilites 474 B EA% 763,686
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Period ended 30 June 2019

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment
Addition to property, plant and
equipment

Addition to investment properties

Amortisation of intangible assets

Addition to intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets

Provision for expected credit losses

Change in fair value of investment

properties

Change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss

Gain on bargain purchase

Interest income

Loss on written-off property, plant

and equipment
Income tax expense/(credit)

W% BERRENE

REME  BERRE

FERENE
sVAEES
RESVAE
SYAEAE
BHRAERRE
BANE2 DVES

BRRFEABELZ
HENERE

MERA

fEn%  BERREER

s/ (E%)

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE_F_FFNA=THIFE
5. EBERE ()
(@) RBDE(HE)
BE-—Z-NAFAA=+HLHHB

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

BRI
Hotel Leasing LiveEvents  Unallocated Subtotal ~ Foothall Club  Consolidated
i3 1% RBED AR PG RRERE wa
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

33790 14674 334 401 49199 5172 54371
18139 29147 154 1432 48872 23960 72832
- 54813 - - 54813 - 54813

- - - - - 28583 28583

- - - - - 14,268 14,268

- - - - - 3954 3954

146 70 - - 216 663 879

- 8939 - - 8939 - 893%

- - - 51770 51,770 - 51770

- - - - - (11679)  (1167%0)
(189) (7,204 - (244) (7631) - (7631)
210 - - 59 2179 - 2179
£ 13868 - - 14,240 (5,606) 8634
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T_ZTFENA=1THIFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) Se

(b) Disaggregation of revenue (b)

DEBERE (&)

WA D1
TEHEIZTSHENS  TBESR
BB TE B A R A BRI D32
WA o FEIFEZ D HFRA A EE
A 23R SR 2 Y8R o

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary
geographical market, major products and service lines and
timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s
reportable segments.
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Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-Z-ZFXA=1+HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BALE
BELSEEK RExK
Hotel Leasing  LiveEvents Subtotal Football Club Consolidated
BE 1% RSED Mt RREEH &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn TiEn T TiEn TiEn
Primary geographical markets £ Z#E 715
The Philippines FEE 82,010 140,728 - 222,738 - 222,738
The UK i - - - - 125,073 125,073
Others Hit - - 4,227 4,227 - 4,227
82,010 140,728 4,227 226,965 125,073 352,038
Timing of revenue recognition A B2
Transferred over time FERF el
Room revenue ERMA 56,705 - - 56,705 - 56,705
Food and beverages R 23218 - - 23218 16,261 39,479
Other hotel service income HibBEREBA 2,087 - - 2,087 - 2,087
Commercial income BERA - - - - 21,825 21,825
Broadcasting income BEIA - - - - 64,181 64,181
Matchday income HEBRA - - - - 17,377 17,377
Live event income BEEHMA - - 4,227 4,227 - 4,227
82,010 - 4,227 86,237 119,644 205,881
Transferredatapointintime M E—EEEH
Commercial income BERA - - - - 3,337 3,337
Other source ofincome EMYATR
Leasing of investment properties A& A 1RLRE 7
equipped with entertainment AN E
equipment - 140,728 - 140,728 - 140,728
Leasing of stadium HEEES - - - - 2,092 2,092
- 140,728 - 140,728 2,092 142,820
82,010 140,728 4,227 226,965 125,073 352,038
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

Period ended 30 June 2019

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-FFEXNA=FHIFE
5. DEBRE (@)
(b) WADHF (&)
BE-Z-NAFXA=ZTHLEPHB

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
BREEEY BEE
Hotel Leasing Live Events Subtotal  Football Club ~ Consolidated
il ibys B5ED et RIREEE ra
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T
Primary geographical markets L ZEHET %5
The Phiippines FRE 141,300 229521 - 370821 - 370821
The UK B - - - - 80936 80936
Others Eth - - 5,161 5,161 - 5,161
141,300 229521 5161 375,982 80,936 456918
Timing of revenue recognition WA B33 AFE
Transferred over time bR
Room revenue FREMA 90,122 - - 90,122 - 90,122
Food and beverages 24 48299 - - 48299 12030 60329
Other hotel service income EiBRERBRA 2879 - - 2879 - 2879
Commercial income BEMA - - - - 12787 12787
Broadcasting income TN - - - - 40,197 40,197
Matchday income SERRA - - - - 15,102 15,102
Live eventincome RS EHRA - - 5,161 5,161 - 5,161
141,300 - 5161 146,461 80,116 226577
Other source of income EMUAKE
Leasing of investment properties  TE S RBRERIE L
equipped with entertainment~ RENE
equipment - 229,521 - 229,521 - 229,521
Leasing of stadium HEERS - - - - 820 820
- 229,521 - 229,521 820 230,341
141,300 229,521 5161 375982 80936 456918
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c) Geographicinformation

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s non-
current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax
assets and post-employment benefit assets (“Specified non-
current assets”).

DERERE (&)
() HEER

TREHAKEXESRTA  RE
MIAEERBERBNEE ([HEFR
BEE ) SINERBEEZ N

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=B=TF RKZE-NF
NA=T1H NA=TH

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
The Philippines JERE 1,678,206 1,810,144
The UK FE - 367,714
Others Hip 1,914 1,654
1,680,120 2,179,512

(d) Information about major customers d EBEEFEFZER

Included in the revenue generated from leasing segment of
approximately HK$140,728,000 (2019: HK$229,521,000) were
contributed by the Group’s largest customer and the
aggregate revenue from this customer represented
approximately 40% (2019: 50%) of the total revenue of the
Group. There are no other single customers contributing over
10% of the Group's total revenue.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

OTHER INCOME 6. HftgA
Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HE
—ECEBFE —E-hNF
NA=t+H ~NA=+H
LHFE 1EHAR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ExT FHET
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7)
Continuing operations RS ERK
Co-branding, sales and marketing mhREE L IHE L
service income BR AU A = 14,445
Interest income B A 6,593 7,631
Sundry income B 9,623 4,431
16,216 26,507
OTHER LOSSES, NET 7. HthEHERE
Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEE —E-NF
ANB=t1H ~NA=1H
LEE LEHAME
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(KE5)
Continuing operations ISR
Net foreign exchange losses B 5, 5 185 R (13,759) (8,759)
Written-off of other receivables T 58 EL A FE IURIR (2,670) -
Loss on written-off of property, MY - BE REE BB
plant and equipment (430) (2,179)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BB KRBz s
plant and equipment 45 -
Waive of other payables B M EN R - 1,256
Others Hith (18) -
(16,832) (9,682)
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HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS

8.

MHEER

Year ended Period ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

BZE HE

—E-EF —E-NEF

ANA=T1H ~NA=1H

LHEFE 1EHARS

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHExT TFHET

Continuing operations IFERE XN

Interest on promissory note =R B 17,086 21,203
Interest on bank borrowings |ITEEFE 6,495 2,029
Interest on other borrowings HiEEF S 6,545 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 3,359 -
Interest on convertible bond AT ESF S 3,266 -
36,751 23,232
Less: Amount capitalised (note) B B 'E (M) (4,217) (1317)
32,534 21915

Note:

ez -

F/PRNENMEERATIREAREEREEZ R
borrowings to expenditure on qualifying assets. EEE -

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year/period arose on the specific
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BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

9. FRIRAIEIR

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HE
—ECEBFE —T-hF
ANA=T1H ~NAZ=+H
LHFE 1-HRE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ExT FET
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7)
Continuing operations RS ER
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BEAIEBEINR(GFA)
charging/(crediting): THEIE -
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EEMe (FF10) 3,953 6,315
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments): BINAKN(TEEEEHE) -
Salaries and allowances e KRR 45,921 57,666
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRBFETEIH K 1,459 1,619
Total staff costs @8 TR 51,333 66,100
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL A F(EFFABR 2 S REE
NI (EEE (29,066) 51,770
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BAFEFABZZEHAR
at FVTPL (note 32) NV EZE (FaE32) (13,173) -
Change in fair value of investment properties "EWE 2 N EEY (HiFi6)
(note 16) 262,125 89,396
Impairment loss of property, plant and Y - BE &R ERERIE
equipment (note 15) (KtaE15) 8,709 -
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets (note 20)  {# F#E & E BB E5 18 (A17E 20) 666 -
Auditor's remuneration IZEEN N &
— Audit services — Bz 1,740 4,006
— Non-audit service — EE RS 950 2,642
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MRAERZ ZFEKAK 24,279 31,309
Minimum lease payment under non-cancellable  “RAJ S5 FR 4 ZHETE T &K
lease arrangements HAOMES - 10,937
Short-term lease payment RAERAES 2,361 -
Low-value assets lease payment KEEEEHENHES 19 -
Provision for expected credit losses of FEUBRIATE Bz B BB G
trade receivables 893 216
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% « E M RETE 44,400 49,199
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 3,855 -
Legal and professional fees ERREXER 10,452 18,164
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST 10. EEMERESFHA LT
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Bz HE
—B-EF —T-hF
ANA=T1H ~NAZ=Z1H
LFE 1-HAfE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Directors’ fees E=Yokn
— Executive directors —HITES 2,917 4337
— Independent non-executive Directors — B IEMITES 720 964
Basic remuneration, allowances EAREW - 2R KBV
and benefits in kind 280 1,446
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRTEF IR 36 68
3,953 6,815
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2019: eight) ENSENASNB(CE—NE: \B)ESH
directors were as follows: AZBHEnT :
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-Z-_ZFXA=1+HLEFE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
AR -
EEER EARER
e BEYA= B #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FHE T
Executive directors HITES
Dr. CHOI Chiu Fai Stanley EEEE L 1,200 - 18 1,218
Mr. CHAN Chun Yiu Thomas* PR R ST A 1,717 280 18 2,015
Independent non-executive EVIEHITES
directors
Mr. HA Kee Choy Eugene BHEARE 240 = - 240
Ms. LU Gloria Yi BEZrz+ 240 - - 240
Mr. LAU Ka Ho! BRZRAE 20 - - 20
Mr. SUN Jiong? FImAE A 220 = - 220
3,637 280 36 3,953
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST 10. EFMMEeRESFALTE)

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Period ended 30 June 2019

BE-Z-NEAA=+HLHH

Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
EREB -
AL & R
e B FTEIHR HEt
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHAT FHAT FH&T
Executive directors HITES
Dr. CHOI Chiu Fai Stanley HHABIE L 1,500 - 23 1,523
Mr. LAM Yat Ming? M—IS S A 160 - 4 164
Mr. ZHANG Yan Min® RFEER LA 1,200 1,176 23 2,399
Mr.CHAN Chun Yiu Thomas* ~ BROKBESEA 1,477 270 18 1,765
Independent non-executive B EHITES
directors
Mr. REN Yunan? EEBEAE? 64 - - 64
Ms. LU Gloria Yi BEZrz+ 300 - - 300
Mr. SUN Jiong? B 300 - - 300
Mr. HA Kee Choy Eugene BHEALAE 300 - - 300
5,301 1,446 68 6,815

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation
for loss of office for the year (2019: Nil). In addition, none of the
directors had waived any emoluments during the current year or

prior period.

Notes:

1 The director was appointed on 1 June 2020.

2 The director resigned on 1 June 2020.

3 These directors were resigned on 6 July 2018.

4 The executive director was appointed on 6 July 2018 and resigned on 1
September 2020.

5 The executive director was resigned on 30 June 2019.

FR - AKELERATANESIHME - F
AINEASE B IR 2 R BB (E
ZENFE) I RAFEIBRE
HifE) - SIEEERERDEAHE -

e -

A ow N =

BHEEN_ZT-_TFA-REZRE-
EHESEN _Z-TFRA—HEHE-
ZEEEN T\ FLANBEHE -
BRARTEEN - N\FLARNBEZREL
R-ZZB_TFNA—BHIE -
BHHTEER -2 -NFRNA=ZTHBHE -
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST 10. EEMEREEHFA LT @)

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2019: two) was director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2019: three) individuals, of which one (2019: Nil) of
individuals were senior management of the Group, in the Group

were as follows:

REFAL

AEBRERSHFALT  —R (TN
F:MB)ALRARRES  HME Bt
ALX PR BES - HpME(ZF— N
F:ZR)AL(EF—B(ZE-NF )
ALTAREESREREAR) RAEE 2 B
FIT

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE =
—B-EF —E-hEF
AA=TH NA=1H
LEFE 1EHAR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&x FHEIT
(Restated)
(fE%))
Continuing operations R
Basic salaries and allowances BEAXFH & MOER 7,362 5,744
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRIRTEFIFHEI R 99 542
Discretionary or performance related BiE s BRI HES
incentive payments 267 1177
7,728 7,463

The emoluments were within the following bands:

BB T

Year ended Period ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

B= H=E

—EC-F —E-hEF

~NA=+H NA=TH

IEFE 1-EAfE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

(Restated)

(se&E5)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 7 7T 2 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77T 2 2,000,000 7 7T -

HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,000, 7T 2,500,000 & 7T 1 -

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000 77T 1 -

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T 2 5,000,000 7 7T
4 3
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Board of Directors and Senior
management” section of this annual report, were within the
following bands:

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

10. EEMEREEHFALTE)

BEHFAL#E)

REBSREBEAR (HABEEFBHENAF
HRIEEFERaRERBAE] &) 2HE®
BT

Year ended Period ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

BZE H=

—E-EF —E-hF

NA=1H ~NA=1H

IEFEE 1EHARE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N
At or below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 T A T =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 7 7T 1

1 4

The discretionary or performance related incentive payments are
determined by reference to the individual performance of the
employees of the Group.

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors or any of the five highest paid individual as inducement to
join or upon joining of the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director waived any emoluments in the year ended 30
June 2020 and the period ended 30 June 2019.

IS M RBHBRE HESEREEER
BEZERBET -

FR - AREYEFAEFSIAEZRSFAL
REFMALTXNME - ERMBEAEEER
MBER 2 RS REBAHE - BE_T_FTF
NAZTRALEFERBE-_ZT-NEXA
=T HIEHRE - RS REEEUTAMSE -

Annual Report #2019/20 163



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRE44H R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For theyear ended 30 June 2020

e
: 5

EoTENA=1HIFE
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

The amount of tax recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

11. FR1SRR (IB%R) i

RigEemNaRERZHIELTEE

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HE
—EZEF —E—NF
~NA=1H NAZ=1H
LHEFE 1FHARE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
(Re-presented)
(fe=3%1))
Continuing operations ISR
Current tax BIHARR 18 -
Deferred tax (credit)/expense RERIE (KR),/ S (6,465) 14,240
Income tax (credit)/expense Fig®i (%), i (6,465) 14,240

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$S2 million for the year ended 30 June
2020 and period ended 30 June 2019. No provision for taxation in
Hong Kong was made in the financial statements for the current year
as the Group's operations in HK had no assessable profits.

The Group's subsidiaries in the Philippines are subject to the
Philippines profits tax rate of 30% for the year ended 30 June 2020
and period ended 30 June 2019. The withholding tax rate in respect
of a dividend distributed by a subsidiary of the Company operating
in the Philippines to its overseas immediate holding company is 15%
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the period ended 30 June 2019.
No provision for taxation in the Philippines was made in the financial
statements for the current year as the Group’s operations in the
Philippines had no assessable profits.

The Group's subsidiary in Macau is subject to Macau profits tax rate
of 12% for the year ended 30 June 2020 and period ended 30 June
2019. No provision for taxation was made in the financial statements
for the current year as the Group's operations in Macau had no
assessable profits.
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11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

. PSR GE%R) ZH @)

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HZE
—ECEH ZE-NF
~A=+H ANA=+A
IEFE 1EHAM
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
(Re-presented)
(FeE5)
Continuing operations BELSEER
Loss before taxation B B A E 18 (240,935) (72,760)
Taxation at the principal tax rates applicable LEBEFRERNENcEE
to profits in the country concerned HERTE ZHE (72,281) (21,828)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REM REEREEEE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEBAR TR R 28 (2,092) 24519
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TAHIHASZ 2 BB 2
tax purpose 1,973 1,607
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose T ZEFRIRUWA 2 IS & (4,512) 67)
Tax effect of net income derived from M PAGCOR W13 FTEE A
leasing of properties to PAGCOR BARBRKWAFE
not taxable for tax purpose Hgee (14,957) (39,614)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and AR AIARERTIEBER
deductible temporary difference AMAEREE G E
not previously recognised (160) (373)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible RERTIEBE R IIRERE
temporary differences not recognised R BGE 85,564 49,996
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year/period &,/ BIRFTISH (&), S H (6,465) 14,240

At 30 June 2020, there are tax dispute cases between MSPI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally
engaging in the business of leasing of properties in the Philippines,
and Bureau of Internal Revenue (“BIR") in the Philippines for the
calendar years of 2008, 2012, 2014 and 2015 which were pending for
final decision of the court. Based on the advice of the independent
legal advisor of the subsidiary, the Directors believe that MSPI has
valid legal arguments to defend the tax disputes and concluded that
the possibility of additional tax liabilities is remote.

RZTEZZEFANA=Z1+H AQRMEE
2EMBRATIMSPI(EERFEREREME
L FH 3£ 75 ) B2 5E 722 Bureau of Internal Revenue
(BRODHEGBFEBEE-_ZEZEN\F - —F—=
F ZE-NER_FE-RFEFNHEBEU
MEM - MRERRERER - RIEBZMB A
RBAEBERNER - EFEEMSPIHESR
WULAERERB B UL IE - SHERR
AIER RN IR B B/ 1] B2 AR o
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For theyear ended 30 June 2020

e
;s

13.

F_FFENA=FHUFE
DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2020 (Period ended 30 June 2019: nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 14 February 2020, the Company and Next Leader Fund, L.P. (the
"Purchaser”) entered into a sales and purchase agreement (the “Sales
and Purchase Agreement”) to sell the entire issued shares of the
subsidiary, Newworth Ventures Limited (“Newworth”), to the
Purchaser. Detail information of the transaction is set out in Note 33.

The disposal (the “Disposal”) was completed on 29 May 2020 (the
"Disposal Date”) and constitutes a discontinued operation under
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” as the Disposal Group, which mainly consisted of the
Football Club, represented one of the major lines of business of the
Group.

The management of the Group was notified that on 1 July 2020, the
Five Disposed Subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, including but not
limited to Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited, were put into administration
under the law of the United Kingdom. The Administrators were
appointed on the same date and have taken control of the Five
Disposed Subsidiaries since then. Despite the Company's repeated
negotiations with the Administrators for the arrangement of the
audit work of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries, the Administrators
informed that they are unable to assist in the audit work of the Five
Disposed Subsidiaries given that they are in the process of selling
the business and assets of the Five Disposed Subsidiaries.
Accordingly, the unaudited management accounts of the Disposal
Group as at 29 May 2020 were used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and for the calculation of the loss
from the discontinued operation of the Group for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13. BERIEREERE 2

Analysis of the results of the discontinued operation:

ERIEEEEBEGE DN -

Period from
1July 2019

to the Period ended

Disposal Date 30 June 2019

B=ZF—hF HE

tHA—HEE —E-NF

HEBH ~NAZ=Z+H

LEEA R 1EHAM

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHIT

Revenue WA 125,073 80,936
Cost of sales 85 & AR AR (198,841) (130,375)
Gross loss Ei8 (73,768) (49,439)
Other income =N 6,971 861
Other gain Hith Yz 2,657 7,325
General and administrative expenses —RITEA X (132,807) (87,436)
Finance costs Mi%EMA (2,195) -
Income tax credit FrigBif e 318 5,606

Loss for the period from TREERILEEES 2

discontinued operation HAEE (198,824) (123,083)
Operating cash outflows KEIR S (90,532) (92,469)
Investing cash outflows HER ML (53,924) (211,849)
Financing cash inflows BMEHRESMA 141,074 311,273
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be R,/ A FE (3,382) 6,955
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13.

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % ~ = & EITE

Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEpEE K=
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEITE
Provision of expected credit losses TEEEEEERE
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE

BRILEER (&)
BB AT IRAING, (5HA) T35 1E :

Period from
1July 2019
to the Period ended
Disposal Date 30 June 2019
B=Z2—-hF BHE
tA—HREZE —E-NF
HEBH ~NA=+H
LEEAE 1EHAM
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
(Re-presented)
(#EE5)
8,238 5172
(891) (8,828)
52,589 28,583
1,590 -
294 663
2,195 -

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Disposal Group
at the Disposal Date are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statement.

A gain of approximately HK$127,962,000 arose on Disposal Group,
being the proceeds of the Disposal less the carrying amount of the
Disposal Group's net assets to the Group. No tax charge or credit
arose from the Disposal.

For the purpose of presenting the discontinued operation, certain
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and
the related notes have been restated to present the results of the
Disposal Group as discontinued operation in the comparative period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

14. (LOSS)/PROFIT PER SHARE 14. 8k (&18) &
The basic and diluted (loss)/profit per share attributable to the AR BEEARBEEREARAREE(E
owners of the Company are calculated as follows: 18)/BATIRE TSR E -
Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BE HE
—ECEF —T-NF
NA=1+H ~NA=1+H
LLFE 1EHAR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
(Re-presented)
(Fg&E7))
Continuing operations FBECEET (234,470) (87,000)
Discontinued operation BRI EER (45,094) 9473
(279,564) (77,527)
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019

RZZE-TF R_ZT—NF
~NE=1+H NA=1H

‘000 '000
TR Fix
Number of shares KB E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — FA AR & &I E A K #58
for the purposes of basic and diluted (E518) /BF 2z L@k
(loss)/profit per share FHE 1,369,157 1,369,157
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

14. (LOSS)/PROFIT PER SHARE (Continued) 14. S (B548) &% @)

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HE
—E-TF —E-NEF
ANA=1H NA=+H
LHEFE 1EHARS
HK Cents HK Cents
AL AL
(Re-presented)
(F&&E7))
(Loss)/profit per share S (E8B),/&F
Basic AR
— Continuing operations — B EL (17.13) (6.35)
— Discontinued operation — BERIEEEER (3.29) 0.69
(20.42) (5.66)
Diluted g
— Continuing operations — BB (17.13) (6.35)
— Discontinued operation — BRIEEEER (3.29) 0.69
(20.42) (5.66)

AEBECTETERA=THIEFEZS
I (B18), /BRI ERRITEARE
WARTTREZ B E  RESZEERE 21T
EESHNEOFRZ FHNE -

The computation of diluted (loss)/profit per share for the year ended
30 June 2020 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those options is
higher than the average market price for shares for the year.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

15. 3R, BB Meskdi

Freehold Leasehold Furniture,
land and land and Leasehold fixturesand ~ Entertainment Computer Motor  Construction
buildings buildings ~ improvements Machinery equipment equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
KA%RLH EeIRE 3
REF HELHRET HELE HE e ] BRERE BHRE bt HRIE Eh
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TR i Tk T T Thn T T T Tén
Cost: A
At31 March 2018 R\
=R=1-H - 464338 3413 89124 62736 13757 108 125 - 758502
Acquistion of subsidiaries WEHEAR - 5 11,108 - 4578 - 11487 2574 - 441
Additions hE 16683 5716 13% 4409 10998 28854 34 4“9 3990 72832
Disposals e - - - (1353) (1.950) (4490) - - - (7793)
Written-off i - - ) (17%9) (1239) (#97) (1) - (2120 (49179)
Eichange adjustments EfEE (319) (6177) 351 1213 B0 0417 (376) 57 4 #3492
At30June 2019 RZE-NFRAZTA 16,368 836,602 19,470 91,595 138,294 140,338 1,522 420 1915 1,260,326
Disposal of subsidiaries (note33) &M BAR (Wi 33) (15,722) (351,603) (10,634) - (44,398) - (12,427) (2,391) S #37,175)
Additions TE - - 1,004 81 10,103 18,188 1,776 539 - 31,691
Disposals hE - - - - (704) - 67) 431) - (1,202)
Witten-off i - - - - (173) (1472) (215) - - (8/460)
Transfer &4 - 1,920 - - - - - - (1,920) -
Eichange adjustments ERAE (646) (4873) (200) 1876 2%5 3,062 (a91) (61) 5 (1,063)
At30 June 200 RZEZRERAZ1A - 482,046 9,640 93,552 102,787 154116 98 1878 - 844,117
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERRESR:
andimpairment loss:
At31 March 2018 RIE-)\E
ZR=1-8 - 205821 1668 80627 55,788 113,745 4 832 - 458513
Acquistion of subsidiaries WENBAR - 77685 6715 - 35412 - 9938 2101 - 131851
Provision for the period il t 107 29139 826 3889 5319 14147 547 397 - 54371
Flimination on disposal HERHH - - - (1342 (1867) (4289) - - - (7498)
Elimination on wrtten-off HEELE - - ) (17%9) (1210 (#3%69) (16) - - 47,000
Exchange adjustments ERA% Ul 764 369 1086 B4 21,754 (33 3 - 5013
At30 June 2019 RZE-NERAZ1H 105 313,409 12,895 82,461 116,656 101,388 10,179 3277 - 640,370
Disposal of subsidiaries (note33) ~ (HEMBAR (M 3) (721) (78,143) 6,896) - (36,601) - (10421) (2,214) - (134,99)
Provision for the year 640 2521 1,522 3117 7,044 13,682 882 480 - 52,638
Impairment loss 2 - 7,928 - 216 551 - - 14 - 8,709
Elmination on disposal g - - - - (607) - - (a31) - (1,038)
Elimination on written-off ifiEg - - - - (544) (7,464) 22 - - (8,030)
Exchange adjustments EREE (24) 2,365 (357) 1,746 268 2,291 (543) 68) - 5,678
At30June 2020 RZE-FFRA=TA - 270,830 7,164 87,540 86,767 109,897 75 1,058 - 563,331
Camying amount BaE:
At30 June 200 Sy - 211216 2476 6,012 16,020 44219 3 820 - 280,786
At30June 2019 RZE-NF/RA=1H 16263 523193 6575 913 21638 38950 1383 95 1915 619956
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For theyear ended 30 June 2020

e
2

E-BFNA=THILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Impairment tests for Property, plant and equipment

The Hotel CGU is tested for impairment as the hotel segment
recorded a segment loss during the financial year/period ended
2020 and 2019. For the purpose of impairment testing, gross carrying
amount of properties, plant and equipment of HK$243,733,000 and
right-of-use assets of HK$18,646,000 of the hotel segment were
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGU") of Hotel. The
recoverable amounts of the Hotel CGU have been determined with
reference to the valuation prepared by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent valuer not
connected to the Group by income capitalisation approach. Key
assumptions used in calculating the recoverable amount are as
follows:

15. %, WBEMNEREE)

W BERKZEZRENR
HERCEEEMIEAREE_S-_SFK
T hiﬁ%ﬁif/%ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ
E’J/@E’\‘ TTRERIE o shs BRI i
= @E“ﬂ%% B K i R BRE
243,733,000 %5 7T N {5 FAAE & EE 18,646,000 7T
PTREZEHERSEABEN(RESELE
fiz]) o BEIRSEE BN AU E £ FEIREE
NEE I B 2 B HEMPERIT
TMERERBERAT ((PEHT) HRR 2
BIRRABRMEETE - sTE /]I E S 8T
FERERENT

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R=B=E R-_T-NF

ANHA=T1H NAZ=1H

Growth rate of revenue Wasig K= 4.0% 45%

Discount rate E=R 11.0% 11.5%

Capitalisation rate BEAREEE &R 7.0% 7.0%
During the year, segment loss is recorded for the hotel segment FRNBIEDHLEEOEEE BE A

since the COVID-19 pandemic’s effects became widespread and
tourist activities was restricted in the Philippines. The income
forecasts used in the income capitalisation approach were
probability weighted based on the following scenarios to account
for the impact of COVID-19 as discussed in Note 4:

—  Base case (80% weighting): Subject to the travel restriction
and reduction in customer demands, revenue generated from
hotel segment can be recovered steadily in the second half
during the financial year of 2020/21 when tourism activities
expected to be resumed.

—  Negative case (20% weighting): Subject to the travel restriction
and reduction in customer demands, revenue generated from
hotel segment can be recovered steadily in the financial year
of 2021/22 when tourism activities expected to be resumed.

The recoverable amount of the Hotel CGU measured from income
capitalisation approach is approximately HK$252,839,000. Therefore,
an impairment loss was provided to properties, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets attributable to the Hotel CGU as at 30 June
2020. The properties, plant and equipment was impaired by
approximately HK$8,709,000 and right-of-use assets was impaired by
approximately HK$666,000 of the Hotel CGU during the year and
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

16. REME

Total
st
HKS$'000
FHIT

FAIR VALUE NEE
At 31 March 2018 R-E—N\FE=ZA=+—H 1,527,000
Addition NE 54,813
Fair value loss NEEEE (89,396)
Exchange adjustment PE 5 2 17,583
At 30 June 2019 RZZE-NFRA=TH 1,510,000
Addition NE 33,967
Fair value loss N EEE (262,125)
Exchange adjustment B 3, 3 B 26,158
At 30 June 2020 R-B-EBEXA=1H 1,308,000

The above investment properties are located in the Philippines. The
Group's property interest held to earn rentals is measured using the
fair value model and is classified and accounted for as investment

property.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 30 June 2020
was approximately HK$1,308,000,000 (30 June 2019:
HK$1,510,000,000). The fair value has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by JLL, an independent valuer not connected
with the Group. JLL is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

Investment properties are pledged to a bank to secure the loan and
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

HlREYMEURNIFRE - AEREFRERN
MeEzMERSEAFEEXFE  XO8R
RS BEEDE

AREEREVER-_Z-_EFA=+HZ
NF{EHL) A1,308,000,0008 7T (ZE—NFR
A=48 :1,510000000/87T) ° AFETE
RSB A E 2 B A EM 2T
ETZHEET - MEBTAD BN SME

P
= = o
EIE/E\

KREMEILERT—RRT  ERAKER
BRERR—RRITEVE (MFE31) 28\ -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

e
16.

E-BESA=FHIFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value was determined based on the income approach,
where capitalising the estimated net income derived from the
investment properties with reference to the Lease Agreement and
taking into account the future growth potential with reference to
historical income trend achieved in previous years. The discount rate
was determined by reference to weighted average cost of capital of
the listed companies with similar business portfolio. There had been
no change from the valuation technique used in the prior year. Key
assumptions used in calculating the recoverable amount are as
follows:

Growth rate of revenue W5 R &
Discount rate rE X
Capitalisation rate Bt &

16. IXEWME#)

RFERARAEETE - EP2EREHHS
RREBEMEMBEFTRAFRENL - Aat
RARKIERES  EFSEGFERBE
WABE - fIBEX2ZAGBREXRTES 2

MRBZINEFHERKAEE - FTAMA

BEREEFIEES R o FTE AU EISREFT
RAEERENT
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=ZB-2F pPZT—IF
~NA=1H ANA=ZTH
3.0% 3.0%
11.5% 12.0%
7.5% 7.5%

During the year, the casino operated by PAGCOR in the Group’s
property leased was closed from mid-March 2020 until 30 June 2020
because of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in the Philippines. The
rental income forecasts used in the income capitalisation approach
were probability weighted based on the following scenarios to
account for the impact of COVID-19 as disclosed in Note 4:

—  Base case (80% weighting): The casino operated by PAGCOR
can resume its business on January 2021, and since then the
Group’'s rental income can resume to ordinary level
comparable with 2019's forecast.

—  Negative case (20% weighting): The casino operated by
PAGCOR can resume its business on July 2021, and since then
the Group's rental income can resume to ordinary level
comparable with 2019's forecast.

The fair value of the investment property at 30 June 2020 and 2019
were measured using valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during
the year/period.

A significant increase/decrease in the rental value in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
discount rate and capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties. Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
rent growth per annum.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.
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e MR

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. ERLEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE

Player
registrations
HREEMm
HK$'000
FH&T
cosT oS
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NEF=ZA=+—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g =N 135,136
Addition NE 14,268
Disposal e (48,779)
Exchange adjustment B 5, 3 B (3,779)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE—-NFRA=TH 96,846
Addition NE 81,491
Disposal HeE (16,113)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) WRE B AR (A77F33) (156,378)
Exchange adjustment b 5 R (5,846)
At 30 June 2020 R=ZB=-ZFXA=+H -
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 25184 & 8l B
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NEF=ZA=+—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HE R B A 7 35,650
Amortisation By 28,583
Impairment loss RIEEE 3,954
Disposal e (19,484)
Exchange adjustment B 55, & (1,413)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE—-NFRA=TH 47,290
Amortisation e 52,589
Disposal HE (12,611)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HE B A E (AY7F33) (84,164)
Exchange adjustment bE H A2 (3,104)
At 30 June 2020 R=ZB=-ZFXA=+H -
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 30 June 2020 R=Z=ZFA=+H =
At 30 June 2019 R=Z2-h&ERA=+H 49,556
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e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

18. LOAN RECEIVABLE

As at 30 June 2020, the Group's loan receivable represents three

loans to associates as below:

(@)

On 3 August 2017, a loan advance with principal of Peso
338,000,000 (equivalent to HK$52,630,000) was granted to
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. ("HVPHI"), which is
an associate of the Company since 5 July 2019. The loan is
interest bearing at 3.5% per annum, repayable annually and
the whole principal amount is repayable on 3 August 2032.
Pursuant to a supplementary agreement signed on 1 July
2019, the Company additionally granted Peso 92,000,000
(equivalent to HK$14,315,000) to HVPHI with same terms as
the loan agreement signed on 3 August 2017 and same
repayment date.

The loan was secured by three parcel of land owned by the
associate. Management considered that the estimated fair
value of these collaterals was not less than the carrying
amount of the respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2020
and 2019.

On 1 July 2019, a loan advance with principal of Peso
55,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,558,000) was granted to Pacific
Bayview Properties, Inc. (“PBPI”), which is the wholly owned
subsidiary of Blue Marine Properties, Inc,, and is an associate of
the Company since 5 July 2019. The loan is interest bearing at
3.59% per annum and repayable on demand.

The loan was secured by condominium properties owned by
PBPI. Management considered that the estimated fair value of
these collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2020.
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RZFE—+FNAZH ARQRAMH
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.
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BRARZEBENR)REASES
338,000,000 & (#HE 7252,630,000% 7T)
ZEREIK o 3B FIRFE M E35%5
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RZE-—NREELHA—RB XAAM
Pacific Bayview Properties, Inc. ([ PBPI]) 5
H A& € % 5550000004 = (& R
8,558,000 7T) L ERBR  ZRER
Blue Marine Properties, Inc. Z & & B A~
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FHE - BREREER -
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19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

19. REFERTIZ#ER

At 30 June
2020
R-B-BF
~NA=1+H
HK$’000
FHET
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 55,228
Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: REFZHENRZFBWOT :
Place of
incorporation Percentage
Name of associates Principal activities and operations held by the Group
AR A S R R REE i
BENTER FTEXEK it B Batk
%
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc., ("HVPHI")  Property developer the Philippines 40
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc, ([HVPHI]) #1223 R JEEE
Blue Marine Properties, Inc.,, ("BMP") Investment holdings the Philippines 40
Blue Marine Properties, Inc, ([BMP ]) LB JEREE
Note: Btat -

On 5 July 2019, the Group completed the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100%
interest in Oriental-Invest Properties Limited ("OIP"), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, at the consideration of HK$53,000,000 which settled by
way of issuing convertible bond by the Company to the shareholders of OIP. OIP is
an investment holding company which owns 40% issued share capital of HVPHI
and BMP respectively. OIP has the power to exercise significant influence to HVPHI
and BMP. Since the completion of the Acquisition, the interest in HVPHI and BMP
are recognised as interests in associates and equity accounted for. At the date of
completion of the Acquisition, the fair value of consideration is HK$54,599,000
which is arrived at based on a valuation carried out by JLL. The excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of HVPHI and BMP's identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment is amounted to HK$3,521,000 and
HK$2,440,000 respectively. They are included as Group's share of the associates’
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

RZT—NAFtARAB » RN&EE MK UK E Oriental-
Invest Properties Limited ([OIP | + PA T8 jE 22 B & 7 it
Bz Ar)IonER(TREEZEE]D REA
53,000,000 7T * AR AR W OP A A BT A AR &
H 2 HALR o O BIREIZER AT - 2 RIS HVPHI
K2 BMP 40% 2 31T ILAN © OIP 75 #E [ HVPHI K2 BMP 17{$
BEAFEN - BREEEEEML - R HVPH KZBMP 2
ERERAREE AR ZER - WARIIEEZ - B
W EIESTAK A A - (B R F1E 454,599,000 7T
TR B EBITATEITHEEER o AEE D (5 HVPHI
RBMPA R EERBEZ A EFEBLIEER R
28D 9 B 3,521,000 7T K 2,440,000 5 7T © B B
ERRAZEB SRR ABAEENEHE A RA
FILES1E -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T —FFENA=+HIFE
19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. MBS NTE 28 (8)

(@) Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc., (@) Harbor View Properties and
Holdings, Inc.,

At 30 June

2020

R-ZE-EF

AA=+H

HK$’000

FERT

Current assets BB E 55,570

Non-current assets ERMBNEE 206,962
Current liabilities MENAE (93,997)
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE (78,615)

Net assets EEFE 89,920

Net assets attributable to owners of the equity ~ #ERHEE AL EEFE 89,920

Group’s share of the net assets of the associate ~ REE DL N R EEFE 35,969

Year ended 30 June 2020 BE S _ZSFNA=1HIFE HK$’000

FERT

Revenue WA 1,278
Loss for the period HAA 18 (11,577)
Total comprehensive income FHMK AR (11,577)

Dividends received from the associate Bk & AR E =
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. MBS RTEI 2L ()
(b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc., (b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc.,

At 30 June

2020

R=B==F

~NB=+H

HK$’000

F#ET

Current assets MENEE 9,928
Non-current assets ERBEE 108,833
Current liabilities mEBE (45,240)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (25,375)
Net assets EEFE 48,146
Net assets attributable to owners of the equity  EZEA AB(LEEFE 48,146
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate ~ KNEE DL N T EEFE 19,259
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-_E_ZEFXNA=1HIFE HK$’000
F#&T

Revenue WA 5,077
Loss for the period HAE1E (3,641)
Total comprehensive income ENEIP ey (3,641)
Dividends received from the associate B E AR R =
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REFERNT 2R (40
The summarised movements of interest in associates during the year FARBEARIZEREBHENAT
are as below:
HKS'000
FHET
Share of the net fair value of associates SMEEE R RIRNKERR
at acquisition date NEFEE 60,560
Share of current period's loss of associates DG A BRI = A R R 1A (6,087)
Exchange adjustments b 5 R B
At 30 June 2020 R-BE-ZHEXA=+H 55228
Share of loss of associates during the year comprised of the below: FADNEERAREBEBRENTEIE
HK$'000
FAT
Gain on bargain purchase HEERBEE 5961
Share of current period’s loss of associates DG A BRI = A R R A (6,087)
Share of loss of associates SMEEE A REE
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20. LEASE

HKFRS 16 — Leases was adopted on 1 July 2019 without restatement
of comparative figures. An explanation of the transitional
requirements that were applied as at 1
2(a)(i). The accounting policies applied and critical judgement
subsequent to the date of initial application, 1 July 2019, are
disclosed in Note 3.9 and Note 4. For both years, the Group leases
various offices, leasehold land and staff quarters for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 to 99 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period

for which the contract is enforceable.

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net carrying amount of leased properties

recognised as right-of-use assets is as follows:

July 2019 are set out in Note

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

20. A5

ERTHREENEIHE —HER =T
—ﬂitﬁ P UER BB FETE
e AZZE—NFtA—BERZBERTE
ﬁmwaz (e BERERABH _-_ZT—NF
tH—H&%%@ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬂ%%W%
3ORMEF4HE - KMEFE  AEEEE
ZEPRANE HETHWNETIESHEEY
e M4 zETEFE = ih+n¢ﬂ¢ #
ANMEFURE R EEETE - BE — R TR
KA - #mﬁ%&%mTT@%%ﬁ%
R ASBEREAGHOZEETETELR
$7HT/HEFEEJ

EREEE

HER A A B 2 R R £ R E R E S I
T

Leasehold land Properties Total

HELH L/ES st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET F#ExT FHExT

At 30 June 2019 R=Z—h&FRA=+H = = =
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 RZZE—-NFLHA—H

at 1 July 2019 (note 2(a)(i)) BRERBEMBRE

ERIE 1655 (MTaE 2(2)0)) 42,547 23,115 65,662

Depreciation for the year FERITE (1,978) (3,467) (5,445)

Addition = 26,959 - 26,959

Impairment loss REEE - (666) (666)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HEMB AR (KaE33) (51,460) - (51,460)

Exchange adjustments M H SR (1,612) 349 (1,263)

At 30 June 2020 R-BE-EEXA=1+AH 14,456 19,331 33,787

During the year, provision of impairment loss of right-of-use assets
related to Hotel CGU of approximately HK$666,000 was recognised
in profit or loss to write down to its recoverable amount, detailed in

Note 15

FABERSEAEMBEEAGFEREEER
B B 18 B 18 49 666,000/ 8 TN IE A P HER -
LA SE = rT Bl %8 - RBIRE 15 5Fal -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T_ZTFENA=1THIFE

20. LEASE (Continued) 20. A& (%)
Lease liabilities HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FAHEGEERAREZHNT

the year are as follows:

Leasehold land Properties Total

AE Ly LS @st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET FHET

At 30 June 2019 R=-ZE—hEXA=1H - - -

Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 RZTE—hF+LH—H
at 1 July 2019 BIRRNE BB RE

AR 1657 42,547 23,115 65,662

Addition = 26,959 - 26,959
Lease payments ROk (4,272) (5,054) (9,326)
Interest expenses NS 3,170 2,384 5,554
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HEWB AT (M 33) (52,020) = (52,020)
Exchange adjustments IE 3%, 58 % (1,624) 376 (1,248)

At 30 June 2020 R-EB-Z&XA=1+H 14,760 20,821 35,581
HK$’000

F#& T

Current E 2,774
Non-current IERH 32,807

At 30 June 2020 R-E-FEXA=1+H 35,581
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e MR

20. LEASE (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

20. A& (%)

o)

For the year ended 30 June 2020

—ECEFENA=THIFFE

AEBOESHHBERLT

Minimum
lease payments Interest Present value
BREREHES FE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET FHET
At 30 June 2020 R-B-FEFXA=1+H

Not later than one year TER—F 5,958 (3,184) 2,774

Later than one year and BR—FETERME
not later than two years 4,638 (2,965) 1,673

Later than two years and ERMFETERNRF
not later than five years 13,632 (7,614) 6,018
Later than five years EBRAF 47,932 (22,816) 25,116
72,160 (36,579) 35,581

Minimum

lease payments Interest Present value
S iwitkokitka ME HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET

At 1July 2019 R=EB-h&FtA—H
Not later than one year TER—F 7,151 (4,502) 2,649

Later than one year and BN —FENERME
not later than two years 7,135 (4,378) 2,757

Later than two years and BRAMEETERASF
not later than five years 22,979 (15,379) 7,600
Later than five years ERRF 169,061 (116,405) 52,656
206,326 (140,664) 65,662
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

20. LEASE (Continued)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as

20. A& (%)
BRPRRACASHEBSENT

follows:
Year ended
30 June
2020
Bz
—BCEF
~A=+H
LEE
HK$’000
FERT
Continuing operations IR
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 3,359
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 3,855
Expense relating to short-term leases RERES N 2,361
Expense relating to low-value leases RKEEEEMHES D 19
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B EREEHE 9,594
Aggregate undiscounted commitments 72 AR SR AL IR AR IE B R
for short-term lease 425

Operating lease commitments — the Group as lessee

Operating lease under HKAS 17

Continuing operations
Minimum lease payments

REHENEE —FREEFEREEA

Period ended
30 June 2019
BHE
—ET—NF
~NA=1H
1EHAME
HK$'000
FET

REHOES

10,937
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20. LEASE (Continued)

Operating lease commitments — the Group as lessee
(Continued)

Operating lease under HKAS 17 (Continued)
The total future minimum lease payment are due as follow:

Within one year —FRA
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years

—EhF(BREEMF)
B F

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

20. A& (%)
REAYAE — AEBERRBAE)

BEBETERFE17HKE T ZRERY (E)
AREERAOB S LRI BERLT

At 30 June 2019
—T-hF
NA=+H

HK$'000
T

6,144
17,678
22,637

46,459

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group in
respect of leasehold land, condominium units, office premises and
staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from two to
twenty years and rentals are fixed for the lease period.

Following the acquisition of Wigan, there is a lease agreement for
ninety-nine years commenced from 4 August 1999 entered into
between the Group’s subsidiary and Wigan Metropolitan Borough
Council (the “Council”) for the use of the land at Robin Park, on which
the Group's subsidiary has built the DW Stadium and surrounds.

The rental was subject to review every five years, and Wigan has
provided certain usage of the DW Stadium and adjoining land and
sports facilities at Robin Park every year from 1999 to the Council,
which has been accepted by the Council as full consideration of the
lease payment in form of rental allowance every year from 1999. The
commitment above does not include this operating lease
arrangement.

REMVBESEASERBEEL L - XRE
- WRAEYMERBEIBEEEN2HES © %
EROMBREZEMNF—=— 1+ BH
EREBAATIEE

W B Wigan 1% - A& B 2 [ B8 2 &) B2 Wigan
Metropolitan Borough Council ([ Council]) FL{E#
FAL A Robin Park 2 b 38 (NS @ 2 I /@ 2 7)
B E L ## DW Stadium K& B2 %) 5] 32
WM&z FHE - AN FENATBRR
R+ NEF o

e BEFREFHRFT — X MWiganB
— LA # 5 4F 6] Council 32 #5152 74 Robin
Park Z DW Stadium LA X AR iE 1 358 &% B8 & 2% e
EEZETHE 2 ECounclZE M iE A B
—MWNANFRESFURSEMRFRAI 22
HAHRESRE - FHAETBEZEER
HLHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

20. LEASE (Continued) 20. HE &)
Operating lease commitments — The Group as lessor REHNAE —FEBERLEEA
As announced by the Company on 18 December 2015, MSPI as HIMARNRR-—_ZE—RAF+-_A+N\BFRA
lessor, entered into the Lease Agreement with PAGCOR as lessee for 5+ MSPI (YE&HFE A ) B2 PAGCOR (1E A7
the renewal of the lease of certain premises of the Group for a term NI UHEERZEEREBETYWECH
commencing from 1 April 2016 and expiring on the earlier of 31 X FHE-ZT-A"FNA—ABR  ¥R=
March 2031 or upon the total rent accruing against and/or payable L= —F = A =1+—HE®NPAGCORBIEM
by PAGCOR to MSPI under the Lease Agreement reaching an EHHAEMN R HEMTMSPIZ RETHEE 4
aggregate of Peso24.5 billion (equivalent to approximately B A 3= 24,500,000000% R(HE R L
HK$3,686,877,000). The monthly rental is based on a certain 3,686,877,00078 70 ) B (LABS R &2 &%) B Hf -
percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino operated by A8 # R PAGCOR £ & IR 8435 FT 5 1 R A
PAGCOR or a fixed amount of Peso100,000 (equivalent to FEEE T B H sk EE £ %8 100,000 3 = (48
approximately HK$15,000 (as at 30 June 2019: HK$15,000)), ER150008TT(R=2E—NF A=+
whichever is higher. Rental income arising from such agreement H:150008)) ) ZBRaEEE BE_-Z
during the year end 30 June 2020 was approximately ZTFERA=THREE  BlmBEELECHE
HK$140,728,000 (2019: HK$229,521,000), representing contingent % U A #9140,728,00058 T( —Z & — fL F -
rental income. 229,521,000 7C) - HERKAHSIA °
The total future minimum lease payment to be received are as RRFEBLHASQBREMOT -
follow:
At 30 June
2020
R=Z=ZTF
~NB=1H
HK$’000
FET
Within one year to fifth year inclusive —ERF(BEEEMF) 917
Over five years HBRAF 1,101
2,018
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

21. BAFEFAABRZEHMEE

BAFEFABRSZEREERRNATS

following: 15 :
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R-ZB-ZF RZT—NHF
NB=1+H ~NAZ=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Current assets REBEE
Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia High Yield mIRREDWS EME REESFES
Bond Income Fund HEEAESRER 711 770
Unlisted investment fund (note) FELTIREES (K1) 92,730 190,590
93,441 191,360
Note: HaF -

On 15 June 2018, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, IEC Investment Limited
entered into a Limited Partnership Agreement (the “Agreement”) to subscribe for
the interests in the Fund, as a limited partner, in the total amount of EUR26,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$242,350,000) of Hontai Capital Fund Il Limited
Partnership (the "Hontai Fund"). All required capital contribution of the investment
was paid during the period ended 30 June 2019.

This Hontai Fund was established principally to achieve long-term capital
appreciation primarily through privately-negotiated investments in companies
and/or its affiliates which is/are engaged in the production and distribution of the
sports events and entertainment content and sports media rights market. The
Group is a limited partner in this Hontai Fund and does not have control nor
significant influence in the Hontai Fund's operational and financing decisions.

On 25 October 2019, the Group entered into a share transfer agreement (the
"Transfer Agreement”) with another limited partner of the Hontai Fund (the
“Purchaser”) to dispose of approximately 50% of the interest in the Hontai Fund to
the Purchaser at the consideration of US$16.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$126,000,000). The abovementioned transaction was completed on 30
December 2019.

The directors of the Company have determined the fair value of the remaining
interest held in the Hontai Fund as at 30 June 2020 with reference to the valuation
report issued by JLL, an independent professional valuer who has professional
qualifications and relevant experience. The fair value of the Hontai Fund is
determined by market approach, with references to comparable companies
benchmark multiples. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group recognised
a fair value gain of HK$29,119,000 in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

RZE-N\FXA+HA " ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%@aﬁmc
Investment Limited :] M2 B R & % i ([ZaEl) -

BRE ¥ AFH L& R Hontai Capital Fund I L|m|ted
Partnership ([ Hontai Fund]) & #£ 26,200,000 B 7t (18 &
492423500008 7T) 2 K& W - EREMTE

BERBE T NFRA=TRLEHAEM -

B3 Hontai Fund 2 = £ B W) A EIH R EIE AE(E -
IEiﬁLfLTEﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ"%?%Vﬁ&”%EEEEE@J
MW”& CEBRSREBEE AR R AEEE
o ANEE A Hontai Fund ZBRAE A » ¥fHontai
FundZ%@&Eﬂﬁfﬁi RIS S E A E S

T-NAF+AZ+HAB A& E HHontai Fund
273 ZEREEATER DT Rm k% (8
ﬁi%ﬁ%a;ﬁj) m B 77 H & H M Hontai Fund Z #950% #&

- X {& /16,300,000 % 7t (8 & 7 £9126,000,000 74
rc) FRRSGRZT—NF+_A=FTEEK -

AARERCL2RAGEEERRBBLEH 2 BELE
EHEMMPEHTHL 2 HERS - BTN Honta
Fund BB ZFHSBERN T _SFA=THZA
& ° Hontai Fund Z A FEHRATESE AL R A ELLE
DR HEGHYEE HE_T_TFA=+THI
FE  AEERGEE2AERERAERQFEKE
29,119,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEWERIA

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R=ZB=FF R_T-NF

ANA=1H NAZ=Z1H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Trade receivables FEUBRIA 8,199 26,760
Less: provision for expected credit losses B TBEREEEa A (1,146) (310)
7,053 26,450

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on invoice date which

AT RRBEHREE R RERAH(EE
R AER B MRS ) 25 2 FRUGRIE (kR

approximate the respective revenue recognition date at the end of REREE) < BRER AT o
the reporting period.

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=F=TF RN _Z-NF
ANA=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
0-30 days 0£&30H 3,927 19,596
31-60 days 31260 H 6 3,631
61-90 days 61290 H 6 2,019
Over 90 days HHiEoo H 3,114 1,204
7,053 26,450

The Group has a policy allowing its customers credit periods REBZRBERRETFTEREL—RNF0E N
normally ranging from 0 to 90 days. The Group does not hold any BZEEH - KEBWESETM BERHF
collateral as security. G o

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 3.11. For detail assessments, please refer to
Note 42(a).

AEBRBEM T3 T & R BRI E
B518 - FHAEFIEFE 2 MM E420) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE—ZE_FTFNA=1THILFE

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23. HiFERFRIR - IRE RFAMFRIR
PREPAYMENTS

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=B=TF R_Z-NF
~NA=1H NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Player transfer fee receivables JEkEEe g = 37,419
Deposit B 9,055 14,291
Other receivables H b Uk IR 16,501 19,304
Prepayment TERTFRIE 20,958 27,829
Interest receivables FEU T B, 6,046 3,529
52,560 102,372

Represented by: 5
Non-current portion IERBNEL S 14,329 19,644
Current portion mENEL 38,231 82,728
52,560 102,372
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For theyear ended 30 June 2020
HE T —TFNA=1HIFFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE

24. BHNEEREGNER

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=ZB=TF N_Z-NF
ANA=T1H A~NA=1H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT

Current contract assets relating BRI ULE S RIS B 2
to provision of hotel services MEENEE 4,128 934

HERBWAME - BARBNFRERE
based on the payment schedule. If the services rendered by EXHERWE - 8505 FTRERS
the Hotel exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. SN AIEREHNEE © i 1"JL N
If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract ZIPRERT - AR a A E
liability is recognised.

In case of room revenue, the guest pays the room charge

K& S B HRA R EREETRE

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date

using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those of the
trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade
receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables appropriately grouped by similar loss pattern. The
calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome, the
time value of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecast of future economic
conditions.

After applying the expected credit loss rate to gross amount
of contract assets, the management considered that the
provision of impairment loss of contract assets is immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 24. EREERENEE®)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EBHERE
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019

RZZT-TF RZZT—NF
~NE=1+H NA=1H

HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FHEIT
Contract liabilities relating to provision IR E RSB 2
of hotel service BHEE 972 601
Contract liabilities relating to matchday Mk ERRABRE
income BHEE = 10,742
972 11,343
As at 30 June 2020, contract liabilities mainly represents RZEZZFA=+H 6HEE
receipts in advance from customers of the Hotel operation. TERBEWBEEBELTE - &4
The balance of the contract liabilities are expected to be BESRBEEAR—FANHH -

utilised within a year.
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 24. EHNEENRENEE &)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (Continued) (b) EBHEB/E)
Movements in contract liabilities: AHBEZEEHOT
Hotel Matchday
service income Total
B S AR d-3=1"ON st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FHET FHIT
Balance as at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FEOA—H
2 KEER 262 - 262
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 i B S R &) - 14,949 14,949
Decrease in contract liabilitiesas BN AFER U A MBI B 2
a result of recognising revenue BHEERD
during the period that was GT AT, Wi
included in the contract liabilites B HIZ A4 &E)
at the beginning of the
year/acquisition date (260) (14,736) (14,996)
Increase in contract liabilities HIR& L a &M
during the period 587 10,948 11,535
Exchange difference b H ZRE 12 (419) (407)
Balance as at 30 June 2019 RZZE—NFA=+H
2R 601 10,742 11,343
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HENTB AT (MaE33) - (24,958) (24,958)
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRNEERTAFEY)
a result of recognising revenue aHaEzZWEm
during the year that was S|z EHaERD
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (603) (10,646) (11,249)
Increase in contract liabilities FREHBEEM
during the year 955 25,753 26,708
Exchange difference P H =R 19 (891) (872)
Balance as at 30 June 2020 RZEZZTFH="TH
2 AFE 972 - 972
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25. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED CHARGES

Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges comprise

amounts outstanding for the purchase and ongoing costs.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

25. FE(IRRIA - B RIBERESE
H
FERTRRIA - E AR OR R MBS 8 A B EER
BRIBERA 2 KL A S -

RTARBEHREERRERAHZNZ
FEfRRIBRRER DA

RBERcPHEERROAB -

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R=B=TF RKZE-NF

A~A=t+H NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0Z230H 2,606 10,609
31-60 days 31260 H 62 7,246
61-90 days 61 %290 H 127 961
Over 90 days BiEoo H 749 1,716
3,544 20,532
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For the year ended 30 June 2020

BT _FFENA=FHIFE
26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movement

26. IRIEIRIEAE

during the year/period are listed as follow: BH|IRAT -
Fair value
adjustments Fair value Fairvalue  Withholding Unrealised
Accelerated  onProperty,  adjustments  adjustment taxon foreign
capital plantand oninvestment onintangible undistributed exchange
allowance equipment properties assets earnings gain Total
n% - BER
#Ee  RENEC BREEZ AAR AER
NEERBE  ATERE  ATESEE AVESRE  BACENH ERli @3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TAL T THRL TEL T
At31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-A - 23360 118436 - 14134 10,155 166,085
(Credited)/charged toprofitorloss ~ EARAMEZ (5TA) /B
for the period - (203) 5928 (5593) - 8,502 8634
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAF 39 1,684 - 6,162 - - 7885
Exchange adjustments ERHE - 251 1,688 97) - 340 2182
At30June 2019 RZE-NFRA=TH 39 25092 126052 an 14,134 18997 184,786
Credited to profit or loss for the year -~ FRABEZTA - (4,442) (1,198) (300) - (843) (6,783)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HERBLR(MiE33) - (1,533) - (164) - - (1,697)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 338 2,879 8) - 374 3,583
At30 June 2020 RIBZZERA=TH 39 19,455 127,733 - 14,134 18,528 179,889
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ% (%)
At 30 June 2020, the Group had estimated unused tax losses of N_E-FFA=1+H  AEBABHEK
approximately HK$142,996,000 (2019: HK$794,752,000) and & FH B TH 5 18 49 142,996,000 8 7T ( — =T — A,
deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$3,672,000 F 179475200080 ) RAAREBEETEH T
(2019: HK$6,466,000) arising from certain companies within the RXFEBE ARSI B A HEHERRE
Group that are suffering from losses for years available for offset FlZz o] E R =B L 3,672,000557_5(:
against future profits. At 30 June 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax —NF 1 6466000/8TL) c RZE_TF KX
assets was recognised for such losses due to the unpredictability of ZZE-NERNA=TH BR#UEEAE
future profit streams from these companies within the Group. Tax BEETZERARZAREFIRE - thir &5t
losses amounting to approximately HK$61,100,000 (2019: ZEEBEEREETIEEE - MIEEEL
HK$709,433,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining 61,100,000/ 7T ( =& — L4 : 709,433,000 %5
tax losses will be expired as follows: TO) AR A4S EE - IEBEREENUT
FHHE -
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R-ZE-ZEF —NnEF
NA=1+H ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Year 2019 —hE - 15,281
Year 2020 —E-TF 12,749 12,493
Year 2021 —=E 52,184 51,138
Year 2022 —EF- 11,028 6,407
Year 2023 —E-=4F 5,935 -
81,896 85,319
RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 27. BABEHIRA

The retirement benefit costs of the Group recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

RiRE 2ERERERZ AN EBRKBHK
ZNUNE

Year ended Period ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

BE HE

—B-EF —E-hEF

AA=+H ~A=+A

LEFE 1EHAME

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FE T FH&T

Hong Kong E 189 217
The Philippines JFEE 1,225 1,469
The UK HE - 13607
1,414 15,293
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HE T —FFENA=+HIFE

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 27. BIRGEFIRLA (&)

Pursuant to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485, Laws of Hong Kong), the Group participates in a defined
provident fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong.

Under the relevant law in the Philippines, it provides a benefit to
qualified employees but it does not require minimum funding of the
plan. In the absence of any pension plan in the entity, the relevant
law requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified employees.

Defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong. The relevant scheme assets are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of the
trustee. Under that scheme, the Group is required to make
contributions pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group's contributions to the retirement benefit scheme in Hong
Kong charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2020 was approximately
HK$189,000 (Period ended 30 June 2019: HK$217,000).

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines

Net defined benefit obligations AERMNEEFE

RIBCRFIE LB BRI (BAEDIF
485%) ARENFEL2E-—HARAELESR
RAAEFETE o

RIBIEERERBED  REMSEREERR
HeEd - BXERTEAE 2 REHER - HE
BHETARAKSHE  HEAEMRERS
BREBREENRS -

R EMHRGE

AEERBFAZ2E-HRHIELTRESRRE
MEtEl - BRI EEUSEAZES 2ES
A BAKEZEESHERRE - RE
BRE & ARBEARB(ABIEAE S
NRBIN(EEEDIF485F ) 2 REMEL R -

REE-Z-_TFAZTHIEFEZHEE
2HERERINFEZAEEBRARBRKEFE
B 2 M E189000 L (BE-_Z—NF
SNAZ+THIEEM 217,000 7T) °

FRERERATE

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=2B=F N-FT-NF
AA=tH NA=+1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

4,661 6,282

The Group operates a funded defined benefit plan for the qualified
employees of its subsidiary in the Philippines.
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 27. BIAREF A (2)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued) SERERER/AE(E)

The defined benefit plan is administrated by trustee appointed by AEBAGFTEIBAARR GBI B R RIMEE
the respective subsidiary of the Company and is legally separated TEANEIR - BtErEI A2 EEZEA
from the subsidiary. Under the plan, the qualified employees are AT ARE - RIEZETE A ERERELE
entitled to retirement benefits equivalent to final plan salary for BIRKERE  EENETEEEIREEEE
every year of credit service at the normal retirement age. There are NERRRETES S ZRIKET - RIKE
no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement benefit NEFETELARTEEMBARAZT
obligations expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company. SEHREARE - AN WIREERKETRET
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement R BARRMBAEST NRUZNE
benefit scheme and the retirement fund is not sufficient to settle the Tt AZRRREBNER ZE DGR
obligation, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be By WEBRARGEEMBAG T TR
due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of the Company to the HEE -

retirement fund.

(@  The amount included in the consolidated statement of @ AEBRERTEIGFEZETHE
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in EBREEAMBERRRZE&BEIT :

respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R-B-ZF RZZT—NF
NA=1+H ~A=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Present value of defined benefit obligations F 5 #& 5| & FIRE 4,705 6,332
Fair value of plan assets FEEEATE (44) (50)
Net liability arising from defined benefit AEENEEELECBEFE
obligations 4,661 6,282
(b)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit b BE_Z-_ZTFNA=THILEER
obligations for both year ended 30 June 2020 and period HE—ZT—hE~NA=+H 5/ -
ended 30 June 2019 are as follows: RERNSETRESHNT :
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019

R=ZB-2F R-_T—NF
AA=+H AA=+A

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FH&T

At beginning of the year/period REH/ B 6,332 4,402
Current service costs I8 H RIS A A 9208 1,112
Interest cost F B A 319 361
Actuarial (gains)/losses BE (W), Bia (442) 1344

Benefits paid B EF (2,511) (984)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 B 929 97
At end of the year/period REER /B 4,705 6,332
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 27.

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(@

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the
year ended 30 June 2020 and period ended 30 June 2019 are

as follows:

IBIREF A (2)

FRERERATEE)

© BE_Z_ZEFAA=THLEFER
HE-Z—NEAA=+ELEM-
HEEEATEEHNT

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=TB=FF RKZE-NF
NA=T1H NA=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
At beginning of the year/period REX, B 50 47
Interest income FEWA 2 4
Actuarial losses 5HEE (1) )
Contributions by the employer EEHK 859 -
Contributions by plan participants FrEI2EEMHN (865)
Exchange realignment P 5, R (1) 1
At end of the year/period RELL B 44 50

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit

plans are as follows:

Year ended Period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
BZE HE
—E-EF —E—NF
~NA=1H NA=TH
IEFE 1EHAM
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Service cost: BRTG A AR
Current service costs BB R A 908 1,112
Net interest expense B 55 317 357
Components of defined benefit costs RIBER 2 FE B AE D
recognised in profit or loss 1,225 1,469
Remeasurement on the net defined BN EREENAEFE
benefit liability:
Actuarial (gains)/losses FHE (), Fia (442) 1,344
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

()

(Continued)

The defined benefit cost of HK$1,225,000 (2019: HK$1,469,000)
has been included in the administrative expenses. The
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included
in other comprehensive income.

The Group has also made provision for estimated liabilities for
retirement benefit obligations, in the absence of any pension
plan, covering the qualified employees of its another
subsidiary in the Philippines. There are no unusual or
significant risks to which the retirement benefit obligations
expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company. However in
the event a benefit claim arises, the obligations shall
immediately be due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of
the Company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at 30 June
2020 were carried out by E.M. Zalamea Actuarial Services, Inc.
and Institutional Synergy, Inc. (2019: EM. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. and Institutional Synergy, Inc.) (members of the
Actuarial Society of the Philippines), the independent
actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.

27.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

IBIREF A (2)

FREAEEANEE)

(d)

(#8)

RERBFIKAN,2250008 T (ZE—H
F 1 1,46900078 ) BIEEITHRAX °
ENFERATREMNAEFERBEEE
fth 2 TUES

AEETERERAREFTEZBERT
SURRRRIREZ et B EFLEE -
BMERFREHMMBLARAZAER
BE - RABHNEFTALTESALRE
BB RRAZI TS EAEANRR
A iR BAMER ZETHR
R WERMARRERMERF
S e

FEEERTHBEGERATREN
EERZZEEFAA=THZHEE
%8 3 4 & BTEM. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. 2 Institutional Synergy, Inc.
(== — L% : EM. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. & Institutional Synergy, Inc.)
( & Actuarial Society of the Philippines 2
BB )HEAT ©

RERFIE 2 R ERABRAE R
PR BB BB AR Ty SR A H A B
SHAKRTE -
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BT _FFENA=FHIFE

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(e)  The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the
actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate FrEx
Expected rate of salary increase TEEF SRR

27.

BIAEFIRLA ()
FEEREENEE(E)

(e)

EEMEERZER/RAOT ¢

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=Z-ZF NZT—HIHF
NA=+1H ~NA=1H
3.51%-3.70% 5.12%-5.16%

4.00%-5.00% 4.00%-5.00%

The discount rate assumption is based on the spot yield curve
calculated from the market yields by striping the coupons
from government bonds to create theoretical zero-coupon
bonds as of the valuation date as at 30 June 2020 and 2019.

The actuarial valuation showed that the fair values of the
above unit investment trust funds are determined based on
mark-to-market valuation.

The actual return on plan assets was a loss of approximately
HKS$1,000 (2019: HKS$2,000).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligations is 16.1 years (2019: 14.8 years).

Based on the actuarial reports prepared by the independent
actuaries, the Group's expected contribution is to be made to
the defined benefit plan for the next financial year is nil (2019:
nil).

200 Annual Report £#%2019/20

MEERBREDEREMBERETES
HZBEREHG  HHEBN -
—EFER-_FE-NAFNAZTHIB
HEMEBEBZBNESR 2 ZBEE

EwZTREES -

BEHERR ULBEURERGEREE
2R FEDREEMEFEZGHE
EE -

sTEIE ETRR R R A E A 1,0008 7T
ZE— A 200087T) °

AERMETINEFHE A 161 F (=
T—NE D 1484F) o

REBUBEMREZEERES &
SEEMBART —VMBRFERTER
MEFEWERER (=T —NF : |]) -



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRZ4H R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. SHARE CAPITAL

29.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

28. g

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=ZBZBE R NF
ANA=t+H ANA=1+A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each FREE 1 BT TR
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,000 % & i % 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE:
1,369,157,235 (2019: 1,369,157,235) ordinary &/ B3R 2 FiBAR 1,369,157,235 i
shares at end of year/period TN 0 1,369,157,235 %) 1,369,157 1,369,157

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

On 1 November 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved a
new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and adopted
it. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant Options to selected eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group. In determining whether a person has contributed or
will contribute to the Group, the Group will take into account,
among other things, whether contribution has been made to or will
be made to the Group in terms of operation, financial performance,
prospects, growth, reputation and image of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors may, at their
discretion, invite any eligible participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company. The exercise price
for the share options shall be determined in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules.

29. LUBRAR mERTTR

R-FT—tF+—A—H ARRBERILE
BT 8 ([ ARt &) 3 T DASRAR
BREAEEERARFRMEEZAER
SEERHBRE - SR M= RSP E
M RTRE A RBEH ZER - BE—RA
ITREEKRABEHAREELFRE - K
SESEE(EThel) 2tofaaan
SEZE PBRA iz R BER
FEITHSAEBELETR

REBIESE  EFARBREETMNAE
RS EEZNBERERBE AR BIRAF 2
- BRETTEEREBRETE R EMR
RAIAERE R EE -
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 29. LI IpAERMR#)

The terms and conditions of the grants and movements in the
number of share options under the Share Option Scheme during the
year were as follows:

X i B R 2 15K B Ak B RE BB RT IR T
BREBBEFAZBMT

Weighted
average
exercise price Number
IEFHITEE A
'000
Tt
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 1.94 54,766
Granted during the period HIRE T 157 13,692
At 30 June 2019 and 2020 RIB-—NFR_ZE_ZTF
~NA=T+H 1.87 68,458

The weighted average exercise price of options outstanding for the
period ended is HK$1.87 (2019: HK$1.87) and their weighted average
remaining contractual life was 7.55 years (2019: 8.55 years).

Of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the year/
period, all were exercisable at the end of the year/period. All of the
share options outstanding were held by third party grantees, the
directors and employees of the Group did not hold any share
options.

No share options were exercised during the year ended 30 June
2020 and period ended 30 June 2019.
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30. PROMISSORY NOTE

The promissory note is issued on 3 October 2016 by Fortune Growth
Overseas Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to a
subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (the “Holder”) for the
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary of the Company
which is a non-cash transaction. The promissory note carries interest
which accrues on the outstanding principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 from its issue date until repayment in full of the
principal amount at the fixed rate of 4% per annum. The promissory
note shall become due and payable in full on the business day
immediately preceding the fifth anniversary of its issue date and is
unsecured and guaranteed by the Company. On 5 July 2019, the
Holder transferred the promissory note to another independent third
party of the Company, Oxford East Limited, through a deed of
transfer. The transfer has no impact to the Company as term of note
remains unchanged.

The promissory note is denominated in HKS which is the foreign
currency of the relevant group entity (where functional currency is
Peso).

. BANK BORROWINGS

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

. RRER

EREBER_E—RFTA=ZHAHLQRAE
& [t |8 A &) Fortune Growth Overseas Limited
[A Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited 5& T~ — & B
BAR([FAEADEBET  MKEAQRET
—RWBATREIMER - IR ERS -
A, SRR BL R B8 7K 4 58 350,000,000 7 7T B
HERFTHEEEASBETIEE LIZE
TEFFEABREFE - AL ZRBRERE
HBTHBRERBTA —EE%A8 285
R VWEEERE  BEERR  WHARRQFIE
R-R-ZT—NFLtARH BEABAEE
BREMS — B ARQRIBILE = F Oxford
Fast Limited 858 # H R 1R - ZIRIERAEFT T
B BEEREARRNESE o

AR RBABTLEHE - B HHEEEERE
(B EB RER) 25N -

. BRITEE

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=ZB=-FF R_ZT—NF
AA=t+H AV; = =]
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FE&T FH&T
Non-current FERB
Bank loans due for repayment more —FRBHEE ZRITEER
than one year 53,486 71,473
Current mE
Bank loans due for repayment within one year —E R E|HIEE 2 RITEE 19,450 4765
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S
Syl

32.

—E_RENA=THIFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. $RITIEE ()
Note: Btst -
On 4 March 2019, a banking facility has been granted to a subsidiary of the Group RZZE—NF=AMA ' AEEBET—EHBARE
of Peso 1,500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$223,492,000), of which ERITERA 1,500,000,000 3 R (FE 7 49 223,492,000 7
Peso 468,750,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,936,000) has been utilised as JC) + E R 468,750,000 # & (F8E 7 49 72,936,000 % 7T )
at 30 June 2020. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 8.53% per annum in respect RIZZEZZEFA=THEEHA - ZER1THER
to this banking facility. EEFH=EGSIEE o
The bank loans are secured by the subsidiaries’ investment properties (note 16) IRITEE R EEFE A 1,308000,00078 T2 K B A A
with net asset value of HK$1,308,000,000. ZIRE W (3T 16) fEHEHR o
At 30 June 2020, total non-current bank loans was scheduled to repay as follows: RZZE_EFA=Z1H BETEUATEREEIER
BIRITIEE A% -
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R-Z-EF WZZ—NF
ANA=tH ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAERT
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —FRBETHBAMF 19,450 19,060
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BERIIERS RS 34,036 52,413
53,486 71,473
b=
CONVERTIBLE BOND 32. AlAR{EZF

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) for the
acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100% interest in Oriental-Invest
Properties Limited entered into by a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, Baltic Success Limited (“BSL") on 5 July 2019, BSL issued a
5 years zero coupon convertible bond with principal amount of
HK$53,000,000 on 5 July 2019 (the “Bond”). The Bond entitled the
holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$1.01 as set out in the Company’s circular
dated 5 July 2019.

Based on the terms of the Agreement, the Bond contain two
components, (i) the host debt and (ii) the conversion derivatives. The
Group recognised both components as liability as the conversion
derivatives of the bond did not meet the “fixed for fixed” test under
HKAS 32. At the issue date, the fair value of both components of the
Bond were determined based on a valuation report issued by JLL.
Subsequently, the host debt component is recognised as “financial
liabilities at amortised cost” and the conversion derivatives is
recognised as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss”.
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32. CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued) 32. FIHARR{EZS ()
The fair value of the host debt of the Bond upon issuance were RETRESFITERER 2 AT ERGETEZER
calculated at the present value of the estimated coupon interest FENFEASRE 2 RBETE - 5TEAIHA
payments and principal amount. The discount rate used in the HEREB1467% RBETRHRZZEZFTF N
calculation is 14.67%. The fair value of the conversion derivatives of A=Z+BEHFEBRTETEZ A FERA =
the Bond upon issuance and as at 30 June 2020 is determined using EAHETEENET  —EAHETER
the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The key inputs used in the TR AT ZRAEUENT ¢

Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows:

30June 5 July
2020 2019
i —E-NF
ANA=1+H +tAEA
Stock price (HK$) f&(E (BT) 0.66 0.92
Exercise price (HK$) TEE GEIT) 1.01 1.01
Expected life T8 B HA 4 years & 5 years &
Expected volatility TR i 65.50% 62.61%
Expected dividend yield T8 AR AR B a2 0% 0%
Risk free rate 3 b ) = 0.23% 1.36%
The movement for the convertible bond during the year is as below: FRA[QRESESENT -
Financial Financial
liability at liability
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
REBHRA RAFE
i -4 FAB®Z
TREE =R wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THETT
At5 July 2019 R-Z-hEtHAEH 32,811 21,788 54,599
Amortised interest for the year FREHTE 3,266 - 3,266
Fair value adjustments N EFHE - (13,173) (13,173)
At 30 June 2020 R-ZBE-TBFEXA=1H 36,077 8,615 44,692
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEMBLTE

On 14 February 2020, the Company and the Purchaser entered into
the Sales and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued shares (the “Sales Shares”) of
Newworth. The total Consideration for the Sale Shares was
GBP17,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$177,235,000) and
was paid by the Purchaser in cash. Upon Completion, the Group
ceased to have any beneficial interest in the Disposal Group, and all
the companies in the Disposal Group ceased to be subsidiaries/
members of the Company. The financial results of the Disposal
Group was no longer consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

As the Company's director, Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley, through Head
and Shoulders Direct Investment (Series C Class 1) Limited,
subscribed 51% of the limited partnership interests in the Purchaser
and acts as one of the limited partners of the Purchaser prior to the
Disposal, the transaction is classified as a related party transaction.

All conditions in the Sales and Purchase Agreement have been
fulfilled and subsequently the transaction was completed on the
Disposal Date. The Disposal Group engaged in operation of football
club in the UK. The net assets of the Disposal Group at the Disposal
Date were as follows:
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEMBLAT (#)

HK$'000
FHET
Consideration receivable: EURE :
Cash consideration HWeRE 177,235
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) YE - BB KR (HaE15) (302,179)
Right-of-use assets (note 20) 1 FREEE (K17t 20) (51,460)
Intangible assets — player registrations (note 17) EmRAE —REFM (M 17) (72,214)
Inventories FE (1,346)
Trade receivables FEYERTE 4179
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HupEW I « %4 NIENFE (3,577)
Bank balances and cash RITHEF RS (5,027)
Trade payables FETRRIE 12,964
Other payables and accrued charges E At e I8 R IERT B A 90,173
Contract liabilities (note 24) GHIBE (M 24) 24,958
Lease liabilities (note 20) HEaE (Kt 20) 52,020
Amount due to the Group FERT AR & B 5RIE 456,632
Deferred tax liabilities (note 26) EERR AR & (Mt 26) 1,697
Net liabilities disposed of before wavier HRenrEERacEaEFEE
of intercompany balance 198,462
Less: Non-controlling interest disposed of W BEIFIERERS (14,965)
Wavier of intercompany balance (note) NG5 e ﬁ% (Kt&%) (212,895)
Carrying amounts of net assets disposed of EEFEERAE (29,398)
Gain on disposal before exchange reserve released BHESREEI SRS 147,837
Exchange reserve released T I R (19,875)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A REE 127,962
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZESRAFE
Cash consideration BeRE 177,235
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEER e RIRITETT (5,027)
172,208
Note: Bt -
As at the Disposal date, the Disposal Group had an amount due to the Company HHEHE Hj%’% |§|ﬁ§ﬁ$ RIEBFEARN
which includes the amount advanced by the Company to the Disposal Group, in HEE® 28 & H 4456, 632 ooo o H ‘:P Z’j

aggregate, amounted to approximately HK$456,632,000, out of which
approximately GBP24,357,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$243,737,000) was
identified as the “Pre Existing Loan”, which represents the injection of working
capital by the Company since the completion of the acquisition in 2018. Pursuant
to the Sales and Purchase Agreement, the Company and the Disposal Group
entered into a loan agreement with principal amount equals to the Pre Existing
Loan (the “Loan Agreement”). The terms of the Loan Agreement is repayable
within one year and bears an interest of 8% per annum. All Pre Existing Loan had
been repaid on 29 May 2020.

The remaining balance of amount due to the Company apart from the Pre Existing
Loan of approximately HK$212,895,000 was waived by the Company upon
completion of the Disposal.

24,357,000 B 4% (MEE A 49243,737,0008 1) HiE A R
BER] EBZE— )\Em}ﬂzuﬁzﬁ%%@K@T&J\
BEES  BEEEHE  AARRLEEETVE
msm reHEERRRES ((% Kipazl) o Bkt
MW%EA FRNEERRFFERSEHE - TBER
ﬁ%ﬁk R-E-_TFRA-_t+HAEE-

BREREERIN - EeRIER AR B2 FEAY 212,895,000 7%
TREEEEEXEEARFRE -
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34. COMMITMENTS 34, &
Capital commitments BARERE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet accounted for at the RS REAE B2 TROER RN B REK
end of the reporting period in the financial statements is as follows: ARZEARFZIT
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019

RZZB-TF R_ZE—NF
~A=1H NA=1H

HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET TFHET
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 10,247 41,730
35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 35. BEATHKEER
(@) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these (@) BRUEZUBREREMITDAEERS
financial statements, the Group entered into the following Sh - REBRFEANT A TEK@EE
material related party transactions during the year: ALRG
Year ended Period ended
30 June 30 June
2020 2019
BE-_ZT-ZTF gE_ZT—NF
ANA=1H ~NAZ=1H
LEFE 1EHAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MtaF F#ET FET
Service fee income earned B E QR BEL RSB
from associates WA (i 720 -
Interest income from associates R BB E AR 2 FEMA (ii) 2,627 -
Lease payment to associates MEE AR 2 ANES (iii) (3,921) -
Note: Hiat -
0) The service fee income were charged in accordance with the terms 0] BR 75 B U A THAR 5 53 Bl B2 HVPHI K2 BMP

and conditions of the administrative service agreements entered
with HVPHI and BMP respectively.

(if) The interest income from associates represented the interest
income from loan receivables with principle amount of Peso
430,000,000 to HVPHI and Peso 55,000,000 to PBPI respectively.

(iii) Lease payment to associates represented the lease agreements
entered with HVPHI and PBPI for the hotel complex, staff
accommodation and parking lot situated in the Philippines.
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and other members of key
management of the Group are disclosed in note 10. The
remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel
of the Group is based on the performance and experience of
individuals and is determined with reference to the Group's
performance, the remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions.

36. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—E-FFA=1THIFE
35. FEATRIEALTHRETH (#)
(b) BREEASEM

EERAEETEEREAMAE S
R BT 101K EE - EFERAKEEE
ERBHFMRBEAARRELRES
EZREERR - TEHFMELERIRT

TREE °

36. XFFREMERZMEE

@ H2MReFEVEE:

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R-ZB-ZFE RZT—NF

~NB=1+H NA=1TH

HK$’000 HKS'000

TET FHEIT

Cash available on demand ARESKREZIRE 433,744 149,361
Short-term deposits (note) RHFR (W) 189,426 92,956
623,170 242317

Note:

The balance represents short-term bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. The Group’s bank balances deposited in the banks
in Hong Kong carry prevailing market interest rates of 0.001% to 0.95%
(2019: 0.001%) per annum. Moreover, the Group also has bank balances
deposited in the banks in the Philippines which carry prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.050% to 2.15% (2019: 0.050% to 5.75%) per
annum.

Bt

BRAMERTEIHAA=ZBAKURZEL
BTN - AEETRESRITZRITETIEZ
WIS EFZ0001BE0SE(ZT—H4F
0001 [E)&HE ° Iboh - REBFRIERERIT
ZRITEFRBIIMSENENT0050EE
215E (ZF— N4 - 0050 EES575E )& & o
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36. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

36.

XHFRERERZMET 2)

b) BMEDDAELREIHE:

Lease  Convertible Bank  Promissory
Interest liabilities bond Other  borrowings note
payable (note 20) (note32)  borrowings (note 31) (note 30)
HEBE WRRES RITEE  AIARE
EARE (W20  (WE32) AtfRE (WE31)  (KE30)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBL T TBL TEL TET TEL
t1 April 2018 —Z-\FWA-H 7019 - - - - 339,116
Proceed from new borrowings ~ #i&fE B RTS8 - - - - 76,238 -
Interest paid BT (15671) - - - - -
Total changes from financing raﬂ‘! é{fﬁéu EfELE
cash flows ZEmy (15671) - - - 76238 -
Other changes: Hingg)
Interest expenses accrued [E R8T 18202 - - - - 3713
Capitalised borowing cost B BALIEER A 1317 - - - - -
Exchange difference ERER (30) - - - - -
19489 - - - - 3713
At 30 June 2019 RZZ-h%F
~NAZTH 10,837 - - - 76,238 342,829
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 B RERNE BB RE
ERIZE 165 - 65,662 - - - -
t1July 2019 ZE-NEtA-H 10,837 65,662 - - 76,238 342,829
Proceed from new borrowings ~ #TiEE EFT{E7UE - - - 95,000 - -
Repayment of borrowings BREE - - - (95,000) (4,862) -
Repayment of lease liabiliies  EEHERE - (9,326) - - = =
Interest paid BIHE (13,068) = = = - -
Total changes from financing ~ BEB SR EEHHRE
cash flows (13,068) (9,326) - - (4,862) -
Other changes: Hin g
Investment in associates REENE 2 RE - - 54,599 - - -
Interest expenses accrued R FIERZ 22,824 5,554 3,266 - - 3,086
Capitalised borrowing cost B AMLEER A 4217 - - - - -
Addition of lease liabilites BEREEM - 26,959 - - - -
Derecognised upon disposal ~ HEM B A AIER I
of subsidiaries R - (52,020) - - - -
Change in fair value ATEED - - (13,173) - - -
Exchange difference EHERE 8 (1,248) - - 1,560 -
At 30 June 2020 ,7,7¢
~NAZTH 24,818 35,581 44,692 - 72,936 345,915
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. B RRIFFE
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2020 RZZBZEFNA=Z+RHZARBEENB
were as follows: RNRIFFBEAT -

Issued and fully

Place of paid share
Form of incorporationand  capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
R K BRTRAR
WEARER ES 5 Fq-Siuk BA/ERRA APAfBESL TEER
Directly Indirectly
Ef# &
% %
Lucky Genius Limited Corporation BVI Uss1 100 - Investment holding
Lucky Genius Limited A REFRARES  1ETL REEK
Success Gold Holdings Limited ~ Corporation BVI Uss1 100 - Investment holding
Success Gold Holdings Limited %2 REEARESE  1ET REAZK
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited Corporation BVI Uss1 100 - Investment holding
Fortune Growth Overseas Limited % EREAREE  1ET RERR
Newworth Ventures Limited* Corporation BVI US$47,672,721 100 - Investment holding
Newworth Ventures Limited* /& RBRAREE 4601 ET RERK
Maxprofit International Limited ~ Corporation BVI Us$100 - 100 Investment holding
("Maxprofit’)
Maxprofit International EE ABABRES 10X REZRR
Limited ([ Maxprofit])
Flexi-Deliver Holding Ltd. Corporation BVI Uss1 - 100 Investment holding
Flexi-Deliver Holding Ltd. el ERERAREE  1ET REZR
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc.  Corporation Philippines Pes010,468,600 - 100 Investment holding
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc. %2 FEE 10468600 B R RAEER
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc.  Corporation Philippines Pes010,468,600 - 100 Investment holding
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc. %l FEE 10468600 =R REZR
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BT _FFENA=FHIFE
37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of paid share
Form of incorporationand  capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
L B B BRTRBRE
WEARER £33 7 e BA /R RA EREFERESL  EEXH
Directly Indirectly
=83 B3
% %
Marina Square Properties, Corporation Philippines Pes02,722,930,653 - 100 Property investment
Inc. ("MSPI")
Marina Square Properties, FE FEE 2722930653 R MERE
Inc. ([MSPI)
New Coast Hotel, Inc. ('NCHI") Corporation Philippines Peso621,444,867 - 100 Hotel owner, operation of
New Coast Hotel, Inc. (TNCHIJ) £ FEE 621444867 B R hotel business
BERBA  KEBE
%
Future Growth Limited Corporation Hong Kong HKS2 100 - General administration
BRARAF =] B 28T for the Group
TEE-RIBER
East Fortune Holdings Limited ~ Corporation Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
REEEFRATF EE BE 187 REER
IEC Live Events Macau Limited ~ Corporation Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Live Events
ECH5EERM— A ] AF 2500027 BI5Ee
AR
IEC Investment Limited Corporation BVI Class B: US$9,500 100 - Investment holding
IEC Investment Limited EE EEEARES BE 1 9500% T REZK
Class A: US$500 100 -
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Wigan Property Holdings Limited
(formerly known as IEC Wigan
Property Holdings Limited)*

Wigan Property Holdings Limited
(BI78IEC Wigan Property

Holdings Limited) *

Wigan Sports Management
Limited (formerly known as IEC
Sports Management Limited)*

Wigan Sports Management
Limited ( 378 1EC Sports
Management Limited) *

Wigan Athletic Holdings Limited
(formerly known as IEC Wigan
Athletic Holdings Limited)*

Wigan Athletic Holdings Limited
(R IEC Wigan Athletic

Holdings Limited) *

Oriental-Invest Properties

Limited

Oriental-Invest Properties

Limited

Form of
business

Corporation

Z3L]

Corporation

3]

Corporation

3]

Corporation

3]

Place of
incorporation and
operations
AL R

England and Wales

B PRtk

England and Wales

SRR SR

England and Wales

KRB AR

BVI

REABRES

37. BB RTEIFHE &)

Issued and fully

paid share
capital/ Percentage held by
registered capital the Company
ERTRAR
BA/ MR A ERRAFEDL
Directly Indirectly
=83 B3
% %
GBP1 - 100
1508E
GBP1 - 100
3
Ordinary: - 100
GBP547,847.05
54784705 3%
Uss2 - 100
VEH - 100

Annual Report %% 2019/20
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Principal activities

TEEHR

Football Club operation

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

BEZR

Investment holding

BEZR
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Form of
Name of subsidiary business
WEAREM £33 7
Wigan Football Company Corporation
Limited* EE
Wigan Football Company
Limited*

Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited* Corporation

Wigan Athletic AFC. Limited* &

* Disposed on 29 May 2020

Place of
incorporation and
operations
ML R

England and Wales

B Lk

England and Wales
RAR R

37.

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital
ERITRERE
B/ B

Ordinary A:
GBP25,497,120
ABLERA
25497,120 Hi4%

Ordinary B:
GBP4,499,492

BIAL K :
4499492 B 8E

Ordinary:
GBP131,250

jE‘T‘-LHﬁ :
31250548

Saved as disclosed in note 30, note 31 and note 32, none of the
subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the

year or at any time during the year/period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year

or formed a substantial portion of assets and liabilities of the Group.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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Percentage held by
the Company Principal activities

EREFEESL  EEXH
Directly Indirectly
=83 &
% %

- 85 Football Club operation
ma R ALY

- 86.24 Football Club operation
g RIRBEE
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B BT 5E30 31 32 52 & AN 0 RN F R 3K
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FRINFESRAUAREFEXEEEXN
TEIBRAEEEELRBEERB O ZA
NRAMBATR - EERRIITEMME Q]
HERSTREBNILE



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRZ4H R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38. FFIERIEL
Prior to the disposal detailed in Note 33, the Group has two material PMIRE 33 FFal 2 M E FIERT - ASREBMER
subsidiaries with non-controlling interests, namely, Wigan Athletic BEANFEEREZONE QA BlWigan
A.F.C. Limited and Wigan Football Company Limited. The non- Athletic AF.C. Limited & Wigan Football Company
controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are not 100% Limited  PAIBEHMIWIFRAEBEEH G2
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial. B8 1 B 2 FEIE AR SR AR B I R 3B o
Summarised financial information for the period from 1 July 2019 to REBRA AL IEAT - A B Wigan Athletic
Disposal Date in relation to the non-controlling interests of Wigan AFC Limited Z IEER EZB T —NLF L
Athletic AF.C. Limited before intra-group eliminations, is presented A—BRE=HERHIFBRAZMEERBE
below: E N
Period from
1July 2019 to Period ended
Disposal Date 30 June 2019

H-2-—hF B=_FThF
tA—-HEE RNA=+H

HE A B I EA R 1FHARE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FH&TT
Revenue N 102,661 64,887
Loss for the period HINEE (171,773) (104,674)
Total comprehensive loss FHBEERE (159,587) (100,281)
Loss for the period attributable to FEIE AR e s FE (G HANES 18
non-controlling interests (23,636) (14,403)
Total comprehensive loss for the period e RGNS EEEERE
attributable to non-controlling interests (21,960) (13,798)
Dividend paid during the period to CiIATRENE 22 O i o

non-controlling interests = -
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

38. FEIERRMER (&)

Period from
1July 2019 to Period ended
Disposal Date 30 June 2019
H=F-—hF BE_T—NF
tA—HEZE NA=+H

HE A I HA R 1EHARE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash flows used in operating activities REEEB 2 RERE (85,707) (87,827)
Cash flows used in investing activities FH B’\?x, SR HEeRE (53,121) (5:894)
Cash flows generated from financing activities JRERIEEB 2 RERE 133,591 101,715
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be R,/ A FE (5,237) 7,994

As disclosed in Note 33, the non-controlling interests were disposed
of and derecognised by the Group on 29 May 2020.

Summarised financial information for the period from 1 July 2019 to
Disposal Date in relation to the non-controlling interests of Wigan
Football Company Limited before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below:

SANHIFE I ARG C AEBER T -TF
AAZTNBHERKIFERIETERAERS -

REBEANRRIFLERT - B /M Wigan Football
Company Limited Z 3EE g m B — T — NF
+t A—BRELNE BB IEIE BB ERSE

B2
Period from
1July 2019 to Period ended
Disposal Date 30 June 2019

H=F-NF HE_ZT-NF
tA-HEE NA=+H

HE B H L H R 1EHAR

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue PN 26,930 19,859

Loss for the period HANEs1E (14,216) (9,086)

Total comprehensive loss FHEEBEE (22,830) (16,982)

Loss for the period attributable to FEVERR e FEAG BRI S 18

non-controlling interests (2,132) (1,363)
Total comprehensive loss for the period IR S R BN 2 E E IR 42

attributable to non-controlling interests (3,424) (2,548)

Dividend paid during the period to
non-controlling interests

HIME IR s 2 IR
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

38. FFIERRIER (&)

Period from

1July 2019 to Period ended

Disposal Date 30 June 2019

BH=—F-—1F gz—T— &

tHA—HEZE ~A=+H

& B H L HI R 1EHAR

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FAT

Cash flows (used in)/generated from operating  (FAR),TRE KL %152

activities REmne (7,742) 1,465
Cash flows used in investing activities ARREEE v RERE (1,244) (1137)

Cash flows generated from financing activities JRERIEEB 2 IRERE 10,172 -

Net cash inflows REMNFE 1,186 328
As disclosed in Note 33, the non-controlling interests were disposed BANMIE AT R AKEER T FF
of and derecognised by the Group on 29 May 2020. TAZTNBEE RR BRI RER -
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  39. AZ\FZ R R RN imEs)
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATZEIBHRRE
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019

RZZE-TF R_ZE—NF
~NA=1+H NA=1H

Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
BtaF FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 361,998 306,703
Amount due from a subsidiary Y — M B A R FUE
in form of promissory note (&G EEER) 759,857 759,857
Amount due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A B RIA 294,350 681473
1,416,205 1,748,033
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hithpelsas -~ me &k
prepayments TR 482 500
Bank balances RITHETF 377,910 13,124
378,392 13,624
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accrued HEMENRIERERTER
charges 5,477 4,728
Non-current liabilities FEmEBBEE
Convertible bond AR ES 44,692 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,744,428 1,756,929
Equity attributable to owners RARHEE AEEER
of the Company
Share capital f& A 28 1,369,157 1,369,157
Reserves B 39(b) 375,271 387,772
TOTAL EQUITY fERBEE 1,744,428 1,756,929
The statement of financial position of the Company was RRAZHBRARNR-_ZE_ZTF I
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 September 2020 RZt+=BEZ=g#t/&E Xfh 5l
and was signed on its behalf by: ATREZZ
Dr. Choi Chiu Fai Stanley Mr. Ho Wong Meng
HEEE LT Ho Wong Meng 5t 4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
s EF
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  39. AX\F 2B REREEEH &)
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) EATZHEEE
Share Other ~ Exchange Share-option Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BRE
R4 (E HtbfifE ELfE wE  REEA @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET T T T TET
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
ZA=1+—H 170,289 53,022 (266,603) 5433 381,189 343,330
Exchange difference arisingon  EBZ2HIEEEL 2
translation to presentation ERERE
currency - - 60,154 - - 60,154
Total comprehensive loss HREEBELEE
for the period - - - - (15712) (15712)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE-n%
SHE=+H 170,289 53,022 (206,449) 5433 365477 387,772
Exchange differencearisingon  #E AZ 7| §HEEL 7
translation to presentation BRERE
currency - - 22,198 - - 22,198
Total comprehensive loss FREEBELEE
for the year - - - - (34,699) (34,699)
At30 June 2020 e ke 22
NH=TH 170,289 53,022 (184,251) 5,433 330,778 375,271
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. BB D EREERTHMEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY s
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities RSt A mEAERSRBEER
recognised at the end of reporting period were categorised as BEIRERIZ ST
follows: a
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019

R=2-2F R-_T-NF
ARA=+H NA=+H

HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABG EMEE 93,441 191,360
Financial assets at amortised costs BEHEKAINE CREE 732,781 384,970
826,222 576,330
Financial liabilities sRBaE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEFAEGZZEHEE 8,615 -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHERANEz eRAE 475,822 568,082
484,437 568,082
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are CREENERBBEZATERUTHAE
determined as follows: E

— the fair value of investments held for trading with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market price; and

— the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fr R IR R IR AR R A B &
MERGZREZRFETIZENS
WEETE - &

HteMEERSRABEZAFER
RERBREREN ML LR TEEE

B -

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial instruments that are %f‘%ﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬂ”%13%ﬁ§?§?§”?\$@

measured at fair value by level of the following fair value AEERZEMREATEMEZERMTA

measurement hierarchy: e ER

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical F—&: EBRMSLEREENEBBEZI®R
assets or liabilities; B CREHAR)

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 ot HEENBEEERNEEMAE

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

RZBABR(Z—AMERE®R
BERIN) - R

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on E=A: ﬁ#%ﬁ@ﬂ%’ﬁ?’%ﬁ%%{%Zﬁ@
observable market data. HBERARIE -
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. RENB D ZeRMEERESRMAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY = (z)
(Continued)
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRIBHEATEES 2 EREDEATE
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: PRz R TEDHT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B E-R E=K st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET T T
At 30 June 2020 R-E-2F
AA=1+H
Financial assets at fair value QA FEFTABHEZ
through profit or loss CREE
Deutsche Far Fastern DWS Asia 28R 32 5 DWS 25
High Yield Bond Income Fund @ EHFEHFIEE
ERELRER 71 = = 71
Unlisted investment fund (note)  3F E TR & & & (Mfat) - - 92,730 92,730
71 - 92,730 93,441

Financial liabilities at fair RAFEFABRZ
value through profitorloss £@EE

Convertible bond R ES = = 8,615 8,615
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NIF
~B=+H
Financial assets at fair value AP EFAEE
through profit or loss TREE
Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia 12§23 58 DWS 2o i
High Yield Bond Income Fund & EHEHRE
ErtE e REE 770 - - 770
Unlisted investment fund (note)  3F F 1R EE S (A1:F) - - 190,590 190,590
770 - 190,590 191,360
Note: Bfet -
For the unlisted investment fund, the fair value is arrived at based on a valuation MIELMIHEESM S - A E IR E AN EE I &
carried out by JLL, an independent valuer not connected to the Group. The fair BE B (HEEM P EMITET Z(EETE - 2FE
value was determined based on market approach, where fair value estimated with BIETEEET  MAFERERALRARZEE
references to comparable companies’ benchmark multiples. EEErThE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. RENEI D ZERMEERERAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY WIEE ()
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) Miet - (&)
Significant unobservable inputs EXTAEEGARE
At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R-B-ZTF RZZE—NF
NA=1+H ~A=+H
Market multiples of comparable IR EL B AR Z TiHEH
companies adopted
— P/E Ratio —MAX - 11.04
— EV/EBITDA ratio — EBEEHRAL  BIE -
e R AT B A b 8.22-9.66 863
Discount for lack of marketability Rz mig Rl 2 BhIR 21.22% 12.93%

Had the P/E Ratio and EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies adopted
increased by 5%, it would increase the fair value of the unlisted investment by
HK$8,044,000. Had the P/E Ratio and EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies
adopted decreased by 5%, it would decrease the fair value of the unlisted
investment by HK$8,044,000.

The following table shows the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
the unlisted investment fund:

HETER M A B LR AR 2 BRI R EE BRI
B BiTE - TE RBEATAR L RE 5% - AIFE L
TRE 2 AF{ELENN8,044,000 78 TT o fHATERMA A E L
BARZMARARSEEEHRFE - B1E - TE
DRI AR R 5% BISEEMREZ ATFE
354 8,044,000 75 7T ©

TRETHFLITREZESE=ZALATENEZHEK -

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R-B-FF WZE—NF

~NA=1+H ~A=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

At beginning of the year/period REY),HH 190,590 -
Purchase BE - 242,350
Disposal HE (126,979) -
Change in fair value NEEES 29,119 (51,760)
At end of the year/period RER,HAR 92,730 190,590

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their
fair values.
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41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. There
was no change in capital management policies and objectives from
prior periods.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position
and makes adjustment to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings representing outstanding promissory note, outstanding
bank borrowing and outstanding convertible bond as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt (excess of
borrowings over cash and bank balances), as appropriate.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group's strategy, was to
maintain a zero or minimal gearing ratio.

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

41. BXRBREE

AEBERHARARRAEBRTEE
B NHEEE - T ARR RGBS
R BRI - LA M 15 B A2 AR
IR » HAEIT A K 2 EA T #IR9HE
PR T

7 S B T 1 T B IR A A
R B 1 BOK T A B AR 3R 5
TR AR R A 0 0 7 B AR IERT 2 P 185 -
A AT R SR A A2 o

AEERBEEABLREREEARRE
BITRIEN — 2 - R R REHFERERN
RERE B FREREELREERE
BUBPRNKATREEALZE - KEE
RITEE MR EE FTHRARES) MR e MR
TRIFTE - EXABEREEMERRERM
TEEMAER) EHFR(EEBELHRS
KIRTTHEF 288D ) 5T o

BE_Z-ZFAA=THILFE  X&EH
REDERTAREEERMBLER -

R-ZE_ZFER-_FT-NFRA=THZE
ERELLENT

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R=ZB=TF R_ZT—NF

~NA=1H ~NAZ=1H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Total borrowings BEBEE 463,543 419,067
Less: Bank balances and cash B RITREFERRE (623,170) (242,317)
Net debt B F5E (159,627) 176,750
Total capital BEARBE 1,788,480 2,033,686
Gearing ratio EEAMGLE N/A TiE A 8.69%
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HE T —TFNA=1HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. BfF5ER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan receivables,

financial assets at FVTPL, trade receivables and contract assets, other

receivables, amounts due from associates, bank balance and cash,

trade payables, other payables and accrued charges, promissory

note, convertible bond and bank borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective

notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments and the

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The

management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables, amounts due from associates and loan
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customers operate.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

At 30 June 2020, the Group does not have concentration of
credit risk in respect of trade receivables. At 30 June 2019, the
Group had concentration risk in respect of trade receivable
from PAGCOR of approximately HK$16,877,000. The credit risk
on trade receivable from PAGCOR is limited as PAGCOR is
controlled and owned by the government of the Philippines
and with a good repayment history. Bank balances are mainly
placed with banks which are assigned with credit-ratings by
international credit rating agencies.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. To measure ECLs, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped by
segments based on same credit risk characteristics. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience indicates significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the
grouping for trade receivables for the assessment of ECLs is by
customer segments, while Group E represents the customers
with significant risk of default.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets as at 30 June 2020 and 2019:

At 30 June 2020 RZB-ZFHFEXA=1+H GroupA
G|
Expected credit loss rate fE ﬁ%%l@ﬁﬁi% 2.93%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) mEE(TEL) 415
Loss allowance (HK$'000) Eﬂéﬂ?’éﬁ (F%71) 12
At 30 June 2019 RZZB-NEXA=+H GouwpA  GroupB
i) 248
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBERE
042% 0.5%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BREAEE(FH L) 17817 751
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE(TET) 75 4

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

MHEEREEREBIRRER @)

(a) FEREE)
FERRRA
AEEZASNFERRNZENESR
EERENEVRBENEGHNEEE
EERE MEEMAZESREES
BB ERRRRENE - RFTE
BEHEEEE BREERANEE
EREAEREERRSFEZSEBOMA
HRASEREEEBERERETRT
RAEFED A EREAREE TR - it
BREP DS RYRFKERR - AT
BHEEEE KABREBEXREN
Rz EF o

TRIFVWEUAEBN _Z_TFRK
CE-NEFANAZTHFEBREER
R REWRIERENEECRBEE
BEZER

Group B GroupC  GroupD Group E
o Gk T4 R
2.82% 4.5% 3.46% 27.94%
45 243 3,971 3,525

1 1 137 985

GroupC  GroupD  GroupF  GroupG  GroupH
R T4 [ o R
0.94%- 0.73%- 1.15%- 1.15%- 043%-
20.5% 20.5% 16.18% 16.18% 16.18%
2890 2691 843 1,087 681
28 124 30 29 20

BHBEBRXDRBEBEIFZERER
KRG  ZFLESEHRBUR
MREIAEE IR SR EEL BB E
£ BN R A KB H R YGRIRE
HEPREBERR B

B 48 380 B3 7 R Rk (B 2 WA RR TR B 5 B
WEIEREHRZZHTAEFPER

Annual Report % 2019/20 225



International Entertainment Corporation  BIFRIRE44H R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been no
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

The below table reconciled the movement in the allowance
for doubtful debts of trade receivables for the year/period:

BT LR

(a)

REEERRER @)

EERRE (&

BB HEY R E 2 BAERIRES 5
RAKEBRIFGBEREZBILEP
EH-BREBELER BEEERAR
HRNEEERYESKEH BEHRD
WAR QA BB E - HBERZFTHE
EREIRLERME

THRABE,/ MR RS
SRS -

At 30 June At 30 June

2020 2019

R=B=TF NZE-NF

ANA=1H NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of year/period NG i) 310 10

Provision for expected credit losses, net TEEEEBEREFE 1,640 296

Disposal of subsidiary HERB AT (800) -

Exchange adjustments b B (4) 4

At end of year/period NG EE S 1,146 310
Other receivables Bt R E

As at 30 June 2020, other receivables mainly represent
receivables from the hotel and leasing segment. It is
considered low risk as the debtors are considered, in the short
term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obligations, and
therefore the impairment provision is determined as 12
months expected credit losses. As at 30 June 2020, the Group
made a provision of approximately HKSNil (2019: HK$583,000)
on other receivables.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivable and amounts due from associates

Loan receivable and amounts due from associates represent
loans and funding to associates (note 18). It is considered to
be low risk as the loans are heavily collateralised by three
parcel of land and nine condominium units, and therefore the
impairment provision is determined as 12 months expected
credit losses. As at 30 June 2020, the management assess that
the effect of applying the expected credit risk model on loan
receivables was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management of the Group to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group of remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

42. HHBRAREEEERER @)

(a)

(b)

EERE &)
EREFRERBEE L FHE

B U B TR % E LB 2 O R SRR 4 [ Bl
ERRERERERES(ME18)-F
MRERRAERERR  REAE
FHAZELHENEAREELSER
Bt REAEREERREE
EREE R =TF X A=1+8"
ERENLEAEREERRRE S
HREREEF2ZELTEX -

EERPDETERE  NEBERY
HBARBEEERRARHZREN
ReZEWKY  URAEEEER
HESLRERSRERBD ZHE -

TRANAKESITESRAB &
TEMHR - TRBRBEAKEAIRE
KMz &FEH B2BABZKR
BRERER/H - FTESHAE
ZEHBERBEHECEEAR T
KBEEMNERATHERE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. BfiZRAMEEIEBIERNE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HFBELRAK(E)
Total More than
contractual More than 2years but
Carrying undiscounted ~ Within 1year 1yearbut less Less than
amount cashflow orondemand  than2years 5years
BRRHFE -Fas  BB-FE EEMEFE
REE RERELE REX DRWE DSREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THT TR TR
The Group biN-c]
At 30 June 2020 R-B-B£XA=1H
Non-derivatives: JEOTHE
Trade payables JE(TERIE 3,544 3,544 3,544 - -
Other payables and accrued HthERTER
charges [EStER 61,999 61,999 61,999 - -
Promissory note AAZR 345,915 378,000 14,000 364,000 -
Convertible bond hRES 44,692 53,000 - - 53,000
Bank borrowings RITEE 72,936 85,134 24,939 23312 36,883
529,086 581,677 104,482 387,312 89,883
At30June 2019 R=B-NEAA=1H
Non-Gerivatives: JEOTHE
Trade payables JEfTARE 20,532 20532 20,532 - -
Other payables and accrued HibEAFER
charges [EStER 121572 121572 121572 - -
Promissory note AAER 342,829 378,000 14,000 364,000 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 76,238 94,566 11,140 24438 58,988
561,171 614,670 167,244 388438 58,988
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from its financial assets at
FVTPL (note 21) and variable-rate bank balances (note 36(a))
and promissory note (note 30), bank borrowings (note 31) and
convertible bond (note 32). Financial assets at FVTPL and
promissory note, bank borrowings and convertible bond at
fixed interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. Bank balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

The Group does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy
when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances including bank
balances deposits in the banks in Hong Kong and the
Philippines. The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate time deposits at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming these bank balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are
outstanding for the whole year/period. A 50 basis points (2019:
50 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in the banks in
the Philippines is used in estimating the potential change in
interest rate and represents the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates made by the management of
the Group. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$449,000 (2019: HK$363,000). A 30 basis
points (2019: 30 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in
the banks in Hong Kong is used in estimating the potential
change in interest rate and represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates made by the
management of the Group. If the interest rates had been 30
basis points higher/lower (2019: 30 basis points higher/lower)
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately to nil (2019: nil).

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its long-term bank borrowings. At 30 June 2020, it is
estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2019: 50 basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit
after income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$358,000 (2019: HK$119,000). Other components of equity
would not be changed.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Other price risk

At 30 June 2020, the Group is exposed to price risk through its
financial assets at FVTPL in respect of the investment in Hontai
Fund and Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia High Yield Bond
Income Fund. The management of the Group has performed
analysis of the nature of market risk associated with the
investments, including discussion with the investment
advisors, and concluded that the price risk is more prominent
in evaluating the market risk of this kind of investments. The
management of the Group monitors this exposure and will
consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis on financial assets at FVTPL

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined, based
on the investment in Deutsche Far Eastern DWS Asia High
Yield Bond Income Fund, price risk (including fair value interest
rate risk) arising from financial assets at FVTPL. If the prices of
respective financial instruments had been 10% (2019:10%)
higher/lower, the Group's post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease by appoximately HK$71,000
(2019:HKS$77,000) as a result of the change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL at 30 June 2020.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

MHEREEREBIRREER @)

Currency risk (e) EBE¥E:
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through the AEBFTEMYPAREEKEHEAZI
financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables, bank balances and BEE M UANE B EZIRAFEEET A
cash, other payables, promissory note and convertible bond Tam2<j§%$;éf§ - Efb U ERIE - SR
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional TEFNRIRE HtENRE - &N
currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies TJ'E KAl fo,\%ﬁfrﬁ EEERER -
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars and E’Elﬂ:}—\, b BT ERIITTRATT
Hong Kong dollar.
The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary EMEENEYKBEZREMENRNSRS
liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant A ERIEERSEER (AYEE
group entities whose functional currency is Peso at the end of BRER) ZINEFHEMT -
the reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=K BE
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019 2020 2019
R-ZE-ZHF T-NF R=T-BE N _T-NF
AA=+H AR~A=+H RA=t+H SA=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET THET FET
usD 7T - 5219 108,811 120,207
HKD BT 423,391 359,426 408,328 53,277
EUR BT - - 94,259 192,119
The Group currently does not have foreign currency hedging B B AT ESNE LR EGE ©
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors REEE f@&‘ﬁx%ﬁ&’\* BERINEE
foreign currency exposure for each business segment and R ENtE s FE KRB

reviews the needs of individual geographical area, and will
consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.

TERFEREES ﬂ/%ﬁzm °
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e B ISR R M R

For theyear ended 30 June 2020
HE T —TFNA=1HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MHEEREREBIRRER @)

(e) Currency risk (Continued) (e) E¥mEBRE)
Sensitivity analysis BBESH
As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any RS EETTENE - MU E T8 5
significant foreign currency exposure arising from the AI%%E?%%&?%%E%%ZE
fluctuation of the USD/HKS and HK$/USD exchange rates. As a O B i EE AR ERINE R ©
result, the management of the Group considers that the I AREEEEERAELRSE I;T%TE
sensitivity of the Group’s exposure towards the change in R%TE&%TER%TEZF&Z%%[%
foreign exchange rates between USD/HKS and HK$/USDis % YRR FRERK -
minimal.
The currency risk is mainly arising from exchange rate of Peso BEERREZEREBBEREETRET
against USD and HKS. R o
The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10% TRANAEEEBEREETRET
(2019: 10%) increase and decrease in Peso against USD and HANRR A 10% (ZZF— NLEF 0 10%) 2
HKS. 10% (2019: 10%) represents the assessment of the BURRE o 10% (ZZ—NF : 10%) JHR
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates made SEEEEHINEERAESIEES)
by the management of the Group. The sensitivity analysis ZiHE c MERESMEREMALEE
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated ZHNEBHEERKIER - TRERME
monetary items. The table below indicates the impact on RHIMNEEZE10% (ZF—NF 1 10%)
post-tax profit for the year where the Peso weaken 10% (2019: HEANBRHREBRANZEE  RZIA -
10%) against foreign currencies, and vice versa. For a 10% WEREINEFEI10% (ZF—NF
(2019: 10%) strengthening of Peso against foreign currencies, 10%) iWFﬂ'—fEfﬁﬂﬂﬂ 25| R
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax EMBRER 2 &
profit for the year.
HKS$ impact USD impact
BLEE EpA-4 1
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019 2020 2019
R-B=ZF —hE R=B-TF R_T—NF
ANA=+H S~A=+H RKRA=tH A~A=1+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET FH&TT
Increase/(decrease) in FA/EHABRTE
post-tax profit for BRI M,
the year/period CRi) (1,650) (30,824) 7,702 8,133
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’ sensitivity to a 10%
(2019: 10%) increase and decrease in EUR against HKS. 10%
represents the assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates made by the management of the
Group. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items. The table
below indicates the impact on post-tax profit for the year
where the EUR weaken 10% (2019: 10%) against HKS. For a
10% (2019: 10%) strengthening of EUR against HKS, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit
for the year.

Increase in post-tax profit
for the year/period

42,

e MR

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE—T-_ZFEXHA=THILFE

MHEREEREBIRREER @)

(e) E¥mBS (&)
BEBEDH (E)
TRFINASEEHE T BT mk
BA10%(ZF — NLF 1 10%) Z B
& ° 10% Jh 2N 55 B 5 12 2 3 O B =
AR B E T 2 iTE - MEEDITE
BREMKEE ZINESBEEKIER -
TREREBTT B TREE 0% (=ZF
—NEF 1 10%) HFEARTE R 2 &
2o WEBUTRBITLAEIR(ZE—N
F:110%) FRAKRBERFBEXE
BAERMBRER 2L -

FAHARBR RGN

EUR impact
Bed

At 30 June At 30 June
2020 2019
R=B=TF RK_Z-NF
ANA=1+H ~A=1+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
9,273 19,059

43. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which

the Company was a party and in which the directors of the Company

or an entity connected with the directors had a material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the

financial year.

43.

%%ﬁ’:‘i‘é% C REFNE N EXE

BEBARRRI L AARRESHREEH
e ERERIMERETHEEAER
ZIEMEARR S » THREHNRFERFEA
IMBEFEEEEATE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2020
HE T _TFNA=T1THILFE

44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING

45.

PERIOD
Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group'’s operating environment and
has impacted the Group’s operations and financial position. As far as
the Group's businesses are concerned, the COVID-19 pandemic has
caused the decrease In both the hotel revenue and leasing income
in the Philippines. The gradual easing of the COVID-19 pandemic
situation In Manila has led to the recovery of the hotel rooms
booking and the casino located In the Hotel would be expected to
reopen.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact from the
COVID-19 pandemic on the Group's businesses and has put In place
various contingency measures. These contingency measures
included but not limited to reassessing the demand and room rate
of the Hotel, reassessing the leasing income to be received by
PAGCOR and improving the Group's cash management by
expediting debtor settlements. The Group will keep the contingency
measures under review as the COVID-19 pandemic situation evolves.

Application of Provisional License

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2020,
MSPI intends to apply for a provisional license (the “Provisional
License”) from PAGCOR In order to expand and upgrade the current
hotel premises, facilities and services by the establishment and
operation of a casino and the development of an integrated resort In
the City of Manila, Philippines (the “Integrated Resort”). On 22 June
2020, MSPI has submitted an application to PAGCOR for the
Provisional License. On 18 September 2020, MSPI received a letter
from PAGCOR informing that PAGCOR has conditionally approved
the issuance of the Provisional License to MSPI. MSPI and PAGCOR
will further negotiate for the terms of the provisional license
agreement (the “Provisional License Agreement”) to be entered into
between PAGCOR and MSPI in relation to the grant of the Provisional
License.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
September 2020.
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45.

COVID-19 2 &

COVID-19RIBE S _TFYLIEH - AK
EEEERIBTIRAEINTEE I B AL
EEERVBEMRR RAEEEHME -
COVID- 19I5 EEBEERE A E WA KB IK
ATE - BERCOVID-19ZIBEFEM » A
BUBEEMIRETER] - MABIE 2 B 5 TR
B -

REE—EZYEEER COVID-19F 5 H A EE
¥R E  WHRIZBEREER - 25k
BREBEEETRARENTIHELEEREE
8 - EHFEPAGCORKEL 2 & WA K35
BERKEFIEASERSER - AEEE
A FECOVID- 19 BB LIS BB R EEIEHE -

BRI R
BEAATBHA-Z-_ZTFA+EZA
25 MSPI#E ] PAGCOR H 75 B BF 12 BB ([ G B
FRRR ) - WEBRIERES BN mEY KK
ERERERFAERE ([KEERE]) #E
BEECERBEME  REMRSE - R
T-FTHFEXAZ+=H  MSPIT A PAGCOR
EREREREAEG RZZEZZTFLATAN
B+ MSPI#2 7 PAGCOR 9 K 5 + 25 FIPAGCOR
BB I HE /17 MSPI BT RGBS R RR o MSPI £
PAGCOR #5 Bt PAGCOR £2 MSPI % 5] 37 A i 1%
o B B R PR A B B B R o ([ R B BB BR 15
&) BMESRIEE— P hERS o

HAEMFBRER
PIBMEAMBRERGEN YR -F-F
FAA=T= BEEESHE R SHETIR -
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Financial Summary

B 3% E

RESULTS E 3
For the
fifteen
For the For the For the months For the
year ended year ended year ended ended year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 30 June 30 June
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
BHE
BE BE HE —T-NEF Bz
—E—RF T—+F =—N\F /\ﬂf'HEi gt 3.:3
=f=+—-8B =ZA=+—-HBH =A=+—H E+AEAR AA=1H
LFE LFE LFE HAR LHEE
(Restated) (Restated) (Re-presented)
(& =751) (& =51) (& =7))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHL FAL FAT THET
Revenue PN 330,939 290,714 296,380 375,982 226,965
Profit/(loss) for F/HBREF,
the year/period (E8) 1,502,134 (41,770) (67,278) (93,293) (305,332)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LA N AT &ML
L (E18)
Owners of the Company RAREAA 774,773 (31,486) (67,278) (77,527) (279,564)
NET ASSETS FEE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 30 June 30 June
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RF —tF —N\F _Eg'_jlg gt 3.:3
=A=+—H =ZA=+—H =A=1+—8H NA=TH ~NA=TH
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =51) (=E5)
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FAT FAT THET
Total assets BEE 3577976 2,386,434 2,632,688 2,797,372 2,538,669
Total liabilities BERE (235,344) (551,074) (550,293) (763,686) (750,189)
3,342,632 1,835,360 2,082,395 2,033,686 1,788,480
Equity attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the Company KAREAA 2,057,622 1,835,279 2,082,395 2,023,267 1,788,480
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Particulars of Principal Properties

Location Existing use

3 BRERZ

1588 M.H. Del Pilar Hotel operations and leasing of properties
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila (equipped with entertainment equipment)
The Philippines

1588 M.H. Del Pilar R REEME GRERERS)

cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
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Lease term

HEFH

Medium-term lease

A
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